Adeline Hambley

From: Myra Ocasio

Sent: Tuesday, May 2, 2023 12:20 PM

To: Marcia Mansaray; Kris Conrad; Nina Baranowski; Karen Karasinski; Adeline Hambley
Subject: RE: Prebudget Planning Discussion

We're planning on driving down

Mypra oeasto

Assistant Fiscal Services Director

Ottawa County | Where You Belong | Stay informed. Subscribe
12220 Fillmore St. | West Olive, Michigan 49460 | 616-738-4857
mocasio@miQttawa.org | www.miOttawa.org

From: Marcia Mansaray <mmansaray@miottawa.org>

Sent: Tuesday, May 2, 2023 12:00 PM

To: Kris Conrad <kconrad@miottawa.org>; Nina Baranowski <nbaranowski@miottawa.org>; Karen Karasinski
<kkarasinski@miottawa.org>; Myra Ocasio <mocasio@miottawa.org>; Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>
Subject: RE: Prebudget Planning Discussion

Hi Karen, | can still say good morning for two minutes!

Are you planning to join us down in Holland at the Health Department or will we meet on Teams? We’d love to see you
here, but understand if you schedule doesn’t allow the drive trime.

~Marcia

From: Kris Conrad <kconrad@miottawa.org>

Sent: Wednesday, April 26, 2023 11:25 AM

To: Kris Conrad; Nina Baranowski; Marcia Mansaray; Karen Karasinski; Myra Ocasio; Adeline Hambley
Subject: Prebudget Planning Discussion

When: Tuesday, May 2, 2023 1:00 PM-2:00 PM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).

Where: Microsoft Teams Meeting

We would love it if you can come down to Holland, but | will leave the teams meeting below as another option.

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to join the meeting

Meeting ID: 296 502 424 044

Passcode: eN5qt8
Download Teams | Join on the web
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Learn More | Meeting options
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Adeline Hambley

Subject: Canceled: Review FY24 PH Budget
Location: PH Conference Room 2

Start: Thu 6/1/2023 1:30 PM

End: Thu 6/1/2023 3:00 PM

Show Time As: Free

Recurrence: (none)

Meeting Status: Not yet responded

Organizer: Nina Baranowski
Required Attendees)oe Zywicki; Marcia Mansaray; Adeline Hambley; Myra Ocasio; Karen Karasinski

Importance: High

FY24 budget discussion with Marcie, Addie, Joe, Karen, Myra and myself at PH, Holland.

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to join the meeting

Meeting ID: 210 447 192 325

Passcode: gzcDrH
Download Teams | Join on the web

Learn More | Meeting options
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Adeline Hambley

Subject: IN PERSON PH- FY24 Budget Meeting (Fiscal and PH Leadership)
Location: Microsoft Teams Meeting; PH Conference Room 2

Start: Thu 6/8/2023 12:30 PM

End: Thu 6/8/2023 2:00 PM

Recurrence: (none)

Meeting Status: Accepted

Organizer: Nina Baranowski
Required AttendeesKaren Karasinski; Joe Zywicki; Marcia Mansaray; Adeline Hambley
Resources: PH Conference Room 2

Meet with PH and discuss FY24 budget

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to join the meeting

Meeting ID: 290 317 229 28

Passcode: 7qnUJk
Download Teams | Join on the web

Learn More | Meeting options
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Adeline Hambley

Subject: Public Health FY24 Budget Review
Location: Administrator Conference Room
Start: Mon 6/19/2023 3:30 PM

End: Mon 6/19/2023 4:30 PM
Recurrence: (none)

Meeting Status: Accepted

Organizer: Myra Ocasio
Required AttendeesJohn Gibbs; Karen Karasinski; Adeline Hambley; Marcia Mansaray; Nina Baranowski; Joe Zywicki
Resources: Administrator Conference Room

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to join the meeting

Meeting ID: 217 232 092 103

Passcode: JXnhVm
Download Teams | Join on the web

Learn More | Meeting options
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FY24 Budget Department Meeting Agenda

Fund Summary — Fund/Dept Overview

Intergovernmental Revenue Overview

Personnel
o Current Positions & Funding
o New requests for FY24

Open Items
o Landfill Tipping

How is the level of service determined for mandated services?
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County of Ottawa
Public Health (2210)
Special Revenue Fund
Budget Summary
Budget Year Ending September 30, 2023

This fund is used to account for monies received from Federal, State, and local grants and County appropriations. These monies
are utilized in providing a variety of health related services to County residents.

2023 2023 2024 Adopted
2022 Adopted Amended Recommended Increase/
Actuals Budget Budget Budget (Decrease)
Revenues
Taxes - - - - -
Intergovernmental Revenue 7,084,253 4,125,562 7,492,833 7,369,480 3,243,918
Charges for Services 643,276 736,890 736,890 743,960 7,070
Fines & Forfeits 11,195 14,600 14,600 16,125 1,525
Interest on Investments - - - - -
Rent - - - - -
Licenses & Permits 1,058,251 1,044,870 1,044,870 1,025,985 (18,885)
Other Revenue 380,771 364,776 616,733 662,603 297,827
Operating Transfers In 6,156,663 6,678,063 8,254,108 6,678,063 -
Total Revenues 15,334,409 12,964,761 18,160,034 16,496,216 3,531,455
Expenditures
Salaries & Wages 7,063,536 6,690,182 7,930,189 7,331,740 641,558
Benefits 4,000,038 4,007,144 4,719,086 4,243,268 236,124
Supplies 960,131 975,401 1,504,136 1,857,136 881,735
Contracted Services 1,339,069 524,242 1,091,543 986,527 462,285
Operating Expenses 574,971 663,284 707,927 756,811 93,527
Maintenance & Repair 20,098 21,465 24,315 24,000 2,535
Utilities 135,048 156,360 156,360 135,695 (20,665)
Insurance 251,520 343,730 343,730 377,628 33,898
Indirect Expense 1,303,385 1,868,019 2,013,887 1,664,989 (203,030)
Contribution to Component Units - - - - -
Capital Outlay 6,030 9,000 24,100 - (9,000)
Debt Service - - - - -
Operating Transfers Out - - - - -
Total Expenditures 15,653,826 15,258,827 18,515,272 17,377,794 2,118,967
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (319,417) (2,294,066) (355,239) (881,578) (1,412,488)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 3,401,599 3,401,599 3,046,360
Projected Fund Balance, End of Year 1,107,533 3,046,360 2,164,782

PS000007



County of Ottawa
Landfill Tipping Fees (2272)
Special Revenue Fund
Budget Summary
Budget Year Ending September 30, 2023

This fund was established to account for the County's share of the tipping fee surcharge of Ottawa County Farms and Autumn
Hills landfills. The monies are to be used for implementation of the Solid Waste Management Plan.

2023 2023 2024 Adopted
2022 Adopted Amended Recommended Increase/
Actuals Budget Budget Budget (Decrease)
Revenues

Taxes - - - - -
Intergovernmental Revenue 25,066 36,000 36,000 22,000 (14,000)
Charges for Services 550,992 540,100 540,100 539,380 (720)
Fines & Forfeits - - - - -
Interest on Investments - - - 9,811 9,811
Rent - - - - -
Licenses & Permits - - - - -
Other Revenue - - - - -
Operating Transfers In 1,902 1,600,000 420,000 355,000 (1,245,000)

Total Revenues 577,960 2,176,100 996,100 926,191 (4,909)

Expenditures

Salaries & Wages 216,462 240,178 240,178 255,448 15,270
Benefits 123,677 147,750 147,750 137,371 (10,379)
Supplies 17,943 20,145 20,145 23,880 3,735
Contracted Services 470,408 568,071 568,071 539,440 (28,631)
Operating Expenses 21,109 24,831 24,831 18,334 (6,497)
Maintenance & Repair 26,409 17,250 17,250 19,700 2,450
Utilities 8,413 9,798 9,798 8,655 (1,143)
Insurance 468 463 463 456 (7)
Indirect Expense 58,086 63,744 63,744 50,977 (12,767)
Contribution to Component Units - - - - -
Capital Outlay - 1,365,000 420,000 355,000 (1,010,000)
Debt Service - - - - -
Operating Transfers Out - - - - -

Total Expenditures 942,975 2,457,230 1,512,230 1,409,261 (1,047,969)
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (365,015) (281,130) (516,130) (483,070)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 599,819 599,819 83,689
Projected Fund Balance, End of Year 318,689 83,689 (399,381)
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County of Ottawa
Medical Examiners (10106480)
Budget Summary
Budget Year Ending September 30, 2023

2023 2023 2024 Adopted
2022 Adopted Amended Recommended Increase/
Actuals Budget Budget Budget (Decrease)
Revenues
Taxes - - - - -
Intergovernmental Revenue - - - - -
Charges for Services 65,665 72,000 - 65,000 (7,000)
Fines & Forfeits - - - - -
Interest on Investments - - - - -
Rent - - - - -
Licenses & Permits - - - - -
Other Revenue - - - - -
Operating Transfers In - - - - -
Total Revenues 65,665 72,000 - 65,000 (7,000)
Expenditures
Salaries & Wages 102,746 90,471 (71,984) 93,238 2,767
Benefits 33,045 40,855 2,020 35,150 (5,705)
Supplies 1,247 5,250 3,764 5,350 100
Contracted Services 310,101 337,000 3,563 351,325 14,325
Operating Expenses 141,898 139,097 2,419 163,282 24,185
Maintenance & Repair - - - - -
Utilities - - 599,710 - -
Insurance - - - - -
Indirect Expense 461 2,419 3,600 3,383 964
Contribution to Component Units - - - - -
Capital Outlay - - - - -
Debt Service - - - - -
Contingency - - - - -
Operating Transfers Out - - - - -
Total Expenditures 589,498 615,092 543,092 651,728 36,636
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (523,833) (543,092) (543,092) (586,728)
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LANDFILL TIPPING (2272)

2019 ACTUAL 2020 ACTUAL 2021 ACTUAL 2022 ACTUAL 2023 ADOPTED

BUDGET
OC materials fee per ton
Projected tonnage 1,130,290 1,244,558 1,138,536 1,115,620 1,200,000
Operating revenue
Intergovernmental revenues (SOM grants) 13,315 11,174 36,049 25,066 36,000
Infrastructure Grant
Charges for services 526,239 491,618 539,673 550,992 540,100
Other revenue (Compost, Recy Memb, VSQG, CRT) - - - - -
Total revenues 539,554 502,792 575,722 576,058 576,100
Resource Centers
Current operations
Personal services (4.35 FTE & 1 Temp) 296,423 296,647 334,527 340,138 387,928
Supplies (printing, postage, operational) 32,696 12,134 19,696 17,943 20,145
Contracted Services 109,324 118,226 150,093 141,582 209,660
Operating Expenses & Indirect 59,673 80,224 127,347 79,195 88,575
Maintenance & Repair (building and vehicle) 16,451 9,178 3,039 26,409 17,250
Utilities & Telephone 7,692 8,900 8,594 8,413 9,798
Insurance 358 334 423 468 463
Capital Outlay - - - - -
Infrastructure Grant (20% Match)
Total expenditures 522,616 525,643 643,719 614,149 733,819
Landfill Cleanup
Current operations - - 258,970 328,826 358,410
Capital outlay - - - - -
Dynasand Filter Repairs - - - - 205,000
Replacement of Landfill Purge Wells - - - - 210,000
Replacement of Carbon Adsorbers - - - - 950,000
Eyewash for Peroxide Feed -
Well Abandonment - - - - -
Asset management - - - - -
Total expenditures - - 258,970 328,826 1,723,410
Revenues over (under) expenditures 16,938 (22,851) (326,967) (366,917) (1,881,129)

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds - - 119 1,902 1,600,000

Transfers to other funds - - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - - 119 1,902 1,600,000
Net change in fund balance 16,938 (22,851) (326,848) (365,015) (281,129)
Fund balance, beginning of Year 1,298,926 1,315,867 1,291,682 964,834 599,819
Projected fund balance, end of year S 1,315867 S 1,291,682 S 964,834 S 599,819 S 318,689
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Fund 2210- Public Health Positions

Intergovernmental  Charges for Fines & Licences & Operating
Cost Center # Cost Center Position Title FY24 FTE Vacant Revenue Services Forfeits Permits Other Revenue  Transfer In
22106010 Administration Administrative Assistant 1 No *Ex
22106010 Administration Public Health Finance Manager 1 No *rk
22106010 Administration Business Analyst 1 No *rk
22106010 Administration Custodian 0.10 No *Ex
22106010 Administration Deputy Health Administrator 1 No *rk
22106010 Administration Epidemiologist 2 No *rk
22106010 Administration Health Administrative Specialist 0.20 No *rk
22106010 Administration Medical Director 1 No *Ex
22106010 Administration Public Health Communications Specialist 1 No *rk
22106010 Administration Public Health Officer 1 No *Ex
22106010 Administration Senior Epidemiologist 1 No *rk
22106010 Administration Budget/Audit Analyst 1 No *rk
Total for Admin Division 11.30
***Positions are allocated across all programs, there is no direct funding.
Intergovernmental  Charges for Fines & Licences & Operating
Cost Center # Cost Center Position Title FY24 FTE Vacant Revenue Services Forfeits Permits Other Revenue  Transfer In
Public Health
22106011 Preparedness Public Health Preparedness Coordinator 1 No 72% 0% 0% 0% 0% 28%
Total for PHEP Division 1
Intergovernmental  Charges for Fines & Licences & Operating
Cost Center # Cost Center Position Title FY24 FTE Vacant Revenue Services Forfeits Permits Other Revenue  Transfer In
22106021 Food Services EH Specialist 2.80 No 15% 3% 1% 36% 1% 44%
22106021 Food Services Senior Environmental Health Specialist 4 No 15% 3% 1% 36% 1% 44%
22106021 Food Services EH Team Supervisor 1 No 15% 3% 1% 36% 1% 44%
22106022 Type 2 Senior Environmental Health Specialist 1 No 83% 0% 0% 1% 0% 16%
22106025 EH Admin EH Technical Support Clerk 1 No *kk
22106025,
22725250 EH Admin EH Clerk 1.80 No *Ex
22106025,
22725250 EH Admin EH Manager 1 No *rk
22106020 Field Services EH Specialist 1 No 20% 18% 0% 25% 0% 37%
22106024 Real Estate EH Technician 3 No 20% 18% 0% 25% 0% 37%
22106027,
22106020,
22106024 Onsite, Field, Real Estate EH Team Supervisor 1 No 20% 18% 0% 25% 0% 37%
22106027,
22106020 Onsite, Field EH Specialist 2 No 20% 18% 0% 25% 0% 37%
22106027,
22106020 Onsite, Field EH Technician 1.00 No 20% 18% 0% 25% 0% 37%
22106027,
22106020 Onsite, Field Senior Environmental Health Specialist No 20% 18% 0% 25% 0% 37%
Total for EH Division
***positions are allocated across all EH programs, there is no direct funding.
Intergovernmental  Charges for Fines & Licences & Operating
Cost Center # Cost Center Position Title FY24 FTE Vacant Revenue Services Forfeits Permits Other Revenue  Transfer In
22106030,
22106031 Hearing & Vision Hearing & Vision Tech 5 No 45% 0% 0% 0% 0% 55%
22106030,
22106031 Hearing & Vision CSHCS/HV Clerk 1 No 45% 0% 0% 0% 0% 55%
22106035 Pathways Nurse Supervisor 1 No 0% 19% 0% 0% 7% 74%
22106035 Pathways Community Health Worker 8  1FTE Vacant 0% 19% 0% 0% 7% 74%
Childrens Special Health
22106050 Care Community Health Nurse 2.50 No 52% 0% 0% 0% 0% 48%
Childrens Special Health
22106050 Care CSHCS Clerk 1 No 52% 0% 0% 0% 0% 48%
Childrens Special Health
22106050 Care CSHCS Representative 1 No 52% 0% 0% 0% 0% 48%
Childrens Special Health
22106050 Care Public Health Team Supervisor 1 No 52% 0% 0% 0% 0% 48%
Maternal Infant Health
22106053 Program Community Services Manager 1 No 26% 0% 0% 0% 0% 74%
Maternal Infant Health
22106053 Program Community Health Clerk 1 No 26% 0% 0% 0% 0% 74%
Maternal Infant Health
22106053 Program Community Health Nurse 3.20 No 26% 0% 0% 0% 0% 74%
Maternal Infant Health
22106053 Program Maternal and Infant Health Clerk 1 No 26% 0% 0% 0% 0% 74%
Maternal Infant Health
22106053 Program Nutritionist 0.50 No 26% 0% 0% 0% 0% 74%
Maternal Infant Health
22106053 Program Public Health Social Worker 2 No 26% 0% 0% 0% 0% 74%
Maternal Infant Health
22106053 Program Public Health Team Supervisor 1 No 26% 0% 0% 0% 0% 74%
Total for Community Services Division 30.20
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Fund 2210- Public Health Positions

Intergovernmental  Charges for Fines & Licences & Operating
Cost Center # Cost Center Position Title FY24 FTE Vacant Revenue Services Forfeits Permits Other Revenue  Transfer In
22106041 Clinic Admin Office Supervisor/Clinical Support 1 No *rk
22106041 Clinic Admin Clinic Health Manager 1 1FTE Vacant *rk
22106041 Clinic Admin Clinic Support 8 No *rk
22106042 Family Planning Nurse Practitioner 1.30 .6 FTE Vacant 39% 4% 0% 0% 0% 57%
22106042 Family Planning Medical Assistant 1.0 No 39% 4% 0% 0% 0% 57%
22106042 Family Planning Community Health Nurse 420  1FTEVacant 39% 4% 0% 0% 0% 57%
22106042 Family Planning Health Technician 0.80 No 39% 4% 0% 0% 0% 57%
22106042, Family Planning, Sexual
22106055 Transmitted Diseases Nurse Practioner Supervisor 1.0 No 39% 4% 0% 0% 0% 57%
22106055 Sexually Transmitted Disez Health Educator 0.91 .8 FTE Vacant 39% 4% 0% 0% 0% 57%
22106044 Immunization Community Health Nurse 3.20 No 75% 8% 0% 0% 0% 17%
22106044 Immunization Health Technician 1 No 75% 8% 0% 0% 0% 17%
22106044 Immunization Public Health Team Supervisor No 75% 8% 0% 0% 0% 17%
22106059 Communicable Disease  Nurse Practioner Supervisor No 26% 0% 0% 0% 7% 68%
22106059 Communicable Disease  Public Health Team Supervisor No 26% 0% 0% 0% 7% 68%
Total for Clinic Division
***positions are allocated across all patient care programs, there is no direct funding.
Intergovernmental  Charges for Fines & Licences & Operating
Cost Center # Cost Center Position Title FY24 FTE Vacant Revenue Services Forfeits Permits Other Revenue  Transfer In
22106043, Seal, Oral Health
22106046 Kindergarden Assessment Dental Health Coordinater 0.80 No 87% 3% 0% 0% 0% 10%
22106045 Miles of Smiles Dental Assistant Clinic Manager 0.80 No 14% 1% 0% 0% 1% 84%
22106045 Miles of Smiles Dental Hygienist Manager 0.80 No 14% 1% 0% 0% 1% 84%
22106045 Miles of Smiles Oral Health Team Supervisor 1.0 No 14% 1% 0% 0% 1% 84%
22106310,
22106048,
22106051 Health Education, Substan: Health Educator 2.57 No 5% 4% 0% 0% 8% 83%
22106310 Health Education Health Promotion Clerk 1 No 5% 4% 0% 0% 8% 83%
22106310 Health Education Health Promotion Manager 1 No 5% 4% 0% 0% 8% 83%
22106310 Health Education Health Promotion Team Supervisor 1 No 5% 4% 0% 0% 8% 83%
Total for Health Promotion Division 8.97
Intergovernmental  Charges for Fines & Licences & Operating
Cost Center # Cost Center Position Title FY24 FTE Vacant Revenue Services Forfeits Permits Other Revenue  Transfer In
Contact Tracing, Testing,
22106082, Infection Prevention,
22106091 COVID Immunization Clinic Support 4 AFTE Vacant 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Contact Tracing, Testing,
22106082, Infection Prevention,
22106091 COVID Immunization Community Health Nurse 2 2FTE Vacant 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Contact Tracing, Testing,
22106082, Infection Prevention,
22106091 COVID Immunization EH Specialist 1 No 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Contact Tracing, Testing,
22106082, Infection Prevention,
22106091 COVID Immunization Health Educator 7 4.4 FTE Vacant 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Contact Tracing, Testing,
22106082, Infection Prevention,
22106091 COVID Immunization Epidemiologist 1 No 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Contact Tracing, Testing,
22106082, Infection Prevention,
22106091 COVID Immunization Health Technician 1 No 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Contact Tracing, Testing,
22106082, Infection Prevention,
22106091 COVID Immunization Public Health Communications Specialist 1 1FTE Vacant 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Contact Tracing, Testing,
22106082, Infection Prevention,
22106091 COVID Immunization Public Health Team Supervisor 1 1FTE Vacant 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total for Emerging Threats Division 18.00
TOTAL FTE 122.38
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|0RG OBJ FUND DEPARTMENT DESCRIPTION JUSTIFICATION FY24 DEPT REQUEST |
22106044 501000 Health Public Health Federal Vaccines (Zywicki 5/3/23) (350,000.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: Historical GL
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: Federally funded vaccines that are received at no cost to Ottawa County
Note: Org 22106044 funds approx 4 FTEs. Note that 22106044 has medicaid, fees,
and general fund revenue.
22106082 502000 Health Public Health ELC (Epi Lab Capacity) Contact Tracing, Investigation, Testing Coord., and Infection  (Zywicki 5/23/23) (1,495,608.00)
Prevention
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 5.23.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail_ETLHD (based on
FY23 award)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: approx 10 FTEs (estimated)
Purpose: Funding for COVID-19 case investigations, contact tracing and infection
prevention
Note: N/A
22106082 502000 Health Public Health 6/2/23- Reducing COVID grant revenue to align with FY24 Project Allocation email 249,268.00
sent on 6/2/23 NMB
22106091 502000 Health Public Health COVID Immunization (Zywicki 5/23/23) (359,090.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: Actual FY24 Grant Award Allocation per MDHHS Award Notification Letter
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: approx 2 FTEs (estimated)
Purpose: This grant should be directed to increase COVID vaccination within
Michigan. Will be used to support awardee and local Health Department (HD)
staffing, communications campaigns, pandemic preparedness, mass vaccination and
all COVID-19 vaccine response work.
Note: N/A
22106093 502000 Health Public Health 6/2/23- Reopening Schools HRA NMB (308,000.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: Actual FY24 Grant Award Allocation per MDHHS Award Notification Letter
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: approx 2 FTEs (estimated)
Purpose: Funding provided will support hiring health resource advocates (HRAs).
Individuals serving in the role as an HRA will provide front-line support for COVID-19
testing and reporting, help districts identify emerging COVID-19 related health
concerns, and amplify best health practices.
Note: N/A
22106094 502000 Health Public Health NNICE Vaccine Grant (National Network to Innovate for COVID-19 and Adult Vaccine (Zywicki 5/4/2023) (25,000.00)

Equity)

Agency: Community Foundation of Holland/Zeeland (CFHZ)

Source: FY23 Grant Award

Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 7/31/24

FTEs: approx 0.25 FTE

Purpose: Addressing distribution, administration, and/or uptake of COVID-19,
influenza other identified adult vaccines in adult Hispanic/Latino populations within
Greater Grand Rapids, Holland, and/or Zeeland area.

Note: N/A
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|0RG OBJ FUND DEPARTMENT DESCRIPTION JUSTIFICATION FY24 DEPT REQUEST |
22106095 502000 Health Public Health CSHCS Vaccine Initiative (Childrens Special Health Care Services) (Zywicki 5/18/2023) (11,447.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: MDHHS Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 Project Allocations Notification (5/17/23)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: No FTEs
Purpose: Local Health Departments are eligible to receive funding to support efforts
to increase vaccination rates among children with disabilities and special health care
needs, along with parents and family members of children with special health care
needs.
Note: N/A
22106097 502000 Health Public Health COVID Workforce Development (Zywicki 5/23/23) (345,213.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 5.23.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail_ETLHD (based on
FY23 award)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 6/30/24
FTEs: approx 1.5 FTEs (estimated)
Purpose: Funding for COVID Workforce Development to establish, expand, and
sustain a public health workforce. Eligible expenditures under the grant include
hiring personnel, purchase of supplies & equipment necessary to support the
expanded workforce, admin support services.
Note: N/A
22106011 505000 Health Public Health Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) (9 Month Grant) (Zywicki 5/3/23) (112,221.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 4.26.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant Period: 10/1/23 - 6/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: Grantee shall conduct activities to build public health emergency
preparedness and response capacity and capability.
Note: Org 22106011 funds 1 FTE. Note that 22106011 has general fund revenue.
22106011 505000 Health Public Health Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) (3 Month Grant) (Zywicki 5/3/23) (37,407.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: Estimate based on FY23 PHEP 3 Month grant award
Grant Period: 7/1/24 - 9/30/24
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
22106022 505000 Health Public Health EGLE - Operator Assistance (zywicki 5/3/23) (875.00)
Agency: EGLE
Source: FY23 EGLE Grant Contract
Grant Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: Grant funding to perform noncommunity water supply program services
required under the Safe Drinking Water Act, 1976 PA 399, as amended
Note: Org 22106022 funds 1.0 FTE. Note that 22106022 has permits and general
fund revenue.
22106022 505000 Health Public Health EGLE - Capacity Development (zywicki 5/3/23) (1,950.00)

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
22106029 505000 Health Public Health Local Health Department (LHD) Sharing Support (zywicki 5/3/23) (43,962.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: No FTEs
Purpose: Local health departments participating in the project will utilize funds to
support activities pertinent to the exploration, preparation, planning,
implementing, and improving sharing of local health department services, programs
or personnel.
Note: N/A
22106038 505000 Health Public Health Immunization Action Plan (IAP) (Zywicki 5/18/23) (148,620.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: MDHHS Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 Project Allocations Notification (5/17/23)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: approx 1 -2 FTEs
Purpose: To offer immunization services to the public. This grant funding is used to
supplement our immunization ELPHS program and primarily funds salaries/fringe
expense.
Note: N/A
22106042 505000 Health Public Health Family Planning (zywicki 5/3/23) (195,664.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 3.29.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail_Family Planning
(based on FY23 award)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: to ensure statewide access to high-quality, client-centered reproductive
health care services, including a broad range of contraception, and related
preventive health services for individuals and couples to achieve their reproductive
goals for family size, spacing of their children, or pregnancy prevention at low or no
cost.
Note: Family Planning grant is split between federal (505000) and state (555000)
funding. Org 22106042 funds approx 7 FTEs. Note that 22106042 has medicaid,
fees, and general fund revenue.
22106044 505000 Health Public Health Immunization Fixed Fees (Zywicki 5/3/23) (6,800.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: Fixed fee reimbursement provided by MDHHS for immunization site visits
Note: Org 22106044 funds approx 4 FTEs. Note that 22106044 has medicaid, fees,
and general fund revenue.
22106047 505000 Health Public Health LRE ARPA (American Rescue Plan Act) Grant (Zywicki 5/4/2023) (8,810.00)
Agency: Lakeshore Regional Entity (LRE)
Source: FY23 LRE Grant Agreement
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: No FTEs
Purpose: Funding for substance abuse prevention and education
Note: N/A
22106048 505000 Health Public Health LRE Substance Abuse Prevention (Federal Funds) (Zywicki 5/4/2023) (16,517.00)

Agency: Lakeshore Regional Entity (LRE)

Source: FY23 LRE Grant Agreement

Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: approx 1 FTE

Purpose: Funding for substance abuse prevention and education

Note: LRE Subs Abuse Prevention grant is split between federal (505000) and Other
Revenue (671000) funding.
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22106050 505000 Health Public Health CSHCS (Childrens Special Health Care) Care Coordination (Zywicki 5/4/2023) (44,360.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: Fixed fee reimbursement from MDHHS for Childrens Special Health Care
(CSHCS) care coordination services. Services provided through this prorgam include
developing and tracking a plan-of-care for the client, and interaction/monitoring the
care of a client and the family/persons involved in the care of the client.
Note: Care Coordination grant is split between federal (505000) and state (555000)
funding. Org 22106050 funds approx 5 FTEs. Note that 22106050 has general fund
revenue.
22106050 505000 Health Public Health CSHCS (Childrens Special Health Care) Elevated Blood Lead Case Management (Zywicki 5/4/2023) (3,927.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: The local health department will complete in-home elevated blood lead
(EBL) case management (CM) services, with parental consent, for children less than
age 6 in their jurisdiction enrolled in Medicaid with a blood lead level equal to or
greater than 3.5 pg/dL.
Note: Elevated Blood grant is split between federal (505000) and state (555000)
funding. Org 22106050 funds approx 5 FTEs. Note that 22106050 has general fund
revenue.
22106050 505000 Health Public Health CSHCS (Childrens Special Health Care) Outreach & Advocacy (Zywicki 5/4/2023) (88,838.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: Local Health Departments (LHDs) throughout the state serve children with
special health care needs in the community. The LHD serves as a link between the
CSHCS program, the family, the local community and the Medicaid Health Plan to
assure that children with special health care needs receive the services they require
covering every county in Michigan
Note: Outreach & Advocacy grant is split between federal (505000) and state
(555000) funding. Org 22106050 funds approx 5 FTEs. Note that 22106050 has
general fund revenue.
22106050 505000 Health Public Health CSHCS (Childrens Special Health Care) Medicaid Outreach (Zywicki 5/4/2023) (171,842.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: Local Health Departments may perform Medicaid Outreach activities for
CSHCS/Medicaid dually enrolled clients and receive reimbursement at a 50% federal
administrative match rate based upon their CSHCS Medicaid dually enrolled
caseload percentage and local matching funds.
Note: Org 22106050 funds approx 5 FTEs. Note that 22106050 has general fund
revenue.
22106051 505000 Health Public Health State Opioid Response (SOR Grant) (Zywicki 5/4/2023) (28,000.00)

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
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22106052 505000 Health

Public Health

COVID-19 SUD (Substance Use Disorder) Grant (LRE) (Zywicki 5/4/2023)
Agency: Lakeshore Regional Entity (LRE)

Source: FY23 LRE Grant Agreement

Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: No FTEs

Purpose: Funding for substance use disorder prevention and education

Note: N/A

(45,873.00)

22106058 505000 Health

Public Health

Medicaid Outreach (Zywicki 5/5/2023)
Agency: MDHHS

Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)

Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: Medicaid Outreach activities are performed to inform Medicaid
beneficiaries or potential beneficiaries about Medicaid, enroll individuals in
Medicaid and improve access and utilization of Medicaid covered services.
Note: Org 22106058 funds approx 4 FTEs. Note that 22106058 has general fund
revenue.

(200,000.00)

22106059 505000 Health

Public Health

Tuberculosis (TB) Control (Zywicki 5/5/2023)
Agency: MDHHS

Source: FY23 TB Control Grant Award

Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: Grant funding for the purposes of tuberculosis control and elimination

Note: Org 22106059 funds approx 5.5 FTEs. Note that 22106059 has medicaid, LCS,

and general fund revenue.

(1,337.00)

22106072 505000 Health

Public Health

Maternal & Child Health (MCH) - Children (Zywicki 5/5/2023)
Agency: MDHHS

Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)

Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: LMCH funding is made available to local health departments to support
the health of women, children, and families in communities across Michigan.
Funding addresses one or more Title V Maternal and Child Health Block Grant
national and state priority areas and/or a local MCH priority need identified through
a needs assessment process.

Note: MCH grant funding is split between 22106072/73. In total, between the 2
orgs, the MCH grant revenue funds approx 0.5 FTE

(15,000.00)

22106073 505000 Health

Public Health

Maternal & Child Health (MCH) - All Other (Zywicki 5/5/2023)
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

(66,214.00)
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22106076 505000 Health Public Health SDOH Planning (Social Determinants of Health) (Zywicki 5/18/2023) (12,500.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: MDHHS Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 Project Allocations Notification (5/17/23)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: Local health departments will utilize funding to implement Community
Health Needs Assessment (CHNA), plan for Community Information Exchange (CIE),
and implement community-driven initiatives that support social determinants of
health (SDOH) priorities.
Note: SDOH Planning grant is split between federal (505000) and state (555000)
funding. Org 22106076 funds approx 0.1 FTE.
22106200 505000 Health Public Health Beach Monitoring (Zywicki 5/12/2023) (10,696.00)
Agency: EGLE
Source: FY23 EGLE Beach Monitoring Grant Agreement This grant supports the OCDPH's ability to monitor beach water for e.
Grant/Contract Period: 4/1/24 - 12/31/24 coli levels and commnuicate that information to residents and visitors.
FTEs: No FTEs (S. Ballard 5/8/23)
Purpose: County Health Department employees will conduct routine monitoring on
Lake MI beaches. Weekly water samples and beach surveys will provide data that
can be used to pinpoint and correct any sources of biological contamination.
Note: N/A
22106030 517000 Health Public Health Medicaid insurance revenue s.lake 4/28/23 No change from prior year (7,500.00)
Medicaid insurance revenue is received for services provided (this is not a grant).
(Zywicki 5/22/23)
22106031 517000 Health Public Health Medicaid insurance revenue s.lake 4/28/23 Increase from prior year request but same as pre- (10,000.00)
pandemic; back to normal screening schedules and projection based
Medicaid insurance revenue is received for services provided (this is not a grant). on revenue receieved to date
(Zywicki 5/22/23)
22106042 517000 Health Public Health Medicaid insurance revenue (Zywicki 5/26/23) (30,000.00)
Medicaid insurance revenue is received for services provided (this is not a grant).
Estimate is based on Historical data/trends.
22106043 517000 Health Public Health Medicaid insurance revenue Based on history, and because Medicaid is expanding coverage for (29,000.00)
more teeth. (L. Uganski 4/26/23)
Medicaid insurance revenue is received for services provided (this is not a grant).
(Zywicki 5/22/23) Medicaid reimbursements help fund 50% of salary for Dental Health
Coordinator (.80FTE)
22106044 517000 Health Public Health Medicaid insurance revenue H. Tarleton/T. Bulthuis, 4/26/23. Immunization administration and (108,000.00)
vaccine billed to Medicaid health plans. Increase in patients with
Medicaid insurance revenue is received for services provided (this is not a grant). Medicaid due to refugee. Source: Projection based on FY23 a typical
(Zywicki 5/22/23) month of billing of $9,000 x 12 months.
22106045 517000 Health Public Health Medicaid insurance revenue Based on history (L. Uganski, 5/2/23) (75,000.00)
Medicaid insurance revenue is received for services provided (this is not a grant).
(Zywicki 5/22/23)
22106046 517000 Health Public Health Medicaid insurance revenue estimation (L. Uganski 5/4/23) (7,000.00)
Medicaid insurance revenue is received for services provided (this is not a grant). $14*500 - Estimate based on number of screenings on children with
(Zywicki 5/22/23) medicaid
22106053 517000 Health Public Health Medicaid insurance revenue s.lake 5/4/23, Increase from prior year now that program is fully (160,000.00)

Medicaid insurance revenue is received for services provided (this is not a grant).

(Zywicki 5/22/23)

staffed and getting closer to pre-pandemic visit numbers
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22106055 517000 Health

Public Health

Medicaid insurance revenue (zywicki 6/5/23)

Billing to Medicaid for clinic services. Estimate is based on: Current FY23 actuals,7
months at $1,900 revenue, projecting a modest increase.

Medicaid insurance revenue is received for services provided (this is not a grant).

(2,500.00)

22106030 517003 Health

Public Health

Medicaid Cost Based Reimbursement (MCBR) (zywicki 6/2/23)

Source: MCBR Calc & Allocation Entry_FY24 Budget_v2
(G:\Departments\Public Health\6. Budget\FY24)

Period: Full year FY24

Medicaid Cost Based Reimbursement is revenue provided by the State of Ml and
varies each year based on a variety of factors such as the number of services
provided by our health department and the costs incurred by our health
department to provide those services.

(160,185.00)

22106031 517003 Health

Public Health

Medicaid Cost Based Reimbursement (MCBR) (Zywicki 6/2/23)

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

(120,841.00)

22106042 517003 Health

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

(92,403.00)

22106044 517003 Health

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

(415,758.00)
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22106053

517003 Health

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

22106055

517003 Health

Public Health

(170,122.00)

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

22106059

517003 Health

Public Health

(50,036.00)

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

(113,414.00)

22106044

519000 Health

Public Health

Medicare insurance revenue H. Tarleton/T. Bulthuis 4/26/23. Immunization adminstration and
vaccine billing to Medicare health plans for only flu and pneumonia

(1,500.00)

Medicare insurance revenue is received for services provided (this is not a grant). vaccine. Source: Based on historical billing prior to Covid and projecte

(Zywicki 5/22/23) less Medicare patients due to pharmacy coverage options.

22106020

555000 Health

Public Health

EGLE - Campground (Zywicki 5/3/23)
Agency: EGLE

Source: FY23 EGLE Grant Contract

Grant Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: Grant funding for performing campground inspections

Note: Org 22106020 funds approx 2 FTEs. Note that 22106020 has permits, fees,

inspections and general fund revenue.

(1,990.00)

22106020

555000 Health

Public Health

EGLE - Drinking Water Long-Term Monitoring (LTM) (Zywicki 5/3/23)
Agency: EGLE

Source: FY23 EGLE Grant Contract

Grant Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: Grant funding for sampling drinking water wells

Note: Org 22106020 funds approx 2 FTEs. Note that 22106020 has permits, fees,

inspections and general fund revenue.

(808.00)

22106020

555000 Health

Public Health

EGLE - Swimming Pool (Zywicki 5/3/23)
Agency: EGLE

Source: FY23 EGLE Grant Contract

Grant Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: Grant funding for performing swimming pool inspections

Note: Org 22106020 funds approx 2 FTEs. Note that 22106020 has permits, fees,

inspections and general fund revenue.

(20,000.00)
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22106020 555000 Health

Public Health

EGLE - Septage (zywicki 5/3/23)
Agency: EGLE

Source: FY23 EGLE Grant Contract

Grant Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: Grant funding for performing septage inspections

Note: Org 22106020 funds approx 2 FTEs. Note that 22106020 has permits, fees,

inspections and general fund revenue.

(2,600.00)

22106021 555000 Health

Public Health

Body Art Fixed Fee (zywicki 5/2/23)
Agency: MDHHS

Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23

award)

Grant Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: to help offset costs related to the licensing of a body art facility, when fees

are collected from the respective Grantee’s jurisdiction

Note: Org 22106021 funds approx 8 FTEs. Note that 22106021 has license, fees,

inspections, fines, LCS and general fund revenue.

(5,500.00)

22106021 555000 Health

Public Health

Food ELPHS (Essential Local Public Health Services) (zywicki 5/2/23)
Agency: MDHHS

Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23

award)

Grant Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: Food service establishment licensing

Note: Org 22106021 funds approx 8 FTEs. Note that 22106021 has license, fees,

inspections, fines, LCS and general fund revenue.

22106022 555000 Health

Public Health

(217,667.00)

EGLE - Noncommunity Standard (zywicki 5/3/23)
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

(163,958.00)

22106026 555000 Health

Public Health

Vector-Borne Surveillance & Prevention (zywicki 5/2/23)
Agency: MDHHS

Source: egrams 4.26.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23

award)

Grant Period: 4/1/24 - 9/30/24

FTEs: No FTEs

Purpose: To support the development of vector-borne disease surveillance and

control capacity at the local health department level. Funds may be used to support

a low-cost, community-level surveillance system

Note: N/A

(9,000.00)

22106027 555000 Health

Public Health

EGLE Drinking Water and Onsite Wastewater Management (zywicki 5/2/23)
Agency: MDHHS

Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23

award)

Grant Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: Monitor the community's drinking water supply and onsite wastewater

management (e.g. issuing permits, conducting inspections, etc)

Note: Org 22106027 funds approx 6.0 FTEs. Note that 22106027 has permits and

general fund revenue.

(355,623.00)
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22106030 555000 Health Public Health Vision ELPHS (Essential Local Public Health Services) (zywicki 5/3/23) (67,878.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: Vision screenings for preschool and school-aged children
Note: Org 22106030 funds approx 3 FTEs. Note that 22106030 has medicaid and
general fund revenue.
22106031 555000 Health Public Health Hearing ELPHS (Essential Local Public Health Services) (zywicki 5/3/23) (67,878.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: Hearing screenings for preschool and school-aged children
Note: Org 22106031 funds approx 3 FTEs. Note that 22106031 has medicaid and
general fund revenue.
22106042 555000 Health Public Health Family Planning (zywicki 5/3/23) (11,731.00)
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
22106043 555000 Health Public Health SEAL! Michigan Dental Sealant (Zywicki 5/3/23) (31,000.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: SEAL! Ml is the School Based Dental Sealant Program, providing oral health
prevention to students in Michigan schools.
Note: Org 22106043 funds approx 0.5 FTE. Note that 22106043 has medicaid, fees,
and general fund revenue.
22106044 555000 Health Public Health Immunization Vaccine Quality Assurance (Zywicki 5/3/23) (18,883.00)

Agency: MDHHS

Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)

Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: Monitor and educate local vaccine providers, provide vaccine inventory
management assistance for local providers, act as primary point of contact for local
VFC providers, etc.

Note: Org 22106044 funds approx 4 FTEs. Note that 22106044 has medicaid, fees,
and general fund revenue.
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22106044 555000 Health

Public Health

Immunization ELPHS (Essential Local Public Health Services) (zywicki 5/3/23)
Agency: MDHHS

Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23

award)

Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: Providing essential immunization services to the public.

Note: MDHHS-ELPHS grant is split between 22106044/55/59. Org 22106044 funds

approx 4 FTEs. Note that 22106044 has medicaid, fees, and general fund revenue.

(186,410.00)

22106046 555000 Health

Public Health

Oral Health- Kindergarten Assessment (Zywicki 5/4/2023)
Agency: MDHHS

Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23

award)

Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: 0.5 FTE

Purpose: The focus of the program is to perform an oral health assessment of

children entering kindergarten or first grade to help identify dental needs

Note: N/A

(71,021.00)

22106049 555000 Health

Public Health

LARA Medical Marijuana (zywicki 5/4/2023)
Agency: Ml Licensing & Regulatory Affairs (LARA)

Source: FY23 LARA Grant Agreement

Grant/Contract Period: 1/1/24 - 9/15/24

FTEs: No FTEs

Purpose: To provide funding to counties to be used for education, communication,

and outreach regarding the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act.

Note: N/A

(38,637.00)

22106050 555000 Health

Public Health

CSHCS (Childrens Special Health Care) Care Coordination (Zywicki 5/4/2023)
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
(CSHCS) care coordination services. Services provided through this program include
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

(12,811.00)

22106050 555000 Health

Public Health

CSHCS (Childrens Special Health Care) Elevated Blood Lead Case Management (Zywicki 5/4/2023)
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

(2,070.00)
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22106050 555000 Health Public Health CSHCS (Childrens Special Health Care) Outreach & Advocacy (Zywicki 5/4/2023) (88,838.00)
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
22106050 555000 Health Public Health Statewide Lead Case Management - Fixed Fee (Zywicki 5/4/2023) (9,360.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: To support local health departments in providing case management
services to all children with elevated blood lead levels in Michigan.
Note: Org 22106050 funds approx 5 FTEs. Note that 22106050 has general fund
revenue.
22106054 555000 Health Public Health HIV Prevention (Zywicki 5/4/2023) (20,000.00)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 4.26.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: approx 0.25 FTE
Purpose: To implement a comprehensive HIV surveillance and prevention program.
The funding aims to prevent new HIV infections and improve HIV-related health
outcomes of people with HIV
Note: N/A
22106055 555000 Health Public Health STD (Sexually Transmitted Disease) ELPHS Grant (Essential Local Public Health (Zywicki 5/5/2023) (199,926.00)
Services)
Agency: MDHHS
Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)
Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24
FTEs: See note
Purpose: Essential local public health services grant funding for providing Sexually
Transmitted Infection screening/testing and treatment for patients and their
partners
Note: MDHHS-ELPHS grant is split between 22106044/55/59. Org 22106055 funds
approx 3 FTEs. Note that 22106055 has medicaid, fees, and general fund revenue.
22106059 555000 Health Public Health GCD ELPHS (Zywicki 5/4/2023) (220,368.00)

(General Communicable Disease - Essential Local Public Health Services)

Agency: MDHHS

Source: egrams 3.28.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail (based on FY23
award)

Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: The purpose of the grant is to provide essential local public health
services, this portion of the grant funding is used for Infectious/Communicable
Disease Control

Note: MDHHS-ELPHS grant is split between 22106044/55/59. Org 22106059 funds
approx 5.5 FTEs. Note that 22106059 has medicaid, LCS, and general fund revenue.
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22106076 555000 Health

Public Health

SDOH Planning (Social Determinants of Health) (Zywicki 5/18/2023)
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

(12,500.00)

22106228 555000 Health

Public Health

PFAS Response (Zywicki 5/4/2023)
Agency: MDHHS

Source: egrams 3.30.23_Schedule of Financial Assistance Detail_ETLHD (based on
FY23 award)

Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: No FTEs

Purpose: (MDHHS) Division of Environmental Health (DEH), in consultation and
collaboration with local health departments, provides drinking water
recommendations to residents with private residential wells contaminated with
PFAS. Local health departments are eligible for PFAS Response funding when
filtration or another source of drinking water is recommended as a health protective
measure.

Note: N/A

(8,481.00)

22106010 581000 Health

Public Health

6/1/23- Adding missed revenue for CHNA project, the revenue was paid in FY22
from community partners and recorded to 22106010-581000. The expense will be
done/recorded in FY23. NMB

Expense is budgeted in 22106010-821000 as $23,725 and $15,000.

(38,725.00)

22106045 581000 Health

Public Health

Delta Dental Foundation Grant

Agency: Delta Dental Foundation

Source: Historical Data

Grant/Contract Period: FY24

FTEs: See Note

Purpose: The Delta Dental Foundation's purpose is to develop and enhance
partnerships and programs to improve oral and overall health. Each year the Delta
Dental Foundation provides financial support through grants to various
organizations

Note: Org 22106045 funds approx. 2.5 FTEs. Note that 22106045 also has Medicaid
insurance revenue, donation revenue, and general fund revenue. Also note this is a
local grant (non-state / non-fed).

Based on history (L. Uganski, 5/2/23)

(12,000.00)

22106045 581000 Health

Public Health

Holland Junior Welfare League Grant Based on history (L. Uganski, 5/2/23)
Agency: Holland Junior Welfare League

Source: Historical Data

Grant/Contract Period: FY24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: HIWL is a non-profit organization formed by a group of women, all
volunteers, in the West Ml community who volunteer their time and talents to raise
money and perform service projects for the children in the community.

Note: Org 22106045 funds approx. 2.5 FTEs. Note that 22106045 also has Medicaid
insurance revenue, donation revenue, and general fund revenue.

Also note this is a local grant (non-state / non-fed).

(1,500.00)
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22106045 581000 Health

Public Health

West Michigan Dental Foundation Community Grant

Agency: West Michigan District Dental Society / West Michigan Dental Foundation
Source: Historial Data

Grant/Contract Period: FY24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: The improvement of oral health through the financial support of
educational and service programs to address needs identified by the dental
profession and the communities which it serves in Kent, Ottawa, lonia, Mecosta and
Montcalm counties

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

Michigan Dental Foundation Grant

Agency: Michigan Dental Association Foundation

Source: Historical Data

Grant/Contract Period: FY24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: building a permanent, lasting legacy of support for individuals and
programs designed to provide the people of Ml with the best dental health
environment in the nation. To identify, develop and coordinate resources that will
ensure optimal quality and progressive dental health care for the people of Ml who
cannot access care the traditional ways.

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

(1,000.00)

22106053 581000 Health

Public Health

Perinatal Quality Collaborative Grant S.Lake 5/4/23
Agency: District Health Dept. #10

Source: Historical Data

Grant/Contract Period: FY24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: The grant provides funding that supports participation on the Region 4
West Ml Perinatal Quality Collaborative, which functions to help improve birth
outcomes.

Note: Org 22106053 funds approx. 9 FTEs. Note that 22106053 also has Medicaid
insurance revenue, Medicaid Cost Based Reimbursement revenue, and general fund
revenue.

Also note this is a local grant (non-state / non-fed).

(5,055.00)

22106074 581000 Health

Public Health

SEMHA LHD (Local Health Department) Small Grant (Zywicki 5/4/2023)
Agency: Southeastern MI Health Association (SEMHA)

Source: FY23 Grant Award

Grant/Contract Period: 10/1/23 - 9/30/24

FTEs: See note

Purpose: Increase family support, knowledge, and advocacy through
implementation of online/social media, family-centered support/educational groups
for families with children with special health care needs (including all children who
have, or are at increased risk for: medical, physical, developmental, behavioral, or
emotional conditions)

Note: Org 22106074 funds approx 0.25 FTE. Note that 22106074 has general fund
revenue.

(5,000.00)
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Adeline Hambley

From: Karen Karasinski

Sent: Thursday, August 10, 2023 7:57 AM

To: Adeline Hambley; Myra Ocasio

Cc: Nina Baranowski; Marcia Mansaray

Subject: RE: Public Health Budget/Funding clarifications

This is helpful Addie. Thank you.

If we get questions that are not financial, | feel very comfortable saying that we’ll need to add that to the 8/21 budget
work session and ask the experts to join us.

From: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>

Sent: Wednesday, August 9, 2023 7:13 PM

To: Karen Karasinski <kkarasinski@miottawa.org>; Myra Ocasio <mocasio@miottawa.org>

Cc: Nina Baranowski <nbaranowski@miottawa.org>; Marcia Mansaray <mmansaray@miottawa.org>
Subject: Public Health Budget/Funding clarifications

Hi Karen & Myra,

| wanted to send a quick follow-up to provide reference information regarding specific program funding and Public
Health’s budget.

Immunization Funding — Local public health is a mandated under law to provide and publicize immunizations to
the public, as such a portion of funding comes to us through the state. Removing funding does not remove the
requirement of local public health to provide these services.

Body Art Reimbursement — Body art facilities are required to be licensed to operate by the State of Michigan.
Similar to the food service (restaurant) license/inspection program, the licensing and inspection process helps to
verify safe practices are in place (such as handwashing and disinfection) to prevent the spread of disease. Local
public health is reimbursed for these inspections by the state from the licensing fee collected.

Family Planning — The family planning program is a critical part of public health, serving as a point-of-entry into
care for vulnerable populations and providing high-quality, affordable voluntary family planning and related
preventive health services, with priority given to low-income clients. It is required in law that family planning
services are provided for medically indigent individuals in the State of Michigan.

Title X Funding — Title X program plays an essential role in supporting access to high-quality services regardless
of a patient’s ability to pay. Title X funding provides contraceptive education and counseling; breast and cervical
cancer screening; testing for sexually transmitted infections and HIV, referral, and prevention education; and
pregnancy diagnosis. If Title X funding is not accepted by Ottawa County to provide services, services are still
required to be provided and funds will be redistributed to other agencies which could include Planned
Parenthood (which currently receives the funding in Kent County).

COVID grant funding — These funds are provided by the state to have been expanded beyond COVID only
activities and can now be used more broadly, including supplementing operations related to communicable
disease response. Much of the funding received is applied to administrative and overhead costs incurred. These
funds are essentially paid to county administration for supporting services provided and reduce the overall
amount of general funds utilized.

| hope this information is helpful reference, please let me know if you have additional questions or need additional
information.
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Thank you!

Adeline Hambley, MBA, PMP, REHS

Administrative Health Officer

Ottawa County Dept. of Public Health

12251 James Street, Suite 400 | Holland, Ml | 49424
616-393-5625 | miOttawa.org/health

miOttawa Department of

Public Health

Confidentiality notice: This message, including any attachments, is intended solely for the use of authorized recipient(s) and may contain confidential, privileged and/or
Protected Health Information as such term is defined under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure
or distribution of this communication(s) is expressly prohibited. If you are not an authorized recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy any and all copies
of the original message.
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Adeline Hambley

From: John Gibbs

Sent: Wednesday, August 16, 2023 9:31 AM

To: Adeline Hambley

Cc: Marcie VerBeek; Karen Karasinski; Myra Ocasio
Subject: Long-term unfilled, budgeted positions

Hi Addie!

As part of the FY2024 budget, we’re looking at positions in various departments that have been open and budgeted, yet
unfilled, for a long time, and if these could be eliminated from the budget in order to produce budgetary savings. Can
you please tell me if there’s any showstopper reason that the below positions, which remain posted and unfilled after
almost a year, should not be eliminated? Thank you!

Position Control list of benefited positions not filled in over six months
Location Desc Position Position Desc Date last filled
PH HEALTH EDUCATION 25910003 HEALTH EDUCATOR-PH 10/29/2022
PH FAMILY PLANNING 29100002 NURSE PRACTICNR-PH 10/11/2022
PH CLINIC CLERICAL 61850007 CLINIC SUPPORT-PH 10/17/2021

John Gibbs | County Administrator
12220 Fillmore Street | West Olive, Michigan 49460 | 616-738-4642

AS
e
Ottawa County

\Aherae Freadarm Rinoe
Where Freedom Rings
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Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Wednesday, August 16, 2023 9:35 AM

To: Marcia Mansaray; Nina Baranowski

Subject: Fwd: Long-term unfilled, budgeted positions

We can discuss these when we meet.

Adeline Hambley, MBA, PMP, REHS
Administrative Health Officer

Ottawa County Dept. of Public Health
(616) 393-5625

From: John Gibbs <jgibbs@miottawa.org>

Sent: Wednesday, August 16, 2023 9:30:54 AM

To: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>

Cc: Marcie VerBeek <mverbeek@miottawa.org>; Karen Karasinski <kkarasinski@miottawa.org>; Myra Ocasio
<mocasio@miottawa.org>

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

PS000030



Adeline Hambley

From: Nina Baranowski

Sent: Wednesday, August 16, 2023 1:09 PM

To: Adeline Hambley; Marcia Mansaray

Subject: RE: Long-term unfilled, budgeted positions

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

1. POSITION 25910003 VACANT007928 - 0.80 FTE budget was already backed out creating a $77,669 savings in
ORG 22129544 (STD).

2. POSITION 29100002 VACANTO007940 NURSE PRACTICNR-was identified as a phrase 2 backout. This HAS NOT
been backed out. ORG 22129531 .6FTE $85,478 savings. FY24 plan is to manage without the position, however,
concern about refuge inflow and an increase in FP visits may create a need to rehire next year. NP are doing
more than Family Planning visits currently, like Mpox and Hepatitis C treatments.

3. POSITION #61850007- Budget/position # reserved for Selica Becerra. She is working 50% Contact Tracing,
Testing, Infection Prevention and has a COVID Position #. However, she is 50% clinic and intends to return to
1FTE at some point. We already reduced 1 FTE to .5 FTE in FY24, creating a $34,367 savings with the assumption
that the COVID grants would be approved. We may need to add this budget back in if the COVID grants are not
approved.

In addition to the 3 noted above, we also adjusted:
0 VACANT POSITION (Formerly Helen Tarleton) 22660001 1 FTE $169,309 savings. Org 22129530 (Clinic)
O VACANT (ALBERDA HEATHER POSITION) 25910001 .2FTE, $9,281 total savings. ORG 22129544 (STD)
$927, ORG 22129580 (Covid Inequities) $1,858, ORG 22106310 (Health Promotion) $6,496

From: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>

Sent: Wednesday, August 16, 2023 9:35 AM

To: Marcia Mansaray <mmansaray@miottawa.org>; Nina Baranowski <nbaranowski@miottawa.org>
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

Sent: Wednesday, August 16, 2023 2:35 PM

To: John Gibbs

Cc: Marcie VerBeek; Karen Karasinski; Myra Ocasio
Subject: RE: Long-term unfilled, budgeted positions

Hi John,

Each year when completing budgets we review open positions and determine if they can be removed from the coming
year’s budget. These positions were reviewed in June when originally compiling budgets. Below is additional information
for each position.

e PH Health Education, Position #25910003, Health Promotions — Identified in June that position would not be
filled in FY 2024 and the cost of the position has already been backed out of the FY 2024 budget.

e PH Family Planning, Position #29100002, Nurse Practitioner — Position is vacant and not currently planned to
be filled, however, the position is still included in the FY 2024 budget as there may be a need to fill this position
in the new year. Currently programs are running very lean, and we are riding the line of being able to meet
minimum needs. However, with any changes in service levels this position will be needed. There are potential
programs on the horizon, such as federal refugee medical exams, that would necessitate filling this position.

e  PH Clinical Clerical, Position #61850007, Clinical Support — This full-time clinical support position is currently
filled by a long-time employee. The position is showing as vacant in the system as part of her FTE was being paid
by an Infection Prevention Grant in FY 2023. However, as the work is transitioning back to traditional duties, the
employee is being allocated back to this original position designation. It should be noted that a portion of this
position (0.5 FTE) has been budgeted to be supplemented with Infection Prevention Grant funds in FY 2024. If
this grant is not approved as part of the FY 2024 budget, 0.5 FTE cost will need to be added to Clinic Admin to
cover full cost of employee. For clarity, as this position is filled by a long-time Ottawa County employee, a hire
slip to correct position designation number has been submitted and costs will be allocated to the grant through
time & attendance timecard submittal.

| hope this helps to clarify these positions. Please let me know if you have additional questions.
Thank you!

Adeline Hambley, MBA, PMP, REHS

Administrative Health Officer

Ottawa County Dept. of Public Health

12251 James Street, Suite 400 | Holland, MI | 49424
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

Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 9:00 AM
To: Adeline Hambley

Subject: Budget Request

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Hi Addie!

Good morning and | hope all is well!

As you know, budget is in full swing. As part of that process, there’s some information I'd like to have available in the
likely event it comes up during budget deliberations at next Monday’s Finance Committee Special Work Session.

Please provide me with a budget scenario that includes both of the following components:

1) General fund expenditures for Public Health set at pre-COVID levels, adjusted for inflation. For reference, in
FY2019 — the last pre-COVID year — general fund expenditures for Public Health were approximately $4.5 million,
and in FY2023 general fund expenditures were approximately $6.7 million; and,

2) The exclusion of all FY24 COVID-related grants.

Please have this info ready by close of business Friday August 18
Thank you!

John Gibbs | County Administrator
12220 Fillmore Street | West Olive, Michigan 49460 | 616-738-4642

A
N4
Ottawa County

A are FraasAdasm Rinoe
Where Freedom Rir 185
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Adeline Hambley

From: Nina Baranowski

Sent: Thursday, August 17, 2023 12:54 PM
To: Adeline Hambley; Marcia Mansaray
Cc: Joe Zywicki

Subject: RE: Budget Request

Addie & Marcia- Here’s my response to #2, this may assist you in preparing a response. We can discuss it tomorrow at
1:30pm.

22129566 Contact Tracing, Testing, Infection Prevention- $1,246,340 federal grant
22129575 Covid Immunization- $359,090 federal grant

22129577 Covid Health Resource Advocate- $308,000 federal grant

22129581 Covid Workforce- $345,213 federal grant

If the COVID grants were eliminated, here’s some important things to keep in mind:

e POSITION #61850007 Clinic Support, .5 FTE salary would need to be moved back to clinic admin. This
equates to $34,367 (.5 FTE) that would need to be covered by the GF for Selica Becerra salary.

e 3 of the 4 grants would offset indirect expense (PH admin, Cost Allocation Plans) in FY24. Currently, we
have $305,291 budgeted in indirect expense in these COVID grants. If these grants are eliminated, we
would need to respread the $305,291 in indirect expense back to the other PH ORGS.

e 3 of the 4 grants would help to offset additional payroll expense (Epi’s, Imms, CD, Medical Director, etc.)
and misc. operational items/software (EX: SPSS) in FY24, which would create a GF savings.

e The grants are supporting 5 positions (100%):

AARON D. STAUFFER Employee No. 6173- 1 FTE

WILLIAM (Damien) REED Employee No. 6244 Health Educator .6 FTE
JESSICA L. COONEY-DAVIS- Employee No. 6202- .48 FTE

JILL E. BANNINK-ALBRECHT. Employee No. 4674- .48 FTE

BRIANNA M. FLOWERS Employee No. 6392- 1 FTE

As a side note, | will be back home tomorrow at 1:30pm, so | can work tomorrow afternoon and cancel my PTO if
needed. Joe will be available all day tomorrow to pull any information you need.

Nina

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

1
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

Please have this info ready by close of business Friday August 18",

Thank you!

John Gibbs | County Administrator
12220 Fillmore Street | West Olive, Michigan 49460 | 616-738-4642

D
N4
Ottawa County

Where Freedom Rings
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Adeline Hambley

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject

FYI

Adeline Hambley
Thursday, August 17, 2023 1:07 PM
Doug Zylstra
: FW: Long-term unfilled, budgeted positions

Adeline Hambley, MBA, PMP, REHS
Administrative Health Officer

Ottawa

County Dept. of Public Health

12251 James Street, Suite 400 | Holland, MI | 49424
616-393-5625 | miOttawa.org/health

miOtawa Department of

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

To: John Gibbs <jgibbs@miottawa.org>

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

PH Health Education, Position #25910003, Health Promotions — Identified in June that position would not be
filled in FY 2024 and the cost of the position has already been backed out of the FY 2024 budget.

PH Family Planning, Position #29100002, Nurse Practitioner — Position is vacant and not currently planned to
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

PH Clinical Clerical, Position #61850007, Clinical Support — This full-time clinical support position is currently
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

As part of the FY2024 budget, we're looking at positions in various departments that have been open and budgeted, yet
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

Sent: Friday, August 18, 2023 4:46 PM

To: John Gibbs

Subject: RE: Budget Request

Attachments: 2023.08.18 Public Health Budget Request Information .pdf
Hi John,

See attached for information addressing the components requested below.
Have a wonderful weekend!

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
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2024 Public Health Budget Request August 18, 2023

John, you requested additional information yesterday on the Public Health fiscal year 2024 budget. Given the
short timeframe, | have tried to compile the pertinent information to provide context to help equip you to best
advise the Board. As you know, the services carried out by public health are mandated through the Michigan
Constitution, state or federal laws, or local regulations. A serviceable level of funding maintains the system that
protects our people from unsafe or hazardous conditions and prevents disease.

Request:
Please provide me with a budget scenario that includes both of the following components:

1) General fund expenditures for Public Health set at pre-COVID levels, adjusted for
inflation. For reference, in FY2019 — the last pre-COVID year — general fund
expenditures for Public Health were approximately 54.5 million, and in FY2023 general
fund expenditures were approximately 56.7 million; and,

2) The exclusion of all FY24 COVID-related grants.

Summary

e Ottawa County Department of Public Health is required to pay for Ottawa County administrative
expenses, often referred to as indirect costs. These costs are based on actual costs for Administration,
Corporation Counsel, Human Resources, IT, Fiscal Services, Facilities Maintenance, and other support
departments.

0 The fiscal year 2024 budget for administrative expenses shows a nearly 40% increase in cost
over the 2019 budget, after adjusting the 2019 budget for population and inflation, and over a
76% increase when compared to the actual, unadjusted 2019 budget.

e Comparatively, the Public Health general fund operational budget (funds used for direct community
services) shows just over a 10% increase in cost over the 2019 budget, after adjusting the 2019 budget
for population and inflation, and a 39% increase when compared to the actual, unadjusted 2019 budget.

e COVID-19 related grants total over $2.2 million dollars. These federal funds can be used for mandated
services beyond COVID-19, including for the prevention of communicable diseases and outbreak
investigation.

0 Over $300,000 of these grant funds are utilized to pay for Ottawa County administrative
expenses.

0 There are nearly 100 communicable diseases beyond COVID-19 that are nationally reportable
and require public health action. For a complete list of reportable communicable diseases click
here.

e These state and federal grant funds are taxpayer dollars that are coming back to the community for
services provided in Ottawa County. If denied, these taxpayer dollars are reallocated to other
communities in the state and Ottawa County residents will have to “pay” a second time through their
property taxes for these mandated services.

e Ottawa County Department of Public Health has operated with general fund operational contributions
only recently reaching the same funding levels of 15 years ago, not adjusted for population or inflation.
Over this same period Ottawa County’s:

0 Population increased by nearly 20% (almost 50,000 people).

O Property tax revenue has nearly doubled.

Page 1 of 6
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2024 Public Health Budget Request August 18, 2023

Request 1: General Fund — Public Health Set at Pre-COVID-19 Levels Adjusted for Inflation

You requested using a pre-COVID-19 general fund amount and adjusting for inflation. To give a better view of
current funding levels when compared to previous years, it is helpful to expand the historical reference beyond
2019.

Figure 1. General Fund Contribution for Public Health Operations by Year

General Fund Contribution for Operations* by Year
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*Does not include county indirect dollars Year

In Figure 1, the blue line traces the County’s general fund contribution to Public Health operations over time
back to the early 2000s. It is evident that the Public Health department faced dramatic and sustained cuts
following the Great Recession of 2008-2009. Even though Ottawa County’s property tax revenue has been
increasing since 2015—in fact nearly doubling since 2015 (see Figure 2), the Public Health general fund
operational contribution (those funds used for direct community services) for the Public Health department is
only now reaching the 2008 level of funding. It should be noted that these are actual funding levels that do not
account for the increases in cost of living, recent inflationary pressures, nor the addition of nearly 50,000 more
constituents to the county since 2008.

Page 2 of 6
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2024 Public Health Budget Request August 18, 2023

Figure 2 illustrates that the County’s property tax revenue for the provision of services has more than doubled
between 2002 and 2022. By 2024, it is likely to have tripled due to the combination of inflation of the dollar and
the addition of about 60,000 new residents to the County by 2024.

Figure 2
Ottawa County Property Tax Revenue by Year
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Public Health has been chronically underfunded, but this department has managed to run very lean and, while
not funded at optimal levels, has maintained minimum program requirements. In fact, as is demonstrated in
county health rankings and many vital statistics, Ottawa County’s population health has thrived compared to its
peers. This has been accomplished with general fund operational contributions only recently reaching the same
funding levels of 15 years ago, not adjusted for population or inflation, even in an inflationary environment.
However, there is a tipping point where further budget cuts risk the ability to maintain serviceable levels for
programs and risk compromising the health and safety of constituents.

Page 3 of 6
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2024 Public Health Budget Request August 18, 2023

The funding disparity becomes even more apparent when adjusting fiscal year 2008 funding for inflation and

population growth.

Figure 3
General Fund Operational Contribution to Public Health with and
without Inflation and Population Growth Adjustments
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Figure 3 illustrates actual general fund operational contributions (blue line) and compares this to adjusted
general fund operational contributions pre-recession (2008). The orange line above projects general fund
operational contribution funding levels adjusted for inflation utilizing the consumer price index (CPI). The red
dotted line adjusts the general fund operational contribution funding levels for inflation (CPI) and for population

growth.

The adjusted contribution using inflation and population growth provides a more realistic budget amount to
provide mandated services at an optimal level. This amount, just over $8.5 million, incorporates the same
pressures, population growth and inflation, that are directly tied to the increasing tax revenue — even with the 6"
lowest property tax millage in Michigan. $8.5 million is almost double the amount reflected in the fiscal year

2024 recommended budget that has been presented to the Board of Commissioners.

Page 4 of 6
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2024 Public Health Budget Request August 18, 2023

Specifically looking at Public Health budget numbers at 2019 levels, and adjusting them for inflation and
population, further illustrates that the fiscal year 2024 proposed Public Health general fund operational budget
has remained relatively flat in recent years. Table 1 below shows that the general fund operational contribution
for the fiscal year 2024 proposed budget is $4,763,074. When the fiscal year 2019 actual budget is adjusted for
inflation and population, the 2019 adjusted budget amount is $4,315,142. This means the proposed budget for
fiscal year 2024 general fund operational contribution is $447,932 higher than adjusted 2019 levels, just over a
10% increase.

Ottawa County Department of Public Health is required to pay for Ottawa County administrative expenses. These
costs are based on actual costs and include Administration, Corporation Counsel, Human Resources, IT, Fiscal
Services, Facilities Maintenance, and other support departments. Of note, the same comparison for general fund
dollars allocated for County administrative expenses (Administration, IT, HR, Corporation Counsel, Fiscal Services,
etc.) shows a far higher increase of nearly 40%, or $472,440. It is important to point out that Public Health has
experienced the same inflationary pressures on supplies, materials, wages, benefits, etc. that have acted to
increase the County administrative expenses.

Table 1. Public Health Budget at 2019 Levels Adjusted for Inflation and Population Increase

General Fund
Amount Allocated
to County
General Fund Administrative
Amount for PH Expenses (Admin, Total General Fund
Operations IT, HR, etc.) Contribution
2024 Recommended
Budget $4,763,074 $1,664,989 $6,428,063
2019 Adopted Budget $3,416,513 $944,201 $4,360,714
+ CPl Adjustment* $732,662 $202,481 $935,144
+ Population $165,967 S45,867 $211,834
Adjustment**
2019 Adjusted Budget $4,315,142 $1,192,549 S$5,507,692
2024 Recommended $447,932 $472,440 $920,371
Budget Increase Over
2019 Adjusted Budget
Amount
% Increase Over 2019 10.4% 39.6% 16.7%
Adjusted Budget Amount

*Bureau of Labor & Statistics Consumer Price Index (CPl) inflation calculator for goods and services in the U.S. CPI inflation measure
is typically lower than the inflationary increases for healthcare and higher education. **The expected population growth of 4% from
July 2019 to July 2024, calculated by averaging the amount of growth observed between years of 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022.

Page 5 of 6
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2024 Public Health Budget Request August 18, 2023

If the budget is amended to the fiscal year 2019 budget values adjusted for inflation and population, the total
realized savings to the general fund is not $920,371 as noted in Table 1. County administrative expenses
represent actual costs, therefore the $1,664,989 budgeted in 2024 would not be reduced. As shown in Table 2
the total realized savings to the general fund budget by amending the 2024 budget to the 2019 budget adjusted
for inflation and population is $447,932.

Table 2. Potential Realized Decrease in General Fund Contribution by Amending the 2024 Budget
to the 2019 Budget Adjusted for Inflation and Population.

General Fund
Amount Allocated
to County
General Fund Administrative
Amount for PH Expenses (Admin, Total General Fund
Operations IT, HR, etc.) Contribution
2024 Current
Recommended Budget $4,763,074 $1,664,989 $6,428,063
2024 Budget with 2019 $4,315,142 $1,664,989 $5,980,131
Corrected Rates
Potential Decrease to $447,932 SO $447,932
2024 General Fund

Request 2: Exclusion of FY 2024 COVID-19 Grant Funding

Various federal dollars have been allocated to flow back to communities including Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP) loans, American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds, CARES Act direct payments to individuals and families,
extended unemployment benefits to furloughed employees, and funds to support schools, among others. The
specific federal grants related to public health services included in the fiscal year 2024 budget, which support
maintenance of required services, are taxpayer dollars that are coming back to the community for services
provided in Ottawa County. If denied, these taxpayer dollars are reallocated to other communities in the state,
meaning Ottawa County residents will have to “pay” a second time through their property taxes for these
mandated services.

Ottawa County is required to prevent and control the spread of communicable disease beyond COVID-19. There
are nearly 100 communicable diseases other than COVID-19 that are nationally reportable and require public
health action. The largest grant, just over $1.2 million, is designated for infection prevention services which
include communicable disease investigation and prevention activities such as the cryptosporidium outbreak
response earlier this spring. These grant funds are also utilized to help offset over $300,000 of county
administrative expenses (Administration, IT, HR, Corporate Counsel, Fiscal Services, etc.).

Adeline Hambley
Administrative Health Officer

Page 6 of 6
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Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley
Sent: Friday, August 18, 2023 4:47 PM
To: Adeline Hambley; Alison Clark; Deborah Price; Derel Glashower; Gwen Unzicker; Kris Conrad; Lisa

Uganski; Marcia Mansaray; Nina Baranowski; Sandra Lake; Spencer Ballard; Tony Benjamin
Subject: FW: Budget Request
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

To: Karen Karasinski; Myra Ocasio

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

To: Doug Zylstra

Subject: FW: Budget Request

Attachments: 2023.08.18 Public Health Budget Request Information .pdf
Hi Doug,

Let me know if you have any questions.
Thank you,

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

HiJohn,

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

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 8:17 AM

To: Adeline Hambley; Marcia Mansaray

Subject: Egrams Contract and Project Descriptions- FY24 DRAFT

Attachments: FY24 CO Egrams Draft Contract.pdf; FY24 CO Attachment 3.pdf; FY24 Emerging Threats Draft

Contract.pdf; FY24 Attachment 3 Emerging Threats.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Nina Baranowski

Public Health Financial Manager

Ottawa County | Stay informed. Subscribe

12251 James Street, Suite 400 | Holland, Michigan 49424 | 616-393-4418
nbaranowski@miOttawa.org | www.miQttawa.org
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Adeline Hamblez

From: John Gibbs

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 12:20 PM
To: Adeline Hambley

Cc: Karen Karasinski; Jordan Epperson
Subject: FY24 Budget Request

Hi Addie,

Good afternoon!

As discussed yesterday, the Finance & Administration Committee would like to see the Public Health budget in line with
historical levels before COVID. Please work with Fiscal Services to work out the details of a budget using $2.5

million general fund contribution and also discontinuing all COVID-related grants.

Please send this to me by Thursday August 23 close of business.

Thank you!

20-YEAR REVIEW AND FORECAST

Year 2008 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Amandad 2024
|Total $9,545586 $9,243,028 $9,597.501 $7,620.769 58,339,119 $8834.228 50518190 $8902.212 $10434964 59707477 $12452360 $13065093 $14107.180 $15334409 S 18,160,034 $8967.821
Public Health
£30,000,000
: Government response to covid
$18,000,000

516,000,000

£14,000,000

$12,000,000
410,000,000 |
$8,000,000 — B
56.000,000
$4,000,000
£2.000,000
4
2009 208

2010 2041 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 a7

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Amended

John Gibbs | County Administrator
12220 Fillmore Street | West Olive, Michigan 49460 | 616-738-4642

A,

Ottawa County

Where Freedom Rings
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Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 12:22 PM

To: Adeline Hambley; Alison Clark; Deborah Price; Derel Glashower; Gwen Unzicker; Kris Conrad; Lisa
Uganski; Marcia Mansaray; Nina Baranowski; Sandra Lake; Spencer Ballard; Tony Benjamin

Subject: FW: FY24 Budget Request

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

Cc: Karen Karasinski <kkarasinski@miottawa.org>; Jordan Epperson <jepperson@miottawa.org>

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

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 4:59 PM
To: John Gibbs

Cc: Karen Karasinski; Jordan Epperson
Subject: RE: FY24 Budget Request

Hi John,

Commissioner Moss’ proposal would slash Health Department funding from a $6.4 million total general fund
contribution to a total of $2.5 million, a reduction of over 60%. This action brings the total operating budget for 2024 to
$500,000 less than the 2009 budget, which was during the worst economic conditions the United States has experienced
since The Great Depression. The demand for this reduction comes at a time when the County is experiencing significant
population growth and record high property tax revenue.

Proposed budget reductions of this size will significantly impair, and likely eliminate, various public health services and
the Health Department’s ability to maintain public health and safety. It is ridiculous to expect that services in 2024 could
be completed with a budget below 2009 funding levels. For example, as development ground to a halt during The Great
Recession, only 38 evaluations were completed for vacant property to determine suitability for home construction with
a septic system. In 2021, over 200 evaluations were completed, a number that has continued to grow each year, as has
demand for many other Health Department services.

In addition to cutting general fund allocation, the Commission is proposing to give up a significant amount of grant
money, allegedly because of various political considerations. This grant money is used for various purposes including
preventing the spread of communicable disease and health risks other than COVID-19. This hurts Ottawa County
taxpayers in a variety of ways and is fiscally short-sighted. These actions may necessitate large increases in fees for
services that our businesses and citizens depend upon, and/or long delays for completion of services.

If the Commission moves forward with this level of budget-slashing, | believe it will be a clear act of unlawful retaliation
against me for bringing a wrongful termination suit for attempting to remove me as the appointed Administrative Health
Officer, and for the trial court’s decision to grant me judgement on that claim. Moreover, such actions may subject the
County to other legal consequences, such as the issuance of an administrative compliance order to the local governing
entity by the State of Michigan for failure to demonstrate adequate provision of required services to the community.

Yesterday you explained to the Commissioners that you did not feel they could ask other departments to cut 5% in this
budget cycle as the process was complex, and it was recommended an external consultant be hired to identify
efficiencies without sacrificing services. However, Public Health is being asked to cut more than 10 times that in just two
days. | will do my best, but you are asking me to complete a task of cutting over 60% of the budget by Thursday at 5pm.
It does not appear that the information previously shared with you was reviewed by all members of the Finance and
Administration Work Session Committee. This is important information for all members of the Board to review to inform
their decision. If the Board wishes to hear from me on these issues | will be available.

Adeline Hambley, MBA, PMP, REHS

Administrative Health Officer

Ottawa County Dept. of Public Health

12251 James Street, Suite 400 | Holland, Ml | 49424
616-393-5625 | miOttawa.org/health
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m Otawa Department of

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

Year 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Total $9,545,586 $9,243,028 $9,597,501 $7,620,769 $8,339,119 $8,834,228 $9,518,190 $8,902,212 $10,434,964 $9,707

Public
$20,000,000
$18,000,000
$16,000,000
$14,000,000

512,000,000

$10,000,000

$8,000,000

$6,000,000

54,000,000

$2,000,000
5-

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

PS000052



Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 4:59 PM
To: Doug Zylstra

Subject: FW: FY24 Budget Request

Per your previous request regarding information shared on FY 24 budget requests.

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

PS000053



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

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 5:04 PM

To: Adeline Hambley; Alison Clark; Deborah Price; Derel Glashower; Gwen Unzicker; Kris Conrad; Lisa
Uganski; Marcia Mansaray; Nina Baranowski; Sandra Lake; Spencer Ballard; Tony Benjamin

Subject: FW: FY24 Budget Request

FYI—feel free to share with your teams if you would like.

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

From: Alison Clark

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 8:43 PM
To: Shannon Felgner; John Gibbs

Cc: Adeline Hambley

Subject: FOX 17 Interview

John and Shannon,
Just informing you that Adeline did an interview with FOX 17 on the budget tonight.

Thank you,
Alison

Alison Clark

(she/her/hers)

Communications Specialist/Public Information Officer
12251 James Street, Suite 400 | Holland, Ml 49424

Office: (616) 494-5597 | Mobne:”
uding any attachments, is intended solely for the use of the authorized recipient(s) and may contain

Confidentiality Notice: This message, incl
confidential, privileged and/or Protected Health Information as such term is defined under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996
(HIPAA). Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution of this communication(s) is expressly prohibited. If you are not an authorized recipient,
please contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy any and all copies of the original message.
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Adeline Hambley

From: John Gibbs

Sent: Wednesday, August 23, 2023 8:32 AM
To: Adeline Hambley

Cc: Karen Karasinski; Jordan Epperson
Subject: Re: FY24 Budget Request

Hi Addie,

Good morning!

Thank you for sharing the information below.

Please proceed with producing a budget with a general fund contribution as close to the below-directed level as
possible, which discontinues all COVID-related grants.

Thank you!

John Gibbs | County Administrator
12220 Fillmore Street | West Olive, Michigan 49460 | 616-738-4642

D
N4
Ottawa County

\AMharas Fraasdsm Rinoe
Where Freedom Rings

From: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 4:58 PM

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

Sent: Wednesday, August 23, 2023 10:29 AM

To: Gwen Unzicker; Marcia Mansaray; Nina Baranowski
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

Sent: Wednesday, August 23, 2023 7:13 PM
To: John Gibbs; Shannon Felgner

Cc: Adeline Hambley

Subject: Media Interviews

John and Shannon,

| apologize for the late delivery of this email as | was out of the office today. However, | wanted to let you know that
Addie did an interview with WOOD TV 8 today. The story aired at 5 and 6 tonight. She also did an interview with Robin
Erb at Bridge Michigan, but | am not aware of when/if that piece will be posted.

Thank you,
Alison

Alison Clark

(she/her/hers)

Communications Specialist/Public Information Officer
12251 James Street, Suite 400 | Holland, Ml 49424

Office: (616) 494-5597 | Mobile:_
Confidentiality Notice: This message, including any attachments, is intended solely for the use of the authorized recipient(s) and may contain

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

Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 5:08 PM

To: John Gibbs

Cc: Karen Karasinski; Jordan Epperson

Subject: RE: FY24 Budget Request

Attachments: 2023.08.24 FY24 Budget Reduction Request Follow-up.pdf
Hi John,

Please see attached for my response to this request. In working with Fiscal Services, it is impossible to create an exact
budget as the Health Department is unable to operate at this funding level. Many grants and state funding require a
match or minimum funding levels from the local governing entity in order to receive funds. If the local governing entity
is not able to fund mandated programs at minimum specified levels, the state funding does not get passed to the local
governing entity. The state can issue an administrative compliance order for a local governing entity that does
demonstrate adequate provision of required services to the community. There is no way for me to create a budget that
meets Public Health Code requirements and the minimum maintenance of effort---thus no state funding would be
received, and ultimately the health department would no longer be able to operate.

| am also unable to address removing from the budget “all COVID related grants” as | am unclear as to how that is being
defined. There are grants that have COVID as a word in the title or description but are not related to COVID cases,
reporting or vaccines. | will need a specific list from the Intergovernmental Revenue list that was provided to move
forward with this request.

Again, the budget is complex with many interconnect pieces that may be better served by a conversation with Karen to
meet any reduction request.

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
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OCDPH FY2024 Budget Reduction Request Follow-up August 24, 2023

Request:
As discussed yesterday, the Finance & Administration Committee would like to see the Public Health
budget in line with historical levels before COVID. Please work with Fiscal Services to work out the
details of a budget using 52.5 million general fund contribution and also discontinuing all COVID-
related grants.

The significant and retaliatory cuts requested on behalf of Commissioner Moss are an attempt to achieve
political victory over COVID-19 at the expense of Ottawa County citizens. It is being suggested that the general
fund amount of $2.5 million is bringing the budget back in line with average pre-COVID-19 funding levels.
However, this cut is not returning to “historic budget levels”; at no point in the last 20 years has the total general
fund allocation to Public Health been $2.5 million.

PUBLIC HEALTH GENERAL FUND BUDGETED AMOUNTS 2009 - 2020

| Fos | Fvio | P | ez | P3| Fe | Fas | rFae | P17 | Fas [ Fria | Fv20 |

TOTAL
GENERALFUND 4798869 $4,055311 $3,992,341 $3,761,261 $3,648,130 $3,382,719 $3,379,710 $3,379,710 $4,489,636 $4,309,423 54,360,714  $3,727,297

General Fund
County Admin.
Overhead $510,853 $449,944 $540,854 §557,624 $616,091 $624,159 $655,857 $514,114 $544,793 $741,755 $944,201 $1,108,682
GENERAL FUND
PUBLIC HEALTH
OPERATIONS $3,788,016  $3,605367 $3,451,487 $3,203,637 53,032,039 52,758,560 52,723,853  $2,865,596  $3,944,843 53,567,668 53,416,513  $2,618,615

Total General Fund: Total General Fund tax revenue allocated to Public Health to fund services and County Administrative

Overhead (e.g. Administrator, Corporation Counsel, IT, HR, etc.)

General Fund County Admin. Overhead: Total cost to pay for support services from the County (e.g. Administrator,
Corporation Counsel, IT, HR, etc.). These costs are not allowable costs for determining required maintenance of effort to
minimally support public health services.

General Fund Public Health Operations: County tax revenue utilized to directly support public health services for the
community.

These cuts do not save taxpayers money but serve to reduce services that the County is required to provide to
protect the health and safety of the community. It strips citizens of the services they are guaranteed under the
law and the rights they are granted under the Michigan Constitution. These actions are not fiscally conservative
but fiscally, and legally, irresponsible.
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OCDPH FY2024 Budget Reduction Request Follow-up August 24, 2023

The proposed $2.5 million in general fund contribution is an 88% reduction in general funds available to provide
services to the community. Nearly 67% of the $2.5 million is being used to fund County Administrative expenses.
This does not meet the minimum maintenance of effort to provide mandated programs as is required by law.

Public Health Operational Funds Original Budget vs Commissioner Requested Budget

Original Budget as Commissioner

0,
Submitted Requested Budget Ol
Total General Fund Contribution $6,678,063 $2,500,000 -63%
Minus CMH Millage Transfer (Pathways) (5250,000) (5250,000) 0%
Minus County Administrative Expenses o
(Administration, Corporate Counsel, IT, Fiscal, HR, etc.) (1,664,989) (51,664,989) he
General Fund Available for Public Health Operating Expenses $4,763,074 $585,011 -88%

The request to create a budget that discontinues “all COVID-related grants” hurts Ottawa County taxpayers in a
variety of ways and is fiscally short-sighted. There are grants that have COVID in the name or the description,
however they are designed to cover various public health purposes including preventing the spread of
communicable disease and health risks other than COVID-19. These actions may necessitate large increases in
fees for services that our businesses and citizens depend upon, long delays for completion of services, or
elimination of services.

Outcomes for these actions
e 88% cut in operational general funding (from $4,178,063 to $585,000).
e No federal or state funding will be received due to local governing entity requirements not being met.

e Many grant funds would not be able to be accepted due to the inability to provide a local general fund
match.

e 12 mandated or community need-based programs will be eliminated by October 1, 2023, such as:
Children’s Special Health Care Services, Dental Sealant Program and Miles of Smiles Mobile Dental Office
for school children, Maternal and Infant Health Program for pregnant moms and infants, Family Planning
and Women'’s Health Services, Ottawa Food, Suicide Prevention Coalition, Pathways to Better Health, and
others.

e Loss of public health knowledge and expertise through loss of staff and programs that will take many
years and many dollars to rebuild.

e Actions may subject the County to legal consequences:

0 Issuance of an administrative compliance order to the local governing entity by the State of
Michigan for failure to demonstrate adequate provision of required services to the community.

0 Unlaw retaliatory actions against the Health Officer will lead to additional claims being filed in
court.

e May risk the over $15 million in state funding received by all Ottawa County departments and programs
(including Veteran Affairs, Elections, Juvenile Court, Community Corrections, Sheriff’s Office, Prosecuting
Attorney, etc.).

0 The state legislature passed a budget that requires local governments to report any action or
policy that attempts to restrict or interfere with the duties of the local health officer.
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OCDPH FY2024 Budget Reduction Request Follow-up August 24, 2023

0 Funding at this level severely restricts and interferes with the duties of the health officer as are
stated in law.

Scenario 1
e Running only minimum essential services and mandated public health administration, Ottawa County
Public Health would close doors in 4 weeks — by the end of October 2023.

Scenario 2

e Applying all of the general fund available to five essential services that cannot charge fees: Hearing
Screening Program, Vision Screening Program, Immunizations and Waivers Program, Sexually
Transmitted Disease Testing and Treatment Program and Communicable Disease Program

0 These essential services would be able to operate for 7 weeks, starting October 1, 2023.

e Programs that charge fees for service would remain and fees would increase to cover full cost of

operation:
1. Food Program — Food safety inspections (restaurants, food trucks, schools, etc.), complaint
inspections, outbreak investigation.

0 Fees are estimated to triple to cover cost of program. A fixed restaurant license would
increase from $700 to up to $2100 per license.

2. Onsite Wastewater/Drinking Water Program — Drinking water well permits and monitoring, sewage
disposal permits for repair and new construction for homes and businesses.

0 Fees are estimated to triple to cover cost of program. A drinking water well would increase
from $400 up to $1200, and a new sewage disposal permit would increase from $535 up to
$1605.

3. Real Estate Transfer Evaluations — Inspection of well and sewage disposal system inspections prior
to sale of home or business to evaluate for function and safety.

0 Fees charged are estimated to double or triple to cover cost to maintain. A full real estate
transfer evaluation would increase from $300 up to $900 per inspection.

Every public health program will be at risk under the unreasonable general fund budget allocation
requested by Administrator Gibbs on behalf of the Board of Commissioners. While the impact of the
Board of Commissioners actions may not be felt immediately, these actions will have lasting and long-
term effects on individuals, business, organization, and the entire community as they risk the health of
each person who lives or works in Ottawa County.

Adeline Hambley
Administrative Health Officer
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Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 5:11 PM

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

FYl—please let your teams know to hang in there and we are continuing to advocate for the community.

Adeline Hambley, MBA, PMP, REHS

Administrative Health Officer

Ottawa County Dept. of Public Health

12251 James Street, Suite 400 | Holland, Ml | 49424
616-393-5625 | miOttawa.org/health

mOttawa Department of

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

Per your request to keep you updated on budget requests.

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

From: Doug Zylstra

Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 5:16 PM
To: Adeline Hambley

Subject: Re: FY24 Budget Request

Thank you Adeline. | appreciate all your work to continue keeping Ottawa County residents safe.

Doug

Doug Zylstra | Commissioner | District 3 | City of Holland

€ 616-443-4281
dzylstra@miOttawa.org

On Aug 24, 2023, at 5:11 PM, Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org> wrote:

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

<image001.png>

Confidentiality notice: This message, including any attachments, is intended solely for the use of authorized recipient(s) and may contain confidential,
privileged and/or Protected Health Information as such term is defined under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA).
Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution of this communication(s) is expressly prohibited. If you are not an authorized recipient, please
contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy any and all copies of the original message.

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

Please see attached for my response to this request. In working with Fiscal Services, it is impossible to
create an exact budget as the Health Department is unable to operate at this funding level. Many grants
and state funding require a match or minimum funding levels from the local governing entity in order to

1
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Adeline Hamblex

From: Alison Clark

Sent: Thursday, August 24, 2023 5:20 PM
To: Shannon Felgner; John Gibbs

Cc: Adeline Hambley

Subject: WZZM 13 Interview

Hi Shannon and John,

Adeline did an interview on the budget with WZZM 13 this afternoon. It will air tonight. | expect more inquiries and will
provide you a list of anything additional at the close of business tomorrow.

Thanks,
Alison

Alison Clark

(she/her/hers)

Communications Specialist/Public Information Officer
12251 James Street, Suite 400 | Holland, Ml 49424
Office: (616) 494-5597

w Ottawa Department of

Public Health
OwvoMmD

Confidentiality Notice: This message, including any attachments, is intended solely for the use of the authorized recipient(s) and may
contain confidential, privileged and/or Protected Health Information as such term is defined under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution of this communication(s) is expressly
prohibited. If you are not an authorized recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy any and all copies of the
original message.
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Adeline Hambley

From: Gretchen Cosby

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 3:24 PM
To: Adeline Hambley

Cc: John Gibbs

Subject: Information request for budget

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Good afternoon Adeline,

During the Budget Work Session on Monday, | requested the following information to help with budget decisions for
FY2024:

Number of current health department programs.

Descriptions of the programs and services.

Number of residents served by the individual program.

Resources required- human/FTE’s and supplies to provide the program.
Intended outcomes and current outcomes.

e wN R

| am interested in learning more about your business and believe that my background as a nurse will be helpful as we
plan for a healthier Ottawa County in 2024.

Thank you for your assistance.
Gretchen
Gretchen Cosby MSN, RN | County Commissioner, District |

Subscribe to County News
12220 Fillmore Street | West Olive, Michigan 49460 | 616-980-7773

Ottawa County
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Adeline Hambley

From: John Gibbs

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 3:53 PM
To: Karen Karasinski

Cc: Adeline Hambley

Subject: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget
Attachments: 82421-packet.PDF.pdf

Hi Karen,

Good afternoon.

Please take the following action to draft Public Health’s budget:

1. Set the Public Health general fund contribution to $2.5 million, and then have Public Health use a portion ($1.3
million) of their $3 million fund balance to reach $3.8 million, the average general fund contribution from 2009
to 2019. Please transfer $1.5 million of the remaining Public Health fund balance to the County’s contingency
fund (unless specific parameters prevent it).

2. Eliminate all COVID positions approved at the August 24, 2021 Full Board of Commissioners meeting, totaling
$2,179,153. (See the attached for more info)

3. Eliminate the following COVID-19 related grants, and any general fund contribution to programs funded by
these grants

0 PHEP 9 Month Grant
PHEP 3 Month Grant
PHEP to provide training for a new Public Health Emergency Preparedness Manager
Immunization Action Plan (Note: keep grant, remove general fund contribution)
Immunization ELPHS (Note: keep grant, remove general fund contribution)
COVID-19 SUD
GCD ELPHS - Disease Control
Contact Tracing
COVID Immunization
Reopening Schools HRA
NNICE Vaccine COVID-19
COVID Workforce Development to expand

O OO0 O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0oOOoOOo

For any additional details, please work with Nina and Kris to set the exact budget numbers within the above parameters.

Thank you,

John Gibbs | County Administrator
12220 Fillmore Street | West Olive, Michigan 49460 | 616-738-4642

A8

4
Ottawa County

Where Freedom Rings
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Action Request
Committee: Board of Commissioners
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021

A».q Requesting . Human Resources
) Department:
. Submitted By: Marcie Ver Beek
Ottawa County -4
Where Yo B Itgen a Public Health Personnel Request
‘ em:

Suggested Motion:

To approve the request from Public Health to add 17 full-time, benefited positions and 25 part-time,
non-benefited positions at a total cost of $2,179,153.00 to be paid for with federal and state grant funding.

Summary of Request:

The COVID-19 pandemic has created an immense demand for extra services from the Ottawa County Department of Public Health. This demand necessitates
an increase in staffing to respond effectively to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The Ottawa County Department of Public Health has recently received over
$2,600,000 in state and federal grant funding through the Stage of Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS). This grant funding will cover
the cost of the requested positions in their entirety. The positions will end when the grant funding is eliminated.

Please see the attached page for additional justification regarding the staffing need.
Full time, benefited positions:

. Add 1 Public Health Team Supervisor (Unclassified, pay grade U-6) ata 1.0 FTE at a cost of $102,226.
. Add 7 Health Educators (Group T, pay grade T-13) at 1.0 FTE's at a cost of $618,488.

. Add 1 EH Specialist (Group T, pay grade T-11) ata 1.0 FTE at a cost of $87,813.

Add 3 Clinic Support positions (Group T, pay grade T-6) at 1.0 FTE's at a cost of $194,405.

Add 1 Clinic Support/Health Technician (Group T, paygrade T-8) at a 1.0 FTE at a cost of $76,895.

Add 1 Communication Specialist (Unclassified, pay grade U-5A) at a 1.0 FTE at a cost of $98,481.

Add 2 Nurses at (Group N, Nurse pay grade) at 1.0 FTE's at a cost of $190,549.

. Add 1 Epidemiologist (Unclassified, pay grade U-7) at a 1.0 FTE at a cost of $109,939.

PNOORWN

Part-time, non-benefited positions:

9. Add 6 Technical Support positions (Non-benefited) at 1000 hours per year at a cost of $118,651.
10. Add 12 Health Educators (Non-benefited) at 1000 hours per year at a cost of $344,985.
11. Add 7 Nurses (Non-benefited) at 1000 hours per year at a cost of $236,715.

Financial Information:

Total Cost: General Fund Included in
$2,179,153.00 Cost. $0.00 Budget: [] Yes No | CIN/A

If not included in budget, recommended funding source:
State and federal COVID-19 Response Grant Funds

Action is Related to an Activity Which ls: Mandated [] Non-Mandated [] New Activity
Action is Related to Strategic Plan:
Goal: Goal 2: To Contribute to the Long-Term Economic, Social and Environmental Health of the County.

Goal 4: To Continually Improve the County’s Organization and Services.

Objective: Goal 2, Objective 2: Consider initiatives that contribute to the social health and sustainability of the County and its’ residents.

Goal 4, Objective 3: Maintain and expand investments in the human resources and talent of the organization.

Administration: cpmmended [CINot Recommended [Jwithout Recommendation
County Administrator: &.

Committee/Governing/Advisory Board Approval %le: 08/17/2021 Finance and Administration Committee

Form Last Revised 8/30/2019
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Justification for Ottawa County Department of Public Health Personnel Request for Fiscal Year 2022
COVID-19 Pandemic Response

The COVID-19 pandemic has created an immense demand for extra services from the Ottawa County
Department of Public Health. This demand necessitates an increase in staffing to respond effectively to
the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The Ottawa County Department of Public Health has recently received
over $2,600,000 in state and federal grant funding through the Stage of Michigan Department of Health
and Human Services (MDHHS). This grant funding will cover the cost of the requested positions in their
entirety. The positions will end when the grant funding is eliminated.

The need for the requested positions is due to:

1. Concern that new mutations of the virus may be even stronger. The Delta variant is now the
predominant strain in the US and recent lab results have shown that there are cases in Kent and Ottawa
counties. Below is an excerpt from a recent correspondence received from Darryl ElImouchi, Spectrum —
West Michigan President:

“This variant is over 200% more transmissible than the original variant and has been identified in our
service area by the state lab. The good news about this variant is that the data (both nationally and
locally) demonstrate that the vaccines are very protective against severe illness, hospitalization and
death. The concern, which you are now hearing from the CDC, is that viral loads (the amount of virus
seen in a person’s system during infection) with the delta variant are approximately 1,000X higher than
with prior variants. This, coupled with its transmissibility, has been linked to vaccinated people not only
contracting COVID-19, but also more of a possibility of transmitting COVID. The biggest concern is that
the vaccinated can potentially transmit infection to the unvaccinated (who in turn are at much more risk
for severe illness).”

This is a smaller concern for vaccinated people and the current vaccination rate in Ottawa County is
close to 60%. However, 40% of the population is still without protection. Ottawa County is currently
seeing case rates increase which has recently pushed our county into the CDC category of ‘substantial
transmission’. Ottawa County’s rate has increased from 6.2% positivity the week of July 31 to 10.2% the
week of August 7. While it is not possible to predict how high this rate of transmission will go, it is
important to be prepared for another significant surge.

2. Much research is going into the immunity provided by the vaccine (strength of immunity and length
of time). So far, the small percentage of people with breakthrough cases (vaccinated cases) are not
significantly contributing to the rate of hospitalizations or deaths. Hospitalizations and deaths continue
to occur largely among the unvaccinated population. However, there is information emerging which
indicates waning immunity (among immune compromised and older adults) at 6 months or following full
vaccination (Pfizer). More research is needed, yet if this proves to be true, booster doses may be
recommended which could again require mass vaccination clinics.

3. Schools are soon to start which brings extra challenges to the Health Department. The department
has maintained a school team to work with each district on case and contact investigation,
isolation/quarantine, education, and communications with school staff, parents and community
members. The department has also maintained weekly superintendent meetings to guide school
prevention and response activities. Additionally, the department continues with the critical
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responsibility of data collection and disease surveillance to identify outbreaks, provide transparency and
quick response to ensure children are safe.

4. The Health Department continues to provide support to area businesses who have cases and/or
outbreaks, communications and media relations related to COVID-19, along with weekly onsite vaccine
clinics and community-based vaccine pop-up clinics. The department gives our best effort to provide
timely response to complaints, questions, and general COVID-19 calls. We are committed to continuing
excellent customer service to the greatest extent possible.

5. The Health Department has recently lost key staff including our Communications Specialist, Medical
Director, a Community Health Supervisor and a long term Communicable Disease Nurse. The
department also has an open manger position that has only remained vacant due to the lack of
administrative time needed to hire, on-board and train. Staff have worked extra hours and are
experiencing stress and burnout. Many of our salaried key leadership staff have also put in significant
overtime hours without additional compensation.

These things will certainly continue to challenge our organization and our staff. The valued team
members at the Ottawa County Department of Public Health cannot continue at the same pace as we
have over the past year. Hiring and retaining additional staff to assist with COVID-19 response is
critically needed to sustain our COVID operations and continue the other important work required of
our department and needed by our residents, businesses, schools and other community sectors.

All positions included in this request are funded by state and federal grants. It is our understanding that

additional funds are forthcoming, therefore it is highly like that our department will have additional
requests at a later date.
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Salary Estimates- Benefited Positions

Public Health Team Supervisor

U-6, Step 1
FTE Wages Benefits TOTAL COST
1.0000 60,612.84 41,614.01 102,226.85 |
Total for 1 employee 60,612.84 41,614.01 102,226.85
Health Educator
T-13, Step 1
FTE Wages Benefits TOTAL COST
1.0000 50,120.25 38,235.29 88,355.54 |
Total for 7 employees 350,841.78 267,647.01 618,488.79
EH Specialist
T-11, Step 5
FTE Wages Benefits TOTAL COST
1.0000 49,710.57 38,103.37 87,813.94 |
Total for 1 employee 49,710.57 38,103.37 87,813.94
Clinic Support
T-6, Step 1
FTE Wages Benefits TOTAL COST
1.0000 32,303.69 32,498.16 64,801.85 |
Total for 3 employees 96,911.08 97,494.48 194,405.56
Clinic Support/Health Technician
T-8, Step 5
FTE Wages Benefits TOTAL COST
1.0000 41,451.82 35,443.96 76,895.78 |
Total for 1 employee 41,451.82 35,443.96 76,895.78
PH Communication Specialist
U-5A, Step |
FTE Wages Benefits TOTAL COST
1.0000 57,179.87 40,701.77 98,481.63 |
Total for 1 employee 57,779.87 40,701.77 98,481.63
Community Health Nurse
Group N, Step 1
FTE Wages Benefits TOTAL COST
1.0000 55,354.03 39,920.62 95,274.65 |
Total for 2 employees 110,708.06 79,841.24 190,549.30
Epidemiologist
U-7, Step 1
FTE Wages Benefits TOTAL COST
1.0000 66,446.81 43,492.62 109,939.43 |
Total for 1 employee 66,446.81 43,492.62 109,939.43

Total for Benefited Positions

1,478,801.28
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Salary Estimates- Non-Benefited Positions

Technical Support

$17.85/hr
Hours Wages Benefits TOTAL COST
1000 18,207.00 1,568.19 19,775.19
Total for 6 Employees 109,242.00 9,409.12 118,651.12
Health Educator
$25.95/hr
Hours Wages Benefits TOTAL COST
1000 26,469.00 2,279.80 28,748.80
Total for 12 Employees 317,628.00 27,357.62 344,985.62
Nurse
$30.52/hr
Hours Wages Benefits TOTAL COST
1000 31,134.79 2,681.67 33,816.46
Total for 7 Employees 217,943.50 18,771.69 236,715.19

Total for Non-Benefited Positions

$700,351.93
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Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 4:00 PM

To: Marcia Mansaray; Gwen Unzicker; Nina Baranowski
Subject: Fwd: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget
Attachments: 82421-packet.PDF.pdf

Adeline Hambley, MBA, PMP, REHS
Administrative Health Officer

Ottawa County Dept. of Public Health
(616) 393-5625

From: John Gibbs <jgibbs@miottawa.org>

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 3:52:38 PM

To: Karen Karasinski <kkarasinski@miottawa.org>
Cc: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>
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

O OO0 O0OO0OO0OO0OOoOO0oOOoOOo

For any additional details, please work with Nina and Kris to set the exact budget numbers within the above parameters.

Thank you,

PS000076



Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 4:03 PM

To: Marcia Mansaray; Gwen Unzicker; Nina Baranowski
Subject: FW: Information request for budget

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

From: Gretchen Cosby <gcosby@miottawa.org>
Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 3:24 PM

To: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>
Cc: John Gibbs <jgibbs@miottawa.org>

Subject: Information request for budget

Good afternoon Adeline,

During the Budget Work Session on Monday, | requested the following information to help with budget decisions for
FY2024.

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

vk wnN e

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

From: Marcia Mansaray

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 7:01 PM

To: Adeline Hambley; Gwen Unzicker; Nina Baranowski
Subject: RE: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget

See below for your thoughts, and Nina can fill in what | don’t have, or don’t have right.

~Marcia

From: A

deline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 4:00 PM
To: Marcia Mansaray <mmansaray@miottawa.org>; Gwen Unzicker <gunzicker@miottawa.org>; Nina Baranowski
<nbaranowski@miottawa.org>

Subject:

Adeline
Adminis
Ottawa

Fwd: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget

Hambley, MBA, PMP, REHS
trative Health Officer
County Dept. of Public Health

(616) 393-5625

From: John Gibbs <jgibbs@miottawa.org>
Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 3:52:38 PM
To: Karen Karasinski <kkarasinski@miottawa.org>

Cc: Adel

Subject:

ine Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>
Final Public Health FY2024 Budget

Hi Karen,

Good afternoon.

Please take the following action to draft Public Health’s budget: Number 1 is still a non-starter and makes the rest of it
superfluous. Not exhibiting maintenance of effort by the local governing entity since we only get to $3 million (if it is

even all
1.

owable to count the $500,000 we have in fund balance again as MOE) and still have to subtract $1,664,989.
Set the Public Health general fund contribution to $2.5 million, and then have Public Health use a portion ($1.3
million) of their $3 million fund balance to reach $3.8 million, the average general fund contribution from 2009
to 2019. We only have 500,000 in fund balance. The remainder are restricted funds from ARPA (the remainder
need to go to another fiscal fund) and an endowment for the Pathways program. Please transfer $1.5 million of
the remaining Public Health fund balance to the County’s contingency fund (unless specific parameters prevent
it). Would using the fund balance mean counting the same money twice for general fund operation maintenance
of effort. Doesn’t seem legal.

Eliminate all COVID positions approved at the August 24, 2021 Full Board of Commissioners meeting, totaling
$2,179,153. (See the attached for more info). All of these were already backed out and not reflected in the
budget we presented, except for the following: We have maybe 4-4.24 FTE total. We have 1 FTE epidemiologist
(Brianna Flowers), 1 FTE Health Educator (Grace Berens), 1 FTE EH Specialist (Aaron Stauffer), 0.49 FTE Health
Educator (Jessica Cooney-Davis). What is Jill Bannink-Albrecht doing?? Nina, do you have salary and fringe for
these? | think we would like to keep Jessica, Grace and Aaron?

1
PS000078



3. Eliminate the following COVID-19 related grants, and any general fund contribution to programs funded by
these grants

0 PHEP 9 Month Grant — Mandated funds and mandated 1 FTE. Requires general fund 10% match plus
general fund for salary and fringe needed due to wage study.

0 PHEP 3 Month Grant — See above and | believe already approved (like we’re in it now)

0 PHEP to provide training for a new Public Health Emergency Preparedness Manager - Already approved
by state and they are paying for and providing the training.

0 Immunization Action Plan (Note: keep grant, remove general fund contribution) - ? not sure if GF
required, but | think so?

0 Immunization ELPHS (Note: keep grant, remove general fund contribution) — Mandated. General fund
required.

0 COVID-19 SUD - This has nothing directly to do with COVID, but with substance use prevention,
primarily for youth. Any connection to COVID would be to prevent/reduce increases in substance and
opiate use that may have occurred during a portion of the pandemic

0 GCD ELPHS - Disease Control — Mandated program and funds.

o Contact Tracing — This grant is able to defray costs of staff time and supplies for infection prevention
activities, including outbreak response activities for nearly 100 reportable communicable diseases.
Contact tracing is rarely needed, but it depends on the disease.

o COVID Immunization — Mandated to control spread of COVID. We still have to stock COVID vaccines and
provide to those who ask for one. If these funds not used to defray costs of staff time and supplies, then
general fund must cover.

0 Reopening Schools HRA

NNICE Vaccine COVID-19 — Error. We don’t have this grant.
o COVID Workforce Development — defrays portion of costs of staff conferences and technology that
could potentially be used for COVID

o

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

42

Ottawa County

Where Freedom Rings
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Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 7:01 PM
To: Gretchen Cosby

Cc: John Gibbs

Subject: RE: Information request for budget

Commissioner Cosby,

| apologize, | was unaware you had requested these items, but | am happy to work with the team to put it together and
get it back to you as soon as possible. While that is being worked on, there is some information available online that
provides a nice overview of services: https://www.miottawa.org/Health/pdf/About-Our-Programs.pdf

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

vk wN e

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

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 7:02 PM

To: Adeline Hambley; Alison Clark; Deborah Price; Derel Glashower; Gwen Unzicker; Kris Conrad; Lisa
Uganski; Marcia Mansaray; Nina Baranowski; Sandra Lake; Spencer Ballard; Tony Benjamin

Subject: FW: Information request for budget

Please take a look at the information requested. We can meet next week and assign some tasks.
Thanks everyone!

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

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 11:41 PM

To: Marcia Mansaray; Adeline Hambley; Gwen Unzicker

Subject: RE: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget

Attachments: Fund 221 Budget Summary (1).pdf; Fed, State, Local Grant Revenue.xlsx

Please see additional notes in blue below and attached.

From: Marcia Mansaray <mmansaray@miottawa.org>

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 7:01 PM

To: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>; Gwen Unzicker <gunzicker@miottawa.org>; Nina Baranowski
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

To: Karen Karasinski <kkarasinski@ miottawa.org>
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
even allowable to count the $500,000 we have in fund balance again as MOE) and still have to subtract $1,664,989.
1. Setthe Public Health general fund contribution to $2.5 million, and then have Public Health use a portion ($1.3
million) of their $3 million fund balance to reach $3.8 million, the average general fund contribution from 2009
to 2019. We only have $671,750 in remaining fund balance that can be used. The remainder are restricted
funds from ARPA (the remainder need to go to another fiscal fund) and an endowment for the Pathways
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program. Please transfer $1.5 million of the remaining Public Health fund balance to the County’s contingency

fund (unless specific parameters prevent it). Would using the fund balance mean counting the same money

twice for general fund operation maintenance of effort. Doesn’t seem legal. | sent an email to the SOM for
clarification on this.

e Attached is our Fund Budget Summary which shows our ending fund balance for amended FY23 and FY24
(as things are currently budgeted). We already budgeted to use $722,606 in unrestricted fund balance in
FY24, we only have $671,750 remaining (that has not already been budgeted).

e Of the $3,046,360 FY23 Projected Fund Balance, End of Year, $1,652,004 remains restricted.

A _ b i L
| 2023 Amended Budget
| Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 3,401,599
i Projected Fund Balance, End of Year 3,046,360

{554,122) Restricted Fund Balance, Pathways
(1,097,882) Restricted Fund Balance, ARPA CBR Project
(1,394,356) Unrestricted Fund Balance, PH

2024 Recommend Budget
) |Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 3,046,360
] Projected Fund Balance, End of Year 2,174,438
(482,047} Restricted Fund Balance, Pathways
(1,020,641) Restricted Fund Balance, ARPA CBR Project
(671,750} Unrestricted, Public Health

| B

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

The following employees are budgeted to work in the COVID grants, other positions may have imported as vacant.
AARON D. STAUFFER Employee No. 6173- 1 FTE $84,547
WILLIAM (Damien) REED Employee No. 6244 Health Educator .6 FTE $62,230
JESSICA L. COONEY-DAVIS- Employee No. 6202- .48 FTE
JILL E. BANNINK-ALBRECHT. Employee No. 4674- .48 FTE $28,000
BRIANNA M. FLOWERS Employee No. 6392- 1 FTE $106,712
Grace Berens, Employee No. 6254- 1 FTE $81,329

In addition, we have $34,367 .5FTE of Selica Becerra salary that would need to be moved
back to the clinic ORG.

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
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PHEP 3 Month Grant — See above and | believe already approved (like we’re in it now)
PHEP to provide training for a new Public Health Emergency Preparedness Manager - Already approved
by state and they are paying for and providing the training.

a. PHEP has a 10% match requirement, which equals $15,963 in FY24. However,
the ORG currently has $57,185 in general fund contribution/fund balance
budgeted to it, of which $22,669 is CAP.

b. The PHEP ORG currently has $159,628 budgeted in grant funding.

Immunization Action Plan (Note: keep grant, remove general fund contribution) - ? not sure if GF
required, but | think so?

a. The IAP grant has no general fund contribution. This grant is used to offset the
expense in the immunization program.

Immunization ELPHS (Note: keep grant, remove general fund contribution) — Mandated. General fund
required.

a. There is a 35.06% Cost Based Reimbursement local match requirement. A CBR
local match is considered any source of funding that is NOT federal. For us to
meet the 35.06% CBR local match requirement, which is $510,300. The general
fund is currently budgeted to contribute $204,279 towards the $510,300 CBR
match. The SOM grants count towards our CBR requirement.

b. Sent an email to the SOM to clarify if we would be allowed to accept this grant
without an MOE general fund contribution.

COVID-19 SUD - This has nothing directly to do with COVID, but with substance use prevention,
primarily for youth. Any connection to COVID would be to prevent/reduce increases in substance and
opiate use that may have occurred during a portion of the pandemic. That is correct, this grant comes
from LRE. We just received our FY24 grant notification, this grant was reduced to $10,000 in FY24.
FY23 grant was $45,873, which is what was budgeted for FY24. This amount would be reduced down
to $10,000 if the grant is approved.

GCD ELPHS - Disease Control — Mandated program and funds.

a. The CD program (ORG) has $888,606 in budgeted general fund/fund balance.

b. Thereis a 35.06% Cost Based Reimbursement local match requirement. A CBR
local match is considered any source of funding that is NOT federal. The CBR
local match for this ORG is $459,763. The general fund current match
requirement is $151,757. If the GCD ELPHS grant ($220,368) is NOT accepted,
our local match requirement would increase $220,368.

c. Sent an email to the SOM to clarify if this decision would jeopardize our other
ELPHS funding or other MDHHS grant funding.

d. This is a MOE grant, which has a general fund match requirement.

Contact Tracing — This grant is able to defray costs of staff time and supplies for infection prevention
activities, including outbreak response activities for nearly 100 reportable communicable diseases.
Contact tracing is rarely needed, but it depends on the disease. This grant is budgeted to cover at least
$204,731 in indirect/CAP expense.
COVID Immunization — Mandated to control spread of COVID. We still have to stock COVID vaccines and
provide to those who ask for one. If these funds not used to defray costs of staff time and supplies, then
general fund must cover. This grant was budgeted to cover $101,190 in indirect/CAP expense.
Reopening Schools HRA- $345,213 grant
NNICE Vaccine COVID-19 — Error. We don’t have this grant. We may want to clarify with Sandra which
$25,000 grant is not going through next year. We have two $25,000 grants, | thought it was the SDOH
grant (ORG 22129563) that we choose not to accept in FY24. But maybe it was the NNICS Vaccine
Equity $25,000?!

a. NNICE Vaccine Grant (National Network to Innovate for COVID-19 and Adult Vaccine

Equity) Agency: Community Foundation of Holland/Zeeland (CFHZ) $25,000
b. SDOH Planning (Social Determinants of Health) Agency: MDHHS $25,000
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o COVID Workforce Development — defrays portion of costs of staff conferences and technology that
could potentially be used for COVID. We did not budget indirect here, however, we would charge

indirect to this grant if salary was charged.
| attached a list of all our grant revenue and highlighted the ones identified above in the attached spreadsheet.

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
Public Health (221)
Special Revenue Fund
Budget Summary
Budget Year Ending September 30, 2024

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
Intergovernmental Revenue 7,084,253 4,125,562 7,492,833 7,379,480 3,253,918
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
Total Revenues 15,334,409 12,964,761 18,160,034 16,506,216 3,541,455
Expenditures
Salaries & Wages 7,034,473 6,670,136 7,910,143 7,324,203 654,067
Benefits 4,005,805 4,010,690 4,722,632 4,255,840 245,150
Supplies 959,042 975,401 1,514,523 1,842,441 867,040
Contracted Services 1,389,359 559,127 1,129,456 1,050,977 491,850
Operating Expenses 547,977 644,899 676,127 702,365 57,466
Maintenance & Repair 20,091 21,465 24,315 24,000 2,535
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
Total Expenditures 15,652,730 15,258,827 18,515,272 17,378,138 2,119,311
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (318,321) (2,294,066) (355,239) (871,922) (1,422,144)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 3,401,599 3,401,599 3,046,360
Projected Fund Balance, End of Year 1,107,533 3,046,360 2,174,438
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Adeline Hambley

From: Nina Baranowski

Sent: Saturday, August 26, 2023 12:06 AM

To: Adeline Hambley; Alison Clark; Deborah Price; Derel Glashower; Gwen Unzicker; Kris Conrad; Lisa
Uganski; Marcia Mansaray; Sandra Lake; Spencer Ballard; Tony Benjamin

Subject: RE: Information request for budget

Attachments: PH Position By Program.pdf

Hi- You may want to use the attached document to answer #4 “Resources required- human/FTE’s” by program. This
document was already provided at our 6/19/23 budget meeting with administration, it’s attached to the meeting invite.

Thanks,
Nina

From: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 7:02 PM

To: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>; Alison Clark <aclark@miottawa.org>; Deborah Price
<dprice@miottawa.org>; Derel Glashower <dglashower@miottawa.org>; Gwen Unzicker <gunzicker@miottawa.org>;
Kris Conrad <kconrad@miottawa.org>; Lisa Uganski <luganski@miottawa.org>; Marcia Mansaray
<mmansaray@miottawa.org>; Nina Baranowski <nbaranowski@miottawa.org>; Sandra Lake <slake@miottawa.org>;
Spencer Ballard <sballard@miottawa.org>; Tony Benjamin <tbenjamin@miottawa.org>

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
C bc: John Gibbs <jgibbs@miottawa.org>
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

PS000088



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

Sent: Saturday, August 26, 2023 1:27 PM

To: Adeline Hambley; Marcia Mansaray; Gwen Unzicker
Subject: Org Detail Attached->Final Public Health FY2024 Budget
Attachments: Fund 221 FY24 Budget By ORG.xIsx

Attached is a spreadsheet that shows revenue and expense per ORG (program). | created separate tabs for Imms, CD,
PHEP, IAP.

From: Nina Baranowski

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 11:41 PM

To: Marcia Mansaray <mmansaray@miottawa.org>; Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>; Gwen Unzicker
<gunzicker@miottawa.org>

Subject: RE: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget

Please see additional notes in blue below and attached.

From: Marcia Mansaray <mmansaray@miottawa.org>

Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 7:01 PM

To: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>; Gwen Unzicker <gunzicker@ miottawa.org>; Nina Baranowski
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

Sent: Saturday, August 26, 2023 3:57 PM
To: Adeline Hambley

Cc: John Gibbs

Subject: Re: Information request for budget

Thank you Adeline, | appreciate your quick response and the link.
Gretchen Cosby
Get Outlook for i0S

From: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>
Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 7:01:20 PM

To: Gretchen Cosby <gcosby@miottawa.org>

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

mi Otawa Department of

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

Sent: Sunday, August 27, 2023 11:19 PM

To: Nina Baranowski; Adeline Hambley; Gwen Unzicker
Subject: RE: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget

Nina, why are the annual budgets for Public Health in 2022, 2023 and 2024 different in the “All Funds Comparative
Analysis” versus the “221 Public Health Budget Summary” since both give annual budgets for 2022, 2023 and 20247
Which one is correct for me to use to illustrate that COVID-19 grant awards are inflating 2024 and not included in 2022
and 2023, with the result that 2024 is level to lower than the 2 prior years shown?

Is this table accurate or should | use the numbers in the second table?

*All funds comparative analysis expenses numbers
2022 Budget Actuals 2023 Adopted Budget | 2024 Requested Budget

Baseline Amount $17,186,299 $18,331,148 $19,454,161
COVID Grants NA NA $2,258,643
Adjusted Amount $17,186,299.13 $18,331,148.77 $17,195,518.00

*221 public health budget summary expenditures numbers
2022 Budget Actuals 2023 Adopted Budget | 2024 Requested Budget

Baseline Amount $15,334,409 $15,258,827 S17,377,794

COVID Grants NA NA $2,258,643

Adjusted Amount $15,334,409 $15,258,827 $15,119,151
~Marcia

From: Nina Baranowski <nbaranowski@miottawa.org>

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

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 5:42 AM

To: Adeline Hambley; Nina Baranowski; Gwen Unzicker

Subject: Response to Gibbs' Friday Request

Attachments: DRAFT FY 24 PH Budget - Response to 8.25.23 Request JGibbs.docx

It took me all night! Too slow when I'm sleepy.

Nina, | think you may be able to help us run some number and create tables that give an alternative budget that still
meets all of our requirements. | think we need a realistic estimate of what the general fund contribution much be to
provide our required services and then create a second list of programs that don’t fit in the first and give an itemized
amount of how much each would cost to keep ow what would be the savings if eliminated.

Addie, | didn’t bring up Title X or any other services not listed.

I may sleep for a couple hours and then come into the office to help.

Marcia Mansaray, MSc

Deputy Health Officer

12251 James Street, Suite 400 | Holland, Ml 49424
Office: (616) 494-5598

miOttawa Department of

Public Health
OwlO M

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

From: Deborah Price

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 9:03 AM

To: Nina Baranowski; Adeline Hambley; Gwen Unzicker; Kris Conrad; Marcia Mansaray
Subject: RE: Information request for budget

Hi Nina,

Wondering if it might be important to update this before it is sent in support of the current request?
e |t shows Clinic Health Manager as vacant. | believe we see me as 50-50 for that and FP/STD Nurse Practitioner
Supervisor.
e Per Tonya, Clinic Support is 7.0. That includes allocation of one post to Selica starting October 1.
e Communicable Disease shows 4 Nurse Practitioner Supervisors. | believe that should say 4 Community Health
Nurses.
e We re-allocated part of the FP nurse capacity to STD.

Best, Debbie

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
<mmansaray@miottawa.org>; Sandra Lake <slake@miottawa.org>; Spencer Ballard <sballard@miottawa.org>; Tony
Benjamin <tbenjamin@miottawa.org>

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

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 10:41 AM

To: Marcia Mansaray; Adeline Hambley; Gwen Unzicker
Subject: Re: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget

Use the "221 Public Health Budget Summary” adopted budget for all 3 years.

The overall analysis is counting Med Exam, Kims Org and Landfill org (Pats org) and well as PHs Fund. It'd all the
work that PH does.

Sent via the Samsung Galaxy S21 5G, an AT&T 5G smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

From: Marcia Mansaray <mmansaray@miottawa.org>

Sent: Sunday, August 27, 2023 11:19:21 PM

To: Nina Baranowski <nbaranowski@miottawa.org>; Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>; Gwen Unzicker
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

Baseline Amount $15,334,409 $15,258,827 $17,377,794

COVID Grants NA NA $2,258,643

Adjusted Amount $15,334,409 $15,258,827 $15,119,151
~Marcia

From: Nina Baranowski <nbaranowski@miottawa.org>
Sent: Friday, August 25, 2023 11:41 PM
To: Marcia Mansaray <mmansaray@ miottawa.org>; Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>; Gwen Unzicker

1
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Adeline Hambley

From: Gwen Unzicker

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 11:02 AM

To: Marcia Mansaray; Adeline Hambley; Nina Baranowski

Subject: RE: Response to Gibbs' Friday Request

Attachments: DRAFT FY 24 PH Budget - Response to 8.25.23 Request JGibbs GU edits.docx
Importance: High

I made some proposed changes w/ track changes on — I'll also print it out for easier reading/marking up.

Gwen Unzicker MD
Medical Director
Ottawa County Department of Public Health
Office: 616-494-5548
wmiOttawa Department of

Public Health

From: Marcia Mansaray <mmansaray@miottawa.org>

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 5:42 AM

To: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>; Nina Baranowski <nbaranowski@miottawa.org>; Gwen Unzicker
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

wlOttawa Department of

Public Health
OwO Mo

Confidentiality Notice: This message, including any attachments, is intended solely for the use of the authorized recipient(s) and may contain
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Adeline Hamble

From: Ottawa County, Michigan <miOttawa@public.govdelivery.com>
Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 2:23 PM

To: Adeline Hambley

Subject: County sets fiscally responsible budget for public health

Ottawa County Press
Where Freedom Rings Re‘ ease

£ SHARE

August 28, 2023

For Immediate Release

County sets fiscally responsible budget for public
health

Ottawa County is committed to providing excellent services to children, individuals, and families
through the work of the Department of Public Health (DPH). In line with fiscal responsibility and
making the most of taxpayer dollars, the County is requiring that the general fund contribution to
DPH’s budget return to average pre-COVID levels. This is a process all American families and
businesses are going through, and it will not result in the discontinuation of any mandated services,
and especially not the closure of the Public Health Department.

Such claims are disingenuous and being made in bad faith for political purposes. For the Director of
Public Health to attempt to influence the budget process through media theatrics, instead of good
faith conversations with the County Administrator and the Board of Commissioners, is totally
inappropriate and unprofessional.

Facts:

e Claims being made by the Department of Public Health, such as that the department will be
forced to close its doors, or to cut essential mandated services, are patently false, bad faith,
and disingenuous fear-mongering tactics. This approach represents a continued pattern of
insubordinate and unprofessional behavior out of the Department of Public Health.

e The Department of Public Health has not provided a budget based on the parameters
requested by the Administrator and the Board, despite being asked multiple times. Yet the
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department has nonetheless found the time to spin a highly politicized, fictitious, fear-
based narrative to the media and the unsuspecting public.

e The Department of Public Health, like all American families and businesses, is being
required to set its budget to pre-COVID levels. Such a requirement has nothing to do with
politics, but basic common sense and fiscal responsibility.

e The COVID pandemic is over. It is incumbent upon leaders to ensure that funding, staffing,
and programs which were designated for that purpose, are wound down.

e The County will not stand for any attempts by the Department of Public Health to cut
essential programs unnecessarily, for political spectacle or media theatrics. The families
who are served by the Department of Public Health deserve better, and will not be political
pawns.

By the Numbers:

e The average general fund contribution for the Department of Public Health in the years
preceding COVID was $3.8 million per year.

e The FY24 DPH budget will include a $2.5 million general fund contribution, plus a
contribution from DPH’s fund balance, to come as close to the historic $3.8 million general
fund contribution figure as possible.

e The general fund contribution amount requested by DPH for FY24 was $6.7 million, a
stunning 72% increase from the last pre-COVID year, which was $3.9 million. This large
increase far outstrips County population growth and inflation over that period. The County
is simply asking for this number to return to normal levels. (see graph below)

e DPH’s total personnel is more than one third larger than the last pre-COVID year, jumping
from around 90, to more than 120 currently, only a few short years later. This 33% increase
in personnel is far higher than the rate of inflation or population growth of Ottawa County.

As we work to finalize the budget, adjustments may be made based on additional information. The
County will continue to work through the details of the budget process, with or without assistance
from Public Health Department leaders. The final budget decisions will be voted on by the Board of
Commissioners following a public hearing that provides an opportunity for public comment.

We remain committed to ensuring the Public Health Department meets the needs of the
community, serving our children, families, and individuals with excellence while ensuring fiscal
responsibility to the taxpayers of Ottawa County.

20-YEAR REVIEW AND FORECAST
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Media Contacts:
John Gibbs, County Administrator

Joe Moss, Ottawa County Board of Commissioners Chairman

Having trouble viewing this email? View it as a Web page.

Images included with press releases may be reproduced for editorial use. For high resolution images, email the media contact in the press
release.

N~ 4
Ottawa County

Where Freedom Rings

The Ottawa County Board of Commissioners: Chairperson Joe Moss | Vice-Chairperson Sylvia Rhodea | Gretchen Cosby | Roger Bergman |
Lucy Ebel | Jacob Bonnema | Rebekah Curran | Roger Belknap | Kyle Terpstra | Doug Zylstra | Allison Miedema

Contact and district information for the Ottawa County Board of Commissioners is available at miOttawa.org.

Ottawa County | 12220 Fillmore Street | West Olive | Michigan | 49460 | 616-738-4000 | Contact Us

HEOGE & @ %

Receive Fewer Messages | Unsubscribe

This email was sent to ahambley@miottawa.org using GovDelivery Communications Cloud on behalf of: Ottawa County, Michigan - -

12220 Fillmore Street - West Olive, MI 49460 GOVDELIVERY
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Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 5:46 PM

To: John Gibbs; Karen Karasinski

Subject: RE: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget

Attachments: 2023.08.28 FY 24 PH Budget - Response to 8.25.23 Request JGibbs.pdf
Hi John,

Thank you for cc’ing me on the request you sent Friday afternoon to Karen for changes to the Public Health FY 2024
budget. It is important for both Fiscal Services and Public Health to work together on your new request for budget
amendments, since there are program details that Karen will need from Public Health to attempt to do what you have
asked: suggest configurations of the Health Department budget which could still comply with the Public Health Code and
with state and federal funding requirements.

Unfortunately, in my view, your request to Karen on Friday afternoon is still asking her to do the impossible. | have been
working this weekend and so far today to answer Karen’s questions while she is on her vacation. My understanding is
that you have now asked her for different information, and so we are now pivoting to help her with those new requests.
We will continue to try our best to help Karen with these new requests as of today at 5pm.

However, as a general matter, the information attached will be useful to you to keep in the background.
Sincerely,

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
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1. Set the Public Health general fund contribution to $2.5 million, and then have Public Health use a portion (1.3
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

o PHEP 9 Month Grant

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

O OO0 O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0o0OOoOoOo

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

AS,
N4
Ottawa County

Where Freedom Rings
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Your August 25, 2023, email request sent at 3:52 PM states:

Hi Karen,
Good afternoon.

Please take the following action to draft Public Health’s budget:

1. Set the Public Health general fund contribution to $2.5 million, and then have Public Health use a
portion (51.3 million) of their S3 million fund balance to reach $3.8 million, the average general
fund contribution from 2009 to 2019. Please transfer S1.5 million of the remaining Public Health
fund balance to the County’s contingency fund (unless specific parameters prevent it).

2. Eliminate all COVID positions approved at the August 24, 2021 Full Board of Commissioners
meeting, totaling 52,179,153. (See the attached for more info)

3. Eliminate the following COVID-19 related grants, and any general fund contribution to programs
funded by these grants

O PHEP 9 Month Grant
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

O O 0O O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0oOOoOOo

For any additional details, please work with Nina and Kris to set the exact budget numbers within the
above parameters.

Since there have been several budget requests over the past week and a half and a lot of information provided to
you from the Public Health and Fiscal Services departments already, it may be helpful to review some of what
has already been communicated between January 2023 and today before addressing the points in your email.

The department budgets you are recommending to the Board of Commissioners have been presented and
discussed numerous times during creation and planning, as well as publicly.

e November 2022 — January 2023: review of actuals for fiscal year 2022 and setting budget targets for
fiscal year 2024

e Numerous presentations on health department programs and services to board of commissioners
through annual report, Health and Human Services Committee meetings, grant presentations and via
email. Multiple offers extended to meet and discuss programs more in-depth.

e Budget calendar followed with planning occurring up to entry into financial system in May.

e June 19, 2024: budget presentation with County Administrator, Fiscal Services, Public Health, and
Commissioner Sylvia Rhodea

e Finance and Administration Committee and the Finance and Administration Committee’s special budget
work sessions

0 August1, 2023, August 10, 2023, and August 21, 2023
e Board of Commissioner’s meetings

[ 10f14
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0 August 8, 2023
August 17, 2023: first request to set budget for general fund contribution “to pre-COVID levels, adjust for
inflation” (2019 general fund of $4.5 million specifically mentioned) and exclude all COVID grants and
provide by August 18, 2023
August 21, 2023: first discussion at Finance and Administration Committee budget work session to
significantly reduce budget as presented
August 22, 2023: email received with direction to a budget in two days with a reduced general fund
contribution of $2.5 million and removal of all COVID-related grants funding
August 22, 2023: additional information provided to Administrator Gibbs by Public Health to explain the
various limitations of funding and providing a detailed historical perspective of funding, inflation, and
population growth
August 23, 2023: directive to produce a budget with general fund as close to $2.5 million as possible and
discontinue all COVID-related grants by August 24, 2023
August 24, 2023: additional clarification and information provided by Public Health as to the outcomes of
funding at this level
August 25, 2023: request to Karen (Fiscal Services) with the request as shown earlier in document
August 28, 2023: meeting with Fiscal Services to review request after Karen was able to meet with you
and discuss

[ 20f 14
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As already mentioned multiple times during budget presentations to you and to the commissioners, the
requested FY 2024 Public Health budget isn’t directly comparable to the 2022 and 2023 budgets as shown
because the COVID-19 grants awarded to support local response and recovery came later in the budget process
compared to 2024. Therefore, FY 2022 and FY 2023 adopted budgets appear smaller than the requested FY 2024
budget as the grant awards are included, where previously they were not. The two tables below help to compare
Public Health budget amounts from 2022 to 2024 without COVID-19-related grants.

Table 1. COVID Grants that Inflate Perceived Difference Between 2024 and Prior Years 2023 & 2022*

2024 COVID-19-Related Grant Amount
Epi Lab Capacity Infection Prevention $1,246,340.00
Immunization $359, 090.00
Reopening Schools HRA $308,000.00

Workforce Development $345,213.00

TOTAL
*Statistics from the August 10, 2023, Special Work Session, Finance and Administration packet.

$2,258,643.00

As was discussed at the budget review meeting with Administration, Fiscal Services, Public Health, and
Commissioner Rhodea on June 19, 2024, when COVID-19 grants are removed, the Public Health requested
budget for FY 2024 is level or lower than the prior two years’ baseline budgets. The FY 2024 budget is not

inflated by COVID-19 spending, but primarily by inflation of the dollar and increases in costs as seen in every
other Ottawa County department.

Table 2. Equivalent Comparison of 2022, 2023 and 2024 Public Health Budget without COVID Grants*

2022 Budget Actuals 2023 Adopted Budget | 2024 Requested Budget
Baseline Amount $15,652,730 $15,258,827 $17,378,138
- COVID Grants NA NA -$2,258,643
Adjusted Amount $15,653,730 $15,258,827 $15,119,496

*Statistics from the Public Health (221) Special Revenue Fund Budget Summary, Finance and Administration packet.

While your proposed FY 2024 budget for all County departments combined is up 5%-6% compared to FY 2023,
Public Health identified efficiencies before presenting our budget to you in June. As a result, we came to you
without a baseline increase in our budget for two consecutive years. As noted by you and the Board, this is

effectively a 5%-6% reduction and meets the Board’s goal for all departments to achieve in the FY 2025 budget
process — a difficult feat in any year, but even more so over two years with of inflation.

“In 2022, inflation reached some of the highest levels seen since 1981, hitting 9.1% in the middle of
2022 in the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic.”

U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

Page 3 of 14
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Of course, there are factors to consider which cause budget increases to deliver services to the community that
are unrelated to COVID-19. It may help you as you advise the Board to have a historical understanding of Public
Health staffing levels and how they compare to the average of medium-sized local health departments in the
United States. Figure 1 shows non-COVID staffing rates for Public Health from 2002 to 2022. The dashed gray
line indicates the U.S. average since 2016. Ottawa has been under that level since 2006.

Figure 1. Ottawa County, as a medium-sized county, has been consistently staffed below the U.S. average
local health department staffing level per 10,000 population*

Public Health Non-COVID FTEs per 10,000 Population per Year
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*2019 National Profile of Local Health Departments (LHDs) Study.
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Besides inflationary pressures driving up costs of operation, population increases also drive increases in
services. As the fastest growing county in Michigan, our population has grown by over 40,000 people since
2009.

Figure 2. Communicable diseases have increased year-over-year, more than doubling since 2009

Total Number of Reportable Disease Cases Referred to the Ottawa County
Department of Public Health by Year of Referral, 2009-2022
(Excluding COVID-19, Dept. of Corrections cases, MIS-C, Flu, & Non-Specific Gl lliness)
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Number of Referred Disease Cases

Inclusion Criteria:
All Ottawa County cases in the Michigan Disease Surveillance System meeting the following criteria:
Case Status: Confirmed, Not a Case, Probable, Suspect, Unknown
Investigation Status: Active, Canceled, Completed, Completed - Follow Up, New, Review, Superceded
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Figure 3. Vacant Land Evaluations have increased significantly since The Great Recession, and is a great indicator
for population growth and overall increase in service requests
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YEAR

300
285
250
200 202
190 —— 189
~\\‘172
155
150 /
135

100 /////

82

71 -

68

0\ P

41/46\ /45

33
0
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Year
Page 6 of 14

PS000108



Request 1: Set the Public Health general fund contribution to 52.5 million, and then have Public Health use a
portion (51.3 million) of their S3 million fund balance to reach $3.8 million, the average general fund contribution
from 2009 to 2019. Please transfer $1.5 million of the remaining Public Health fund balance to the County’s
contingency fund (unless specific parameters prevent it).

Response: The local governing entity, i.e., County Administration, must exhibit the maintenance of effort (MOE)
in relation to funding the essential health and safety services that protect public health in Ottawa County. This
amount cannot include the indirect expenses for county central services (administrator, corporate counsel, IT,
etc.) when being calculated. The initial request to create a budget of $2.5 million total general fund would not
meet this maintenance of effort as required, thus per the state Omnibus budget:

20 Sec. 1222. (1) Funds appropriated in part 1 for essential

21 local public health services shall be prospectively allocated to

22 local health departments to support immunizations, infectious

23 disease control, sexually transmitted disease control and

24 prevention, hearing screening, vision services, food protection,

25 public water supply, private groundwater supply, and on-site sewage
26 management. Food protection shall be provided in consultation with
27 the department of agriculture and rural development. Public water
28 supply, private groundwater supply, and on-site sewage management

29 shall be provided in consultation with the department of

Legal Division

TDR 01109'23 CRrR-1 5 04014 06282023

464

environment, Great Lakes, and energy.
(2) Distributions in subsection (1) shall be made only to
counties that maintain local spending in the current fiscal year of

at least the amount expended in fiscal year 1992-1993 for the

g = W NP

services described in subsection (1).
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As explained in my response on August 24, 2023, that a total general fund contribution of $2.5 million falls
significantly short of the maintenance of effort (MOE) needed to operate all mandated essential public health
services at a minimally serviceable level, let alone meet the general fund needs for other required or desirable
services that Ottawa County residents have relied on and have contributed to a comparatively healthy, thriving

community in the past.

e Remember that for any general fund contribution to satisfy MOE, it cannot count the portion of general
funds needed to pay for indirect expenses paid by County Administration for central services
(administrator, corporate counsel, IT, etc.). In this case, that amount is $1,664,989.

e Public Health does not have a $3 million fund balance.

O Public Health’s fund balance at the beginning of the FY 2024 budget process is $3,046,360

0 Of the fund balance

$554,565 is an endowment for the Pathways to Better Health program, and are
restricted funds.

$1,097,882 is the unused portion of an ARPA awarded project to reimburse the expected
shortfall of Medicaid cost-based reimbursement payments in 2023 and 2024 due to
reduced clinical services during the pandemic. These funds are restricted for Public
Health use specific to this purpose. Changes in use would need to be made by vote of
the Board of Commissioners.

OCDPH MEDICAID REIMBURSEMENTS
| $1,507,178

WHO: Ottawa County

Department of Public Health (OCDPH)

NEED/IMPACT: OCDPH assists underserved and under-
represented adults, children and families with a variety
of health-related services. Normally the OCDPH receives
reimbursements for providing these services from the
state Medicaid Cost Based (CBR) fund.

However, CBR payments are two years behind because
of the pandemic. Because of the reduction in services
caused by the pandemic, OCDPH is poised to lose
$1.5 million in revenue over the next two fiscal years.

With these ARPA funds, OCDPH will be able to ensure
essential health services continue and avoid cuts.
Contract fully executed?*

N/A

* No contract, through County department

Funds distributed?

Ves \/ (funds transferred to Health Fund)

No

Remaining fund balance of $1,394,356 is unrestricted, however of note, $722,606 was
already in the FY24 budget as originally proposed.
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Table 3. The Original Budget Provides Adequate General Fund to Maintain Services Without Delays
or Higher Fees and Operate Lawfully

Health Operation Funds Original Budget vs. Commissioner Requested Budget

Original Budget as Commissioner %
Submitted Requested Budget | Change
Total General Fund Contribution $6,678,063 $3,800,000 | -43%
Minus County Administrative Expenses
(Administration, Corporate Counsel, IT, Fiscal, HR, (51,664,989) (51,664,989) 0%
etc.)
ge'clgzl Fund Available for Public Health Operations $4,763,989 $2,135,011 -55%

Does not include 5250,000 CMH Millage Transfer (Pathways)
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Th . . .
e MOE for Public Health is based on a calculation from Fiscal Year 1993. At that time the total general fund

provided was $2,958,616, of which $2,039,7 i i
B ity $2,039,774 when to public health operations to provide services to the

- _ -
OTTAWA COUNTY
COST SHARING BASE YEAR MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT CALCULATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 10/0192 THROUGH 09/30/93

LOCAL FISCALPERIOD #1 LOCAL FISCAL PERIOD #2
100162 TO  09/3093 To
1 | General Fund Expenditures '
(From County Annual Report) 2,958,616
LESS: )

2 [County Central Service Cost Allocation ]

Plan expenditures INCLUDED in 12,038

item #1 above: 144,476
3 [Reallocations included in item #1 above

Animal Control | B5,467 J
4 [Foes collected for Health Department

services that are returned to the Health
Department through item #1 above

Other adjustments needed, (e.g., non— ’»
public health activities) Explanation:
Cigarette Tax included in item #1 . 328,227
Contribution to Fund Balance for period 378,634

w

6 [Adjusted General Fund expenditures for
use in determining local maintenance of )
fort, (Item #1 less 2,3,4,5) - 2,039,774

7 [Percentage of local fiscal period that
pertains to 10/01/92 — 09/30/93 fiscal ye 100.00% : :

8 'Itsm #6 times item #7 2 039,774 l

9 [ Total of the two numbers in item #8.
This represents the base year Local
Maintenance of effort needed tobe $2,039,774
maintained in future years.

NOTE: Please attach a copy of the pages of the county's two annual reports that cover Health Department expenditures

CERTIFICATION: I certify that this is a true and correct statement of expenditures.
Appropriate documentation is available and will be maintained.

At e /4
Health Officer Dhte /??.
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Request 2: Eliminate all COVID positions approved at the August 24, 2021 Full Board of Commissioners meeting,
totaling 52,179,153. (See the attached for more info)

Response: Of the positions approved to meet the health and safety needs of the Ottawa County community —
including individual residents, businesses, and other institutions — during a historic, global pandemic,
approximately 3-4 FTE are planned to be staffed in FY 2024. These positions are supporting the department’s
requirement to prevent and control the spread of about 100 communicable diseases as a basic essential public
health service.

Their wages are benefits are paid through the Epi Lab Capacity Infection Prevention grant from the
Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS).

The remaining positions are vacant and the costs have been back out of the requested FY 2024 budget.
The savings would result from four people with an estimated to be a total of $221,876.

It should be noted that over $300,000 of indirect costs for County administrative services
(administration, corporate counsel, IT, etc.) are covered by these grants and will need to be reallocated
to other programs through this action.

Request 3: Eliminate the following COVID-19 related grants, and any general fund contribution to programs
funded by these grants

PHEP 9 Month Grant

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
CovVID-19 SUD

GCD ELPHS - Disease Control

Contact Tracing

COVID Immunization

Reopening Schools HRA

NNICE Vaccine COVID-19

COVID Workforce Development

Response: The criteria by which this list was determined is unclear. Some of these “grants” are funds provided
by MDHHS or the State of Michigan (SOM) to share in the cost of required programs or services. Additional
information about each is provided below.

PHEP 9 Month Grant — Created after 9/11/2001 by the Department of Homeland Security to prepare for
and respond to terrorist threats, natural disasters and other threats to public health and safety. Works
closely with Ottawa County Emergency Management, local police, fire, EMS and healthcare.

0 A mandated program and mandated minimum of 1 FTE.

0 PHEP has a 10% match requirement, which equals $15,963 in FY 2024. The program budget
currently has $57,185 in general fund contribution/fund balance budgeted to it, of which
$22,669 is allocated to pay for County Administration central services (administrator, corporate
counsel, IT, etc.). These funds are required maintain the 1 FTE position, program operational
costs, and to maintain compliance with the law.

o The PHEP program currently has $159,628 budgeted in grant funding.

PHEP 3 Month Grant — See above.
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e PHEP to provide training for a new Public Health Emergency Preparedness Manager — the description is
inaccurate. Since this is a mandated program and a unique and highly skilled position, the State of
Michigan included training in the approved workplan and budget for the replacement position. There is
no contract for Ottawa County.

e Immunization Action Plan (Note: keep grant, remove general fund contribution) — there is no general
fund contribution for this grant

e Immunization ELPHS (Note: keep grant, remove general fund contribution) — this is a mandated basic
essential local public health service (ELPHS), and these funds are the portion paid by MDHHS to support
this required service for Ottawa County residents.

0 Increases the need for County general fund dollars to replace the loss of the MDHHS
contribution.

0 Thereis a 35.06% Cost Based Reimbursement local match requirement. A CBR local match is
considered any source of funding that is NOT federal. The 35.06% CBR local match requirement
is $510,300. The general fund is currently budgeted to contribute $204,279 towards the
$510,300 CBR match.

0 The MDHHS grant counts towards our CBR requirement, posing a fiscal and potentially legal
challenge if they are eliminated. More general funds would be needed to cover the match if the
grant is eliminated.

0 Thisis an MOE grant, which has a general fund match requirement.

0 As with other mandated basic essential local public health services, not accepting these may risk
all ELPHS funding being withheld by the State of Michigan, and/or legal challenges for Ottawa
County.

e COVID-19 SUD - Public is mandated to provide health education. The level of health education and
prevention is based on community demand.

o This grant is part of a package of several Lakeshore Regional Entity (LRE) grants that provide
funds for Substance Abuse and Substance Use Disorder, primarily in youth. Any connection to
COVID would be to prevent/reduce increases in substance and opiate use that may have
occurred during a portion of the pandemic.

o The FY 2024 grant notification; this grant was reduced to $10,000 in FY 2024. FY 2023 grant was
$45,873, which is what was budgeted for FY 2024. This amount would be reduced to $10,000, if
the grant is approved.

e GCD ELPHS - Disease Control — this is a mandated basic essential local public health service, and these
funds are the portion paid by MDHHS to support this required service for Ottawa County residents.

0 There are about 100 communicable diseases that require Public Health staff to follow up on to
prevent additional cases and control spread that can lead to unnecessary and preventable
financial and health costs to the community.

o The Communicable Disease program has $888,606 budgeted general fund/fund balance.

0 Thereis a 35.06% Cost Based Reimbursement local match requirement. A CBR local match is
considered any source of funding that is NOT federal. The CBR local match for this program is
$459,763. The general fund current match requirement is $151,757. If the GCD ELPHS grant
(5220,368) is NOT accepted, our local general fund match requirement would increase another
$220,368.

o0 Thisis an MOE grant, which has a general fund match requirement.

0 As with other mandated basic essential local public health services, not accepting these may risk
all ELPHS funding being withheld by the State of Michigan, and/or legal challenges for Ottawa
County.

e Contact Tracing — This grant rarely has to do with contact tracing but supports overall infection
prevention; it has become more flexible to include non-COVID-19 related activities.

0 The grant can defray costs of staff time and supplies for infection prevention activities, including
outbreak response activities for nearly 100 reportable communicable diseases.
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o This grant is budgeted to cover at least $204,731 in payments to indirect costs related to County
administration central services (Administration, corporate counsel, IT, HR, etc.)

COVID Immunization —While this grant isn’t required, Ottawa County, though Public Health, is still
mandated to control the spread of COVID-19. As new variants appear, there is a possibility of
encountering a more dangerous variant, or one that leads to similar outcomes but evades current
immunity from prior infection or vaccination. Public health is still required to stock COVID-19 vaccines
and provide those to adults who need or want a COVID-19 vaccine, or parents who want them for their
children.

0 Public Health will be one of the few places that can still provide a limited supply of these
vaccines without cost to the individual. If these funds are not used to defray costs of staff time
and supplies, then the general fund must cover this required work.

o This grant was budgeted to cover $101,190 in indirect/CAP expense.

Reopening Schools HRA - $345,213 grant, funds can be utilized for infection prevention activities in
schools in addition to COVID-19 prevention and control.

NNICE Vaccine COVID-19 — Grant expires/is completed at end of FY 2023.

COVID Workforce Development — This grant defrays a portion of costs of staff educational activities and
technology that could potentially be used for prevention and control of COVID-19.
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After speaking with Karen, here is how the latest budget revision request would impact public health programs.
All items below the yellow highlight (Pathways) would need to be cut due to lack of funding. Pathways would
need to utilize restricted funding from the Public Health fund balance to cover the $217,972 listed.

Of note:
¢ There would need to be approximately $1 million in cost reductions or fee increases to continue to
provide all mandated services with the $3.8 million total general fund that being proposed.
¢ As the programs below the highlighted yellow line are no longer funded, they would be eliminated, and
all of their indirect County Administrative expenses would need to be redistributed to all of the
remaining programs. This would create a larger cut, or a higher fee increase, than $1 million to the
mandated programs to cover this additional indirect cost and continue to operate.

General Fund
Contribution/Fund

ORG ~|Org Description .i|Match Required = Balanc.
22129510 EH Food Services (ELPHS) MOE requirement 642,993
22129517 EH Wastewater (ELPHS) MOE requirement 285,288
22129520 Vision (ELPHS) Yes-35.06% CBR Match, MOE Requirement 259,432
22129521 Hearing (ELPHS) Yes-35.06% CBR Match, MOE Requirement 271,509
22129533 Immunizations (ELPHS) Yes-35.06% CBR Match, MOE Requirement 248,543
22129544 Sexually Transmitted Disease (STD) (ELPHS) | Yes-35.06% CBR Match, MOE Requirement 168,091
22129546 Communicable Disease (ELPHS) Yes-35.06% CBR Match, MOE Requirement 888,606
22129503 PHEP (Mandated) Yes- 10% Match 57,185
22129509 EH Field Services (Mandated) N/A 199,037
22129511 EH Type 2 (Mandated) N/A 31,736
22129513 EH Real Estate (Mandated, Local Code) N/A 225,596
22129531 Family Planning (Mandated Minimal Level)  Yes- 10% CBR Match. Title 712,774
22129584 Health Education (Mandated) N/A 778,234

TOTAL for Mandated Services* 4,769,024

*includes County Admin OH costs in the amount assessed to each program
*total amount proposed by Gibbs is $3.8 million
*unclear if state would withhold ELPHS funds for failure to meet all mandates or if would only withhold for failure
to meet ELPHS funding requirements

22129525 Pathways to Better Health (ldentified N/A 217,972
Community Need)

22129532 Dental Grants-Seal (ldentified Community N/A 16,124
Need)

22129534 |Dental Services-MOS (Identified Community | N/A 534,867
Need)

22129539 Children's Special Health Care (CSCHS) N/A 389,726

22129542 Maternal Infant Health Program (MIHP) Yes-35.06% CBR Match, MOE Requirement 934,764
(Identified Community Need)

22129545 Medicaid Outreach Yes-50% Match 368,632

22129556 Ottawa Food (Identified Community Need) N/A 8,950

22129561 Local Grant-CSCHS N/A 8,360

12,017,443

Note: Essential Local Public Health Service
Note: Other Mandated Services
Note: Identified as a community need in Ottawa County
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Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 6:33 PM

To: Adeline Hambley; Alison Clark; Deborah Price; Derel Glashower; Gwen Unzicker; Kris Conrad; Lisa
Uganski; Marcia Mansaray; Nina Baranowski; Sandra Lake; Spencer Ballard; Tony Benjamin

Subject: FW: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget

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

To: John Gibbs <jgibbs@miottawa.org>; Karen Karasinski <kkarasinski@miottawa.org>
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

Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 6:45 PM

To: Jacob Bonnema; Doug Zylstra

Subject: FW: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget

Attachments: 2023.08.28 FY 24 PH Budget - Response to 8.25.23 Request JGibbs.pdf

Commissioner Bonnema & Commissioner Zylstra,

As you requested to stay informed on budget updates, | wanted to share the most recent request and response. Of
note, if the Family Planning Program is unable to provide the level of service required to meet the requirements of the
federal Title X grant, those funds will be redistributed to another Title X service provided (the nearest of which is
Planned Parenthood in Kent County). This is why, decades ago, the conservative Ottawa County Commissioners voted to
establish a Title X Family Planning Program within the County Health Department, allowing as much local control as
possible.

If you have questions, or would like to meet and discuss, please reach out.

Helpful link for an overview of OCDPH programs: https://www.miottawa.org/Health/pdf/About-Our-Programs.pdf

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

To: Jacob Bonnema <jbonnema@miottawa.org>; Doug Zylstra <dzylstra@miottawa.org>
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

Sent: Tuesday, August 29, 2023 6:32 PM
To: Adeline Hambley

Subject: RE: Meeting

Follow Up Flag: Flag for follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Good evening Adeline,

Thank you for capturing the information that | have requested. | am asking for the information so | can be helpful, point
to successes of the Health Department and seek solutions.

I need to give context or background to the statement you made about, “welcoming discussions since December.”
During my meeting with John Shay and Patrick Waterman in late November, John shared constructive steps Lisa was
taking to transition the OCPHD from her leadership and preparing for the next leader. | recognized that she cared about
the department and people that she led and asked to meet with her. John said he would arrange a meeting.

After not hearing back from John, approximately 2 weeks later, | called and asked John about meeting with Lisa. It was
during this phone call he told me that you were training with Lisa and would be filling in as interim Administrative Health
Director, | asked to meet with both of you. He gave me Lisa’s office number, | called and left a message, it may have
been the Monday before the December 13, 2022 BOC meeting.

| had hoped as a nurse, to be bridge between parents and the OCPHD. Had | known you were interested in in the role of
Administrative Health Director, | certainly would have considered you for the role.

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
Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 6:31 PM
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To: Gretchen Cosby <gcosby@miottawa.org>
Subject: RE: Meeting

Thank you for your email. | appreciate your communication, and | am working on gathering the requested information. |
wanted to let you know that it may be a few days before | can provide some of it, as much of my weekend and today
have been spent helping provide answers for Karen from Fiscal Services, so that she can assist Administrator Gibbs with
his various requests for different possible budget decrease scenarios, and the ramifications of each. This work is
ongoing, and | didn’t want you to think that | don’t consider your message important. As you know, | have welcomed
discussions with you and your colleagues in my various communications, offering to meet since December prior to when
the Commission took office in January. Please know that | am working to provide the information in Friday’s request as
soon as possible.

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
Sent: Monday, August 28, 2023 12:19 PM

To: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>
Subject: Meeting

Good Afternoon,

Thank you for sending me the online link for the Ottawa County Health Department programs, | am interested in setting
the Health Department up for success, regardless of what has been reported in the media.

If you could provide the other data points | requested by program, | would be willing to meet with you to see if there is
an advocacy opportunity for specific programs and program requirements.

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

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 9:51 AM

To: Jacob Bonnema

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

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 9:50 AM
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

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 9:53 AM

To: Jacob Bonnema

Subject: FW: Long-term unfilled, budgeted positions

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

RE: Long-term unfilled, budgeted positions

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

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 10:56 AM

To: John Gibbs; Karen Karasinski

Subject: RE: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget
Attachments: 2023.08.28 FY 24 PH Budget Information Update.pdf
John,

| wanted to follow-up as | haven’t heard from you. | understand you’ve been meeting with Karen as she has been
discussing with Public Health and Public Health Fiscal Services for information about programming.

Attached is an updated version of the document | shared on Monday. A few typos were corrected, and there was a total
sum at the bottom of the chart on the last page that needed to be deleted as it was not reflective of any data (it was a
left-over sum function in the chart that wasn’t deleted). | also added additional information around the 1993 MOE
calculation on page 10.

| am happy to continue to answer questions from fiscal services regarding the operations of Public Health. Please reach
out with any questions.

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
portion (51.3 million) of their 53 million fund balance to reach $3.8 million, the average general
fund contribution from 2009 to 2019. Please transfer S1.5 million of the remaining Public Health
fund balance to the County’s contingency fund (unless specific parameters prevent it).

2. Eliminate all COVID positions approved at the August 24, 2021 Full Board of Commissioners
meeting, totaling $2,179,153. (See the attached for more info)

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

0 August 1, 2023, August 10, 2023, and August 21, 2023
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

NUMBER OF VACANT LAND EVALUATIONS COMPLETED BY FISCAL
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

Page 9 of 14

PS000135




The MOE for Public Health is based on a calculation from Fiscal Year 1993. At that time the total general fund

provided was $2,958,616, of which $2,039,774 i
we ; . .
community. ’ ,039, nt to public health operations to provide services to the
_ : -
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
Department through item #1 above ’»

w

Other adjustments needed, (e.g., non—
public health activities) Explanation:

Cigarette Tax included in item #1 328,227
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

Lt dona 2%
Health Officer Dhte 7

NOTE:

* 56,258,978 is the equivalent value of $2,958,616 (1993) in 2023
e 202,165 population of Ottawa County in 1993 (~100,000 less people)

e PerM
DHHS, the same methodology used for the FY 1993 calculation must be used to calculate the MOE each year 2023
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

Their wages and benefits are paid through the Epi Lab Capacity Infection Prevention grant from the
Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS).

The remaining positions are vacant and the costs have been backed out of the requested FY 2024
budget.

The savings would result from four people--an estimated total of $221,876.

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

e COVID-19 SUD — Public is mandated to provide health education. The level of health education and
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

COVID Immunization —While this grant isn’t required, Ottawa County, through Public Health, is still
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

P 13 of 14
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

ORG ~|Org Description _i|Match Required Balanc_
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
*total amount proposed by Gibbs is 53.8 million
*unclear if state would withhold ELPHS funds for failure to meet all mandates or if would only withhold for failure
to meet ELPHS funding requirements
22129525 Pathways to Better Health (Identified N/A 217,972
Community Need)
22129532 Dental Grants-Seal (Identified Community N/A 16,124
Need)
22129534 Dental Services-MOS (Identified Community | N/A 534,867
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
22129556 Ottawa Food (Identified Community Need) | N/A 8,950
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

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 11:00 AM

To: Jacob Bonnema; Doug Zylstra

Subject: FW: Final Public Health FY2024 Budget
Attachments: 2023.08.28 FY 24 PH Budget Information Update.pdf

Per your requests, keeping you in the loop regarding budgets. Slightly updated document attached and a touch base
with Administrator Gibbs regarding budget.

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

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 11:01 AM

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

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 12:46 PM
To: Gretchen Cosby

Subject: RE: Meeting

Attachments: 2022_2023 PH information sharing.pdf

Commissioner Cosby,
| wanted to share some information to get you started. Attached is a pdf of communication reaching out and various
information shared in the past. This might be helpful to find past documents shared.

The following links also provide some great info on program performance highlights:

e https://www.miottawa.org/Health/OCHD/admin.htm#ARPT
Bottom of the page are the annual reports, these reports provide an excellent highlight of services and
outcomes

e https://www.miottawa.org/Health/OCHD/data.htm#CommunicableDisease
The communicable disease reports will provide a nice summary of annual reportable diseases in Ottawa County,
which, as you know, all require work on behalf of public health.

| will also forward you some email threads that have been sent to Administrator Gibbs regarding the Public Health
budget. It appears that the information may not be being shared with the full Committee. Those emails/reports have
information that provides some context to funding mechanisms and limitations. There are also some statistics in the
attached documents.

If you have specific questions as you review this information, please let me know. Moving forward, | will share any
budget communication to Administrator Gibbs to ensure, as chair of the Finance Committee Workgroup, that you
receive the information.

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

| need to give context or background to the statement you made about, “welcoming discussions since December.”
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

From: John Shay

Sent: Friday, December 16, 2022 10:20 AM

To: Gretchen Cosby

Cc: Lynne Doyle; Lisa Stefanovsky; Adeline Hambley; Marcie VerBeek; Karen Karasinski; Patrick Waterman
Subject: RE: Meetings with Department Leadership

Importance: High

Hi, Gretchen:

| think it’s a great idea for you to meet with Lynne, Lisa and Adeline to learn more about the Community Mental Health
and Public Health departments. Their contact info is as follows:

e Lisa Stefanovsky: Istefanovsky@miottawa.org; 616-393-5781
e Adeline Hambley: ahambley@miottawa.org; 616-393-5625
e Lynne Doyle: |doyle@miottawa.org; 616-494-5421

With respect to determining the number of FTEs for each department, we do not use a specific labor statistic. The
process for adding new positions is that the department head or elected official, as the case may be, submits a written
request for a new position(s). The request specifies the position(s), the funding source(s) and the justification for it. The
department head then meets with HR Director Marcie Ver Beek, Fiscal Services Director Karen Karasinski and me to
make their case. We then review this information and make a recommendation to the Finance Committee. The Finance
Committee reviews this information and then makes a recommendation to the Board of Commissioners, which has the
final say.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Have a great weekend.

John Shay | County Administrator

12220 Fillmore St. | West Olive, Michigan 49460 | 616-738-4642
jshay@p Ottawa.org | www.p Dttawa.org

Ottawa County
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From: Gretchen Cosby <gretchen.cosby@Ileader-work.com>
Sent: Friday, December 16, 2022 8:55 AM

To: John Shay <jshay@miottawa.org>

Subject: Meetings with Department Leadership

Good Morning John,
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| would like to meet with Lynne Doyle, Lisa Stephanosky and Adeline Hambly hopefully next
week, if holidays and vacations allow. My goal is to learn about their departments initiatives
and how | can be helpful in my role as County Commissioner. Are you ok with my reaching out
to the department heads directly so we can coordinate calendars?

On another subject, budget. Does the county use a labor statistic to determine number of full
time equivalent(FTE) hours are required to properly staff a department? If no, what is the
process for adding new positions? The County Commissioners have the responsibility to
approve new positions and it helps me to understand the background work that has been
completed before the position comes to the board for approval. We compete for FTE’s in
health systems, the leader has to make their case, so to speak.

It looks like Stephanie has been starting the onboarding process for the new commissioners
and | will be reaching out to Regina MacMiillian to meet so | can collect a county laptop and
establish network access.

Have a great weekend, thank you!

Gretchen Cosby

Sent from Mail for Windows
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Adeline Hambley

From: Lisa Stefanovsky

Sent: Friday, December 16, 2022 1:39 PM
To: Gretchen Cosby; Adeline Hambley
Subject: RE: Request for a meeting
Importance: High

HI Gretchen.

Thank you so much for reaching out. We would welcome the opportunity to meet with you to share information about
the department and to learn more about our how we may work collaboratively toward our mutual goal of a healthy
Ottawa County population. It looks like Addie and | both have flexibility in our schedules on Monday from 11:30 to 3:30
and on Thursday morning until noon. Let us know if these times work for you. Shall we plan on an hour (ish)?

Lisa

Lisa Stefanovsky, M.Ed.
Ottawa County Department of Public Health
Administrative Health Officer
office: 616.393.5781
wmiOftawa Department of

Public Health

Fle%»®

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

Sent: Friday, December 16, 2022 1:20 PM

To: Lisa Stefanovsky <Istefanovsky@miottawa.org>; Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>
Subject: Request for a meeting

Good Afternoon,

My name is Gretchen Cosby and | am the newly elected County Commissioner for District 1 in
Ottawa County. | am emailing to see if the 2 of you have time next week to meet with me, | am
interested in initiatives at the health department, transition planning and how | can be helpful
to the health department in my new role.

| look forward to meeting both of you and working together. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
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Gretchen Cosby

Sent from Mail for Windows
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Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Monday, February 6, 2023 2:03 PM

To: Sylvia Rhodea; Gretchen Cosby; Lucy Ebel; Doug Zylstra; Jacob Bonnema; Joe Moss; Rebekah Curran;
Roger Belknap; Allison Miedema; John Gibbs

Subject: Michigan Local Public Health Accreditation Program--Follow-up Information

Attachments: Plan of Organization 2018_merged_final.pdf; TotalSiteVisit_6_25_2018.pdf

Good afternoon everyone,

| wanted to follow-up with the information requested at the Health and Human Services Committee meeting. | have
attached the Plan of Organization document from Cycle 7 Accreditation in 2018, as well as the full “Total Site Visit
Report”.

Additionally, here is a link to the Cycle 8 Tool for the accreditation visit in July 2023,
https://accreditation.localhealth.net/accreditation-tools-timeline/cycle-8-tool/

Please reach out if you have any questions. Thank you!

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

Sent: Thursday, March 23, 2023 1:10 PM

To: Sylvia Rhodea; Gretchen Cosby; Lucy Ebel; Doug Zylstra; Jacob Bonnema; Joe Moss; Rebekah Curran;
Roger Belknap; Allison Miedema

Cc: John Gibbs

Subject: Poverty Education Workshop Opportunity

Good Afternoon Health & Human Services Committee,

| wanted to share an upcoming workshop opportunity at the Fillmore Main Conference Room that may be of interest to
you. Access West Michigan is offering The Poverty Education Workshop to help participants gain insights into the
barriers faced by low-income individuals through role-playing the lives of various family types experiencing poverty.

Sign-up is now open for the workshop.
e Two different dates are being offered (you only need to select one).
0 April 20, 2023: https://www.eventbrite.com/e/poverty-education-workshop-april-20-2023-tickets-
476651997957
0 September 14, 2023: https://www.eventbrite.com/e/poverty-education-workshop-september-14-2023-
tickets-476678075957
e For more information on Access West Michigan’s Poverty Education: https://accessofwestmichigan.org/about-
us/poverty-education/

99%

of Participants reported that they have of Participants reported that the of Participants ag
increased sensitivity and compassion workshop increased their Michigan’s Pove
related to issues of poverty because of awareness of the root causes of improved their u

the workshop. poverty. means to live as

Please reach out with any questions. Thanks so much!

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

From: Sylvia Rhodea

Sent: Monday, April 10, 2023 4:37 PM

To: Adeline Hambley

Cc: Gretchen Cosby; John Gibbs; Jack Jordan; Joe Moss
Subject: RE: Public Health Accreditation 2023--Plan of Organization

OK. Sounds good. Thank you.

Sylvia Rhodea

From: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>

Sent: Monday, April 10, 2023 2:37 PM

To: Sylvia Rhodea <srhodea@miottawa.org>

Cc: Gretchen Cosby <gcosby@miottawa.org>; John Gibbs <jgibbs@miottawa.org>; Jack Jordan <jjordan@miottawa.org>
Subject: RE: Public Health Accreditation 2023--Plan of Organization

Commissioner Rhodea,

Good to hear from you. This weekend was lovely, it was so nice to finally feel like spring is here! We are currently
working on completing the draft of the Plan of Organization, so | have not yet shared it with Jack or John. However, once
draft is completed | will be sure to share with them so they can review as well. | am hoping to have a draft for everyone
to take a look at later this week. If there are any questions in the interim, please don’t hesitate to reach out.

Have a wonderful day,

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

From: Sylvia Rhodea <srhodea@miottawa.org>

Sent: Monday, April 10, 2023 2:03 PM

To: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>

Cc: Gretchen Cosby <gcosby@miottawa.org>; John Gibbs <jgibbs@ miottawa.org>; Jack Jordan <jjordan@miottawa.org>
Subject: Public Health Accreditation 2023--Plan of Organization

Adeline,
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| hope you had a great weekend. Thank you for the information. | am unable to meet this week. | noticed there is a
section on legal. Has this been reviewed by corporate counsel yet?

Sincerely,

Sylvia Rhodea

From: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>
Sent: Wednesday, April 5, 2023 12:35:19 PM

To: Sylvia Rhodea <srhodea@ miottawa.org>; Gretchen Cosby <gcosby@miottawa.org>
Subject: Public Health Accreditation 2023--Plan of Organization

Commissioners Rhodea and Cosby,

| hope you are both doing well and staying safe in this strange weather. | wanted to reach out and follow-up on the
Michigan Local Public Health Accreditation Program and the Plan of Organization. Ottawa County’s Public Health
Accreditation Program site visit has been rescheduled to the week of July 17, 2023 (originally was July 10, 2023). As part
of the Minimum Program Requirements, the local health department is required to submit the Plan of Organization to
the MDHHS Division of Local Health Services at least 60 days before the scheduled site visit. The Plan of Organization is
signed by the Health Officer and the Board Chair. However, in past practice, the Plan of Organization has been reviewed
with the Health and Human Services Committee prior to going to the Chair for signature. As our visit is scheduled for the
week of July 17, 2023, the deadline to submit the signed Plan of Organization to the Accreditation Committee is May 18,
2023.

A draft Plan of Organization should be completed soon and | will share for your review. If you would like to meet prior to
the next Health and Human Services Committee meeting to discuss the draft and review the Accreditation process,
please let me know your availability on Wed. 4/12, Thurs. 4/13 or Fri. 4/14 and | will get something scheduled.

Link to additional information on Accreditation Requirements: https://accreditation.localhealth.net/accreditation-tools-
timeline/cycle-8-tool/

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

PS000153



Adeline Hamblez

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Wednesday, April 12, 2023 1:57 PM

To: Sylvia Rhodea; Gretchen Cosby

Cc: John Gibbs

Subject: Health and Human Services Committee--Disease update

Good afternoon!

| wanted to touch base with you both about providing a disease update at the Health and Human Services Committee. In
the past, the Medical Director would provide an update on emerging diseases/illnesses or specific trends in Ottawa
County. This spring, we have seen increases in foodborne iliness complaints and gastrointestinal illness (Gl) reports
(compared to fall/winter). So it seems like it might be a good time to provide an update at the April Committee meeting.
Usually an update is approximately 10 minutes. The update from the Medical Director, Dr. Unzicker, for the April
Committee meeting would include: spring foodborne illness complaint trends/Gl illness trends in Ottawa and general
information on spring chicks, salmonella, and preventing illness.
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Ottawa County Emergency Department (ED) and Urgent Care (UC) Visits with Gl Illr
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Please let me know if you have any specific questions related to these topics. Thank you!

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

S
'19 > Eg;‘l?
B

e 22 2-23 523500

10.7%

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

Sent: Thursday, May 18, 2023 1:23 PM

To: Sylvia Rhodea; Gretchen Cosby; Lucy Ebel; Jacob Bonnema; Joe Moss; Rebekah Curran; Roger
Belknap; Doug Zylstra; Allison Miedema

Cc: John Gibbs

Subject: RE: OCDPH Cycle 8 Accreditation Plan of Organization

Attachments: 2023 Accreditation Cycle 8 Plan of Organization_Ottawa County PH FINAL.pdf

| apologize for an additional email, but it looks like there was a conversion error between Teams and Adobe that caused
hyperlinks to break. Attached is an updated Plan of Organization document with working links.

Thank you!

Adeline Hambley, MBA, PMP, REHS

Administrative Health Officer

Ottawa County Dept. of Public Health

12251 James Street, Suite 400 | Holland, Ml | 49424
616-393-5625 | miOttawa.org/health

mi Ottawa Department of

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

Sent: Thursday, May 18, 2023 12:36 PM

To: Sylvia Rhodea <srhodea@miottawa.org>; Gretchen Cosby <gcosby@miottawa.org>; Lucy Ebel
<lebel@miottawa.org>; Jacob Bonnema <jbonnema@miottawa.org>; Joe Moss <jmoss@miottawa.org>; Rebekah
Curran <rcurran@miottawa.org>; Roger Belknap <rbelknap@miottawa.org>; Doug Zylstra <dzylstra@miottawa.org>;
Allison Miedema <amiedema@miottawa.org>

Cc: John Gibbs <jgibbs@miottawa.org>

Subject: OCDPH Cycle 8 Accreditation Plan of Organization

Chair Rhodea, Vice Chair Cosby, and Health & Human Services Committee members,

Attached is the Ottawa County Department of Public Health Plan of Organization document for the 2023 Cycle 8
Accreditation. As a copy of the document would have originally been provided at the May committee meeting, | wanted
to follow-up and share the document with you via email. The state does require the signature of the Local Governing
Entity Chairperson (attachment A is the signature page). For easier processing for Chairman Moss, | will submit the
document electronically through the same process as contract ratification.

| have also included the Local Health Department (LHD) Plan of Organization Instructional Guide for reference. Please
note, there were small discrepancies in the stated order between the guidance document and the checklist. The final
arrangement of the OCDPH Plan of Organization followed the checklist document (page 12 in instructional guide,
Attachment B in the OCDPH document).
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Please reach out with any questions. Have a wonderful day!

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

PS000157



Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 12:48 PM

To: Gretchen Cosby

Subject: FW: 2022 Public Health Annual Report & Follow-up Info
Attachments: Public Health annual report 2022 slides.pptx

Some information here that may be helpful.

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

Sent: Monday, February 20, 2023 4:28 PM

To: Allison Miedema <amiedema@miottawa.org>; Doug Zylstra <dzylstra@miottawa.org>; Gretchen Cosby
<gcosby@miottawa.org>; Jacob Bonnema <jbonnema@miottawa.org>; Joe Moss <jmoss@miottawa.org>; Kyle Terpstra
<kterpstra@miottawa.org>; Lucy Ebel <lebel@miottawa.org>; Rebekah Curran <rcurran@miottawa.org>; Roger Belknap
<rbelknap@miottawa.org>; Roger Bergman <rbergman@miottawa.org>; Sylvia Rhodea <srhodea@miottawa.org>

Cc: John Gibbs <jgibbs@miottawa.org>; Patrick Waterman <pwaterman@miottawa.org>; Jack Jordan
<jjordan@miottawa.org>

Subject: 2022 Public Health Annual Report & Follow-up Info

Commissioners,
Attached are the slides from the 2022 Public Health Annual Report.

As there were some questions regarding Man Therapy and suicide rates, please visit this website for more information
on the Suicide Prevention Coalition: https://miottawa.org/Health/OCHD/suicide prevention.htm

From Leslie Ver Duin, BSN, RN, the Child Health Team Supervisor, here is additional information on Children’s Special
Health Care Services (CSHCS):

Important things to note:
e  CSHCS covers over 2,700 diagnoses
*  Providing a breakdown of each diagnosis is a challenge due to HIPAA as some are very rare
genetic disorders and there may only be one case.
e Children must be receiving specialty care; CSHCS doesn’t cover primary care visits
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e CSHCS doesn’t cover behavioral diagnoses or syndromes, but may cover certain care that may be a
result of those

e MDHHS medical consultants ultimately determine eligibility

Today, we currently have 1,488 enrolled clients in Ottawa County.

e This number can fluctuate daily due to days clients turn 21 and age off, and with continuous enrollment,
or decisions not to renew by families. Unfortunately it also includes factors like client deaths, because
this program encompasses care for those whose medical care needs can be very fragile.

e We can often see anywhere from 8-20 new enrollees each week.

We attribute our continued growth due to the relatively close proximity of Helen DeVos Children’s Hospital as
well as the many resources for connection and assistance that have been built and uplifted here in Ottawa
County for our community members.

Helpful basic information about the CSHCS program is located on the state website: General Information For
Families About "Children's Special Health Care Services" (CSHCS) (michigan.gov)

Within the above link it includes this information about the list of ICD-10 codes with their description of the
eligible diagnoses for the CSHCS program: CSHCS-Diagnosis Codes-11-2003.pdf (michigan.gov)

According to the State of Michigan CSHCS program, there are over 2,700 qualifying diagnoses. Here they are
grouped into similar diagnoses, and it is searchable by pressing ‘Ctrl’ & ‘F’ on your keyboard while in this table.

When considering these diagnoses however, it is important to reiterate the eligibility factors of the program. In
addition to a qualifying diagnosis that is a physical diagnosis, the severity, chronicity and need for treatment by a
subspecialist then is weighed to determine the eligibility for each individual. This is decision is solely made by a
MDHHS medical consultant (MD) based on the medical reports from the treating subspecialist.
e Please note also that syndromes are no longer considered qualifying diagnoses on their own, however
how the syndrome manifests itself as a physical diagnosis for an individual can be reviewed for
eligibility.

Good insight into the beginnings of the CSHCS program can be seen in this video recording of the Director of the
CSHCS in Lansing, Lonnie Barnett himself: https://mdch.train.org/breeze/intro/Ihdintro.mp4
It is not quite 6 minutes long, and is part of the local health department CSHCS staff orientation.

Please let me know if you have additional questions. Thank you!

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

ANNUAL
REPORT

2022

Adeline Hambley, Health Officer
Gwen Unzicker M.D., Medical Director

miltlowa Department of

Public Health

v Highlights

ANNUAL
S 1.0utbreak Response — Shiga Toxin REPORT
ur viission . .
‘Working together to assure PrOdUCIng E'CO“ (STEC) 2022
e 2.Lead Poisoning Prevention Program Expanded

Services

Our Vision

Healthy people

3.Composting Program Offered at Sustainability

Our Values Sites

Equity: All people will be valued and treated

it i s wid et 4.Man Therapy — Suicide Prevention
Integrity: Uphold the highest level of ethical

standards 5.End of Life Services — Medical Examiner
Excellence: Provide the highest quality

product, service and customer experience Pa rt n e rS h i p S
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9/30/2023

STEC OUTBREAK RESPONSE Pubic fcaitn
August 8—11 ANNUAL

REPORT

2022

Q 8 Aug. 2022 Q 11 Aug. 2022
i OCDPH notified of 6 STEC cases. Food was formally seized by OCDPH and Wendy'’s
i e Communicable Disease (CD) Team alerted Public voluntarily closed.
. Health Surveillance Team due to abnormal increase Foodborne illness investigation conducted by
i in cases. Environmental Health at Wendy’s

v

CD Team identified a close contact of hospitalized HUS
case as a food service worker at Wendy’s

10 Aug. 2022

miDttawa Department of

Public Health

STEC OUTBREAK RESPONSE P Fremith

Behlnd the Scenes Ottawa County Cases ANNUAL

13 STEC Cases in August 2022 REPORT
Early notification & response due to * 6 hospitalized 2022
relationships with health partners * 3 pediatric cases developed HUS
First local health department to conduct ,‘
foodborne iliness investigation at a Wendy’s )

establishment regarding STEC outbreak =

National Environmental Assessment .
Reporting System (NEARS) completed w2

Environmental sampling conducted { = |

Education provided to close contacts & o
food service workers

"

Increase in foodborne illness complaints ) .
Nationwide Cases

Daily meetings with Wendy’s Corporate, -
Franchisee, state, local, and federal * 109 total cases (67 in Ml)

partners * 52 hospitalizations

* 6 states (MI, NY, PA, OH, IN, KY)
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LEAD POISONING PREVENTION SUPPORT

Exposure to lead can seriously harm a child's health. S u p po rt Beyo n d Lea d M |t|gat| on
Damage to the No known safe level of lead
brain and fgﬁ}":g,ﬁ[ﬁ“mm Since 2016, OCDPH nurses have provided education,
nervous system NEop resources, and nursing case management to children

under 6 with elevated blood lead [evels (EBLL)
EBLL was lowered in 2022 from 5ug/dL to 3.5ug/dL

Rl Prior to 2022, only children with Medicaid health
Hearing and care coverage were eligible for case management

=peschiproblens Expansion of services in 2022 to non-Medicaid
covered children

Learning and
J behavior problems

EBLL children often experience underlying conditions
that affect health, such as:

* Food insecurity, poverty, lack of education, lack of safe
housing or transportation
Community Health Worker (CHW) added to link
families to resources in the community
* Home visits to assess needs
* Connect to community resources

* Assists with lead abatement program application for
financial assistance

9/30/2023

Public He '

ANNUAL
REPORT

2022

NEW COMPOSTING PROGRAM

Composting for a Healthy Community

¢ of typical municipal garb
=505 ..

* A healthy environment is a foundation to a healthy out at the curb is com

community
* Composting recycles organic matter resulting in:
 Fertile, healthy soil
* Reduces usable materials sent to landfills
* Increases water retention of soil
* Decreases soil erosion

Backyard composting not feasible for many
residents

Program fills need for residents and small
businesses to compost food waste into usable
material for local farms

Number of users more than doubled over 2022

Over 2 tons of food waste has been turned into
compost

Environmental

SUSTAINABILITY

ANNUAL
REPORT

2022
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Addressing Men’s Mental Health

* Ottawa residents who died by suicide in 2021:
* 91% were men
* 24% were veterans

Over the past decade, 75% of deaths by suicide in
Ottawa County were men

One reason identified was reluctance to access
mental health services

Man Therapy is an innovative program that uses
humor & personal stories to reshape conversation
about men’s mental health

Partnerships with Veterans Administration &
Ottawa County Dept. of Veterans Affairs

Outreach included social media, advertising &
presentations

Results:

* Increased visitors accessing materials 295%

* Completion of the “head inspection” self assessment
increased 106%

ANNUAL
REPORT

2022

r\\ -
INEVER mmoh

YOUR
MIND’S

CHECK ENGINE LIGHT.

mantherapy.

Thesapy, The wey o m:

Offering End of Life Dignity

OCDPH provides programs from birth through the end of life

When someone passes away without next of kin, there is no
one IE'O aollect their remains or hold a funeral or memorial of
any kin

For many years there was no formal program for facilitating
burial for indigent persons or unclaimed remains

2020 OCDPH & the Medical Examiner Program partnered with
two funeral homes & an Ottawa County municipality to begin a
formal program to care for unclaimed remains

In 2021 the program and partnerships continued to expand
Remains of these individuals are now cremated & transported
to adlocal cemetery where the ashes are placed in a dedicated
garden

A memorial plaque is purchased & displayed to acknowledge

life & the final resting place of each person

In 2022, services were provided to 18 individuals in Ottawa
County

wiOttawa Department of

Public Health

ANNUAL
REPORT

2022
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ANNUAL
REPORT

2022

Adeline Hambley, Health Officer
Gwen Unzicker M.D., Medical Director

9

9/30/2023

wmiOttawa Department of

Holland
12251 James Street
Holland, MI 40424

Grand Haven
1207 South Beechtree Street, Suite B
Grand Haven, Ml 49417

Hudsonville
3100 Port Sheldon Avenue
Hudsonville, Ml 49426

Espafol: (616) 393-5780

s miQttawa.org/Health/fOCHD

' @mIOCOPH

0 ImiOttawaHealth

@ @mIOCOPH
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Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 12:49 PM

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

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 12:50 PM

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

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 12:51 PM

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
Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 1:07 PM
To: Adeline Hambley; Alison Clark; Deborah Price; Derel Glashower; Gwen Unzicker; Kris Conrad; Lisa

Uganski; Marcia Mansaray; Nina Baranowski; Sandra Lake; Spencer Ballard; Tony Benjamin
Subject: FW: Meeting
Attachments: 2022_2023 PH information sharing.pdf

FYL.

| also forwarded to Gretchen a previous email with Annual Report that was shared with the full Board, as well as emails
to Administrator Gibbs.

If you could have your teams work on the PH Impact document in teams this week, | can work on compiling info early
next week to share with Commissioner Cosby.

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

e https://www.miottawa.org/Health/OCHD/data.htm#fCommunicableDisease
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

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 3:31 PM
To: Karen Karasinski

Cc: Nina Baranowski; Marcia Mansaray
Subject: RE: Proposed budget cut spreadsheet

How are cuts to various programs being determined? Beyond maintenance of effort there are minimum program
requirements required in law.

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

From: Karen Karasinski <kkarasinski@miottawa.org>

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 3:27 PM

To: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>

Cc: Nina Baranowski <nbaranowski@miottawa.org>; Marcia Mansaray <mmansaray@miottawa.org>
Subject: RE: Proposed budget cut spreadsheet

Hi Addie,
We're still trying to balance it so it makes sense. | will share as soon as | can.

Karen

From: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 3:25 PM

To: Karen Karasinski <kkarasinski@miottawa.org>

Cc: Nina Baranowski <nbaranowski@miottawa.org>; Marcia Mansaray <mmansaray@miottawa.org>
Subject: Proposed budget cut spreadsheet

Hi Karen,

| have heard that there is a proposed budget cut spreadsheet for Public Health, can you please share?
Thank you!

Adeline Hambley, MBA, PMP, REHS
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Adeline Hambley

From: Alison Clark

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 5:18 PM

To: Adeline Hambley

Subject: FW: For Immediate Release: Adeline Hambley Provides Update to Public Health Budget Cuts
Attachments: 2023.08.28 FY 24 PH Budget Information Update.pdf; 2023.08.30 PH Budget Timeline

Communication.pdf

From: Alison Clark
Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 5:18 PM
Subject: For Immediate Release: Adeline Hambley Provides Update to Public Health Budget Cuts

miOttawo Deportment of

Public Health

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
August 30, 2023

Adeline Hambley, Health Officer at the Ottawa County Department of Public Health is today providing an update to the
ongoing Public Health budget process.

As of today, Ottawa County Fiscal Services is creating a new Public Health budget at the direction of Administrator John
Gibbs, without input from leadership at the health department. Public Health has not been consulted about this budget,
or provided with any information on the proposed budget or suggested cuts. Despite Hambley’s best efforts to inform
and educate County Administration on the complexity of funding mechanisms and statuatory program requirements of a
local health department in Michigan, and her offers to discuss public health programs, funding, and legal requirements
on numerous occasions, the Health Officer was not included in this process.

The Ottawa County general fund contribution to Public Health will be $3.8 million (of which $1.3 million is from Public
Health Fund Balance). The County Administrative costs to Public Health will be subtracted from this $3.8 million
budget ($1,664,989). Of note, the average County Administrative cost to Public Health for the period of 2009 to 2019 -
the same period Public Health funding is being required to meet - was $328,789. Although Public Health is being
expected to receive the average general fund contribution for the period of 2009 to 2019, Public Health is being
expected to pay County Administrative costs of $1,664,989 in FY 2024. Any remaining eligible Public Health Fund
Balance will be moved to the County Contingency Fund.

e The proposal from the Administrator demands cuts be made across all Public Health programs, while
maintaining the required State of Michigan minimum maintenance of effort. While the budget requirements for
the maintenance of effort may be met, cuts of this magnitude will not allow the health department to
demonstrate adequate provision of required services.

e At this time, Hambley has met all requests by County Administration to the best of her ability, including
providing four budget scenarios which outline the consequences of not meeting the State’s minimum
requirements for all essential local public health services, such as food inspections; drinking water and sewage
disposal permitting and inspecting; hearing and vision services for children, and communicable disease
surveillance;
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e To our knowledge, no other Ottawa County department has been asked to make reductions of any kind or are
being required to utilize fund balance monies to meet their FY 2024 budget needs;

e To our knowledge, no other department has had a budget created for it by County Adminsitration without input
from the department head or other leadership;

e County Administration has obstructed the department’s ability to communicate with the public and are using
the health department’s platforms to communicate their own messages.

Additional details, which were provided to Administrator Gibbs this week, and a timeline of the budget process are in
the documents attached.

Hambley will be available for interviews this evening and tomorrow, Thursday, August 31.

Thanks,
Alison

Alison Clark

(she/her/hers)

Communications Specialist/Public Information Officer
12251 James Street, Suite 400 | Holland, M| 49424
Office: (616) 494-5597 | (616) 550-3641

miOttawa Department of

Public Health
OwviomD

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
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Public Health Budget Timeline of Communication

. August 16, 2023: Administrator Gibbs requested additional information on open positions.

. August 16, 2023: Health Officer Hambley provided information requested. Offered to
answer any additional questions.

. August 17, 2023: Administrator Gibbs requested Public Health to create a budget at 2019
funding levels, adjusted for inflation and discontinue all COVID-related grants.

. August 18, 2023: Health Officer Hambley provided a document with background

information on funding, estimated funding level when corrected for inflation, and additional
information on grants

. August 22, 2023: Administrator Gibbs requested Public Health to bring budget in line with
“historical levels” (gives figure of $2.5 million) and to discontinue all COVID-related grants.
NOTE-review of Public Health funding since 2001 shows that at no time was the general
fund contribution as low as $2.5 million.

. August 22, 2023: Health Officer Hambley provided a response with additional information
regarding significant impact to public health services and likely elimination with this level of
funding cut. Offered to meet and discuss.

. August 23, 2023: Administrator Gibbs requested to proceed with producing a budget as
close to the below directed level as possible and to discontinue all COVID-related grants.

. August 24, 2023: Health Officer Hambley provided a response to this request outlining the
scenarios of funding the Health Department at this level. As the County would no longer be
in compliance with state law and funding levels, Ottawa County would not receive any state
funding and would no longer be able to operate. Offered to meet and discuss.

. August 25, 2023: Administrator Gibbs requested Fiscal Services Director, copies Health
Officer, to create a budget with $2.5 million general fund and $1.3 million public health fund
balance for a total general fund of $3.8 million. Directive given to move remaining public
health fund balance to County contingency fund and specifies programs and grants to
eliminate or stop funding.

. August 28, 2023: Health Officer Hambley provided a response to Administrator Gibbs and
stresses the importance of Public Health working together with Fiscal Services on any
budget requests.

. August 29, 2023: Fiscal Services reported that a general fund amount of $5.4 million total
was being considered to maintain most services and service levels.

. August 30, 2023: Health Officer Hambley provided a response to Administrator Gibbs
proposing again that Public Health and Fiscal Services work together to determine the
operations and funding for Public Health.

. August 30, 2023: Fiscal Services reported that the final proposed general fund amount
received from Administrator Gibbs is $3.8 million and that they were provided direction to
reduce funding in every Public Health line item to meet this funding level. NOTE: Public
Health has not been consulted nor been provided any information on suggested cuts.
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Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 5:26 PM

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

From: Alison Clark <aclark@miottawa.org>

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

miOftawa Department of

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

Sent: Wednesday, August 30, 2023 6:40 PM

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

miQOttawa Department of

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

Sent: Friday, September 1, 2023 10:10 AM

To: Adeline Hambley

Subject: Finance Committee Meeting Tuesday 9/5

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi Addie,
Good morning and | hope all is well.

Please attend the Finance Committee meeting next Tuesday 9/5 as Chair Cosby will be giving an update on the FY24
Health Dept Budget.

Thank you,

John Gibbs | County Administrator
12220 Fillmore Street | West Olive, Michigan 49460 | 616-738-4642

A8

N/
Ottawa County
Where Freedom Rings
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Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Friday, September 1, 2023 1:33 PM

To: John Gibbs

Subject: RE: Finance Committee Meeting Tuesday 9/5
John,

| received the proposed changes from Fiscal Services around 12:45 today, if there are any changes between now and
10am on Tuesday could you please notify me.

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

Sent: Friday, September 1, 2023 4:32 PM

To: Gretchen Cosby

Subject: FW: Finance Committee Meeting Tuesday 9/5
Attachments: PH Position By Program.pdf

Commissioner Cosby,

| received a request from Administrator Gibbs to attend the Finance Committee meeting on Tuesday 9/5 meeting as you
will be giving an update on the PH budget. | received a summary document of proposed budget changes for FY24 PH
Budget today, but haven’t yet received any details. If you would like to meet to discuss any potential legal issues with
the budget as proposed prior to the meeting on Tuesday morning, please feel free to reach out. | am hoping to receive
more details on the proposed cuts soon so | can review for potential impacts and liabilities.

Also, attached is the Public Health positions (FTEs) by program document you requested. This document was previously
shared with Administrator Gibbs and Commissioner Rhodea at the Administration budget meeting June.

Here is my cell to best reach me after 5pm today (text or call is fine): (616) 690-6593

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

Sent: Monday, September 4, 2023 1:56 PM
To: John Gibbs

Subject: RE: Adeline H. Monthly w/John G.

Hi John,

| will need to reschedule this meeting. As medical POA for my mother, | have to meet a care provider on Wednesday
morning for next steps with her Alzheimer's care.

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

Sent: Thursday, January 26, 2023 2:07 PM

To: John Gibbs; Adeline Hambley

Cc: Patrick Waterman

Subject: Adeline H. Monthly w/John G.

When: Wednesday, September 6, 2023 10:30 AM-11:30 AM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).
Where: Administrator Conference Room
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Adeline Hambley

From: John Gibbs

Sent: Tuesday, September 5, 2023 2:39 PM
To: Adeline Hambley

Subject: RE: Adeline H. Monthly w/John G.

Hi Addie, thank you for the heads up, and | hope it goes well,

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

Sent: Wednesday, September 6, 2023 1:02 PM

To: Allison Miedema

Subject: FW: Health & Human Services Committee Dental Update
Attachments: 2023.06.19 Oral Health Services Overview_Pending Grants.pdf

Commissioner Miedema,

Attached is information on the Miles of Smiles program (page 1-3 of attached document). Please let me know if you
would like additional information.

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

Sent: Monday, June 19, 2023 6:36 PM

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

Subject: Health & Human Services Committee Dental Update

Chair Rhodea, Vice Chair Cosby, and Health & Human Services Committee members,

Please see attached for an information packet on OCDPH Oral Health Services (I will also bring some printed copies to
the meeting). | wanted to provide a brief overview of the Oral Health Services Program as well as a bit of information on
a couple of related grants/agreements that are moving through the review process. Delta Dental Foundation awarded a
grant for $10,000 to help fund services provided on the Miles of Smiles mobile unit. There is also an agreement
extension between OCDPH and My Community Dental Centers. Kim Singh, from My Community Dental Centers, will be
there to provide a brief overview of My Community Dental Centers and to help answer any questions you may have. |
look forward to seeing you tomorrow.

Thank you!

PS000199



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
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ORAL HEALTH SERVICES

GOAL 1

Increase access to school-based
oral health disease prevention
programs for targeted dentally at-
risk children in Ottawa County.

GOAL 2

Reduce dental disease for children
that are provided dental services
on the Miles of Smiles mobile
dental unit.

GOAL 3

Provide Ottawa County elementary
schools and Head Start Centers
with oral health education and
resources.

GOAL 4

Increase access to care for at-risk
adults in Ottawa County.

PROGRAM GOALS

wrymel
Many systemic
health conditions

show up in the
mouth first

3,725

Students received oral health

classroom education in the

Sealant Program
(2021/2022 school year)

Preventative & Restorative dental
appointments on Miles of Smiles

mobile dental unit
(2021/2022 school year)



The Miles of Smiles Mobile Dental
Unit provides on-site preventative
and restorative dental services for
low income children at schools,
head start centers, health
department clinics, migrant

. P & | 28 summer schools, and other sites
~Miles of Sm,[|€1§ &  forthe dentally underserved.
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Local dentists volunteer their
- services on Miles of Smiles to
help:

e Children 0-20 years
Children who do not have a
dentist
Medicaid/Healthy Kids Dental
Uninsured/Low Income
Select adult populations

o Holland Free Health Clinic

P o Maternal Infant Health

y l Program
o Community Mental Health

MICHIGAN

The Seal! Michigan Program is a school-based sealant

The Miles of Smiles 40ft mobile unit is equipped with a
waiting area, laboratory, two operatories, digital x-ray
and a wheel chair lift.

program that focuses on second, sixth, and seventh grade
children. Sealants are placed by a dental hygienist using
portable equipmentin the school.

Dental sealants are a white liquid painted on the grooves of
the back teeth that hardens to prevent or seal out decay. Regular dental exams
Sealants have been proven to reduce decay by more than could help keep your

70%. whole body healthy

The Ottawa County Department of Public Health provides free dental health
assessments for qualifying children, contact us @ (616) 393 -5694 or

miottawa.org/dental
PS000202
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O DELTA DENTAL

Oral diseases are associated
with stroke. Harmful bacteria
INn your mouth can make you
more susceptible to
developing blood clots, thus

Increasing the chance of a LU N GS
stroke.’

Once dental plague is
established in the mouth, it
can spread to the lungs and
cause pneumonia and
bronchitis. Maintaining good
oral health can decrease the
incidence of respiratory

. . )
High levels of inflammation FECEIONS:

associated with periodontal
disease contribute to heart
conditions. And those with
gum disease are twice as
likely to have a heart
attack.’

PANCREAS

When you're diabetic,
your pancreas doesn’t
mMmake enough insulin.
Uncontrolled diabetes
can lead to gingivitis and
other oral manifestations.”

KIDNEYS

The mouth is a gateway for
bacteria. Poor oral health
causes infections to progress
faster, increasing the kidneys’
workload.’

the CONNECTION continued

BREAST
PREGNANCY OSTEOPOROSIS CANCER

Expecting moms with

periodontal disease Women with
are more likely to have periodontal disease
a pre-term birth.° have higher rates of

Gum disease causes bone 0SS preast cancer ®
that can lead to tooth loss.’

1 https:.//www.nature.com/articles/srep20074 5 https://www.perio.org/consumer/kidney-disease
2 https://www.ncbi.nim.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC3084574/ 6 http://www.adha.org/downloads/accO508supplement.pdf
3 http://newsletters.pennnet.com/dentalenl/412315033.html 7 https://www.webmd.com/oral-health/features/oral-overall-health#1

4 http://www.ada.org/en/member-center/oral-health-topics/diabetes 8 http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed,/2096027t000203



DELTA DENTAL
FOUNDATION Delta Dental Foundation Grant Agreement Front Page

GRANT AGREEMENT

This Grant Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of March 23, 2023 (“the “Effective Date”), and entered by and
between Delta Dental Foundation, with its principal place of business at 4100 Okemos Road, Okemos, Michigan
48864, (hereinafter referred to as “DDF"), and County of Ottawa with its principal place of business at 12220
Filmore Street, West Olive, M| 49460 (hereinafter referred to as “Grantee”) (collectively the “Parties”).

WHEREAS, Grantee has submitted a proposal to DDF received on January 4, 2023 (the “Proposal”) to fund the
Miles of Smiles Oral Health Initiative described therein (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, DDF agrees to make a grant to Grantee for $10,000 to fund the Project, subject to the terms and
conditions set forth herein (the “Grant”).

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree to as follows:

: I Scope of Project. Grantee shall perform the Project as set forth in the Proposal, a copy which is
provided as Attachment A, and which is incorporated by reference herein. Any variations in the Project or the
use of Grant funds from that described in the Proposal requires the advance express written approval of DDF.

2. Project Period. The Project has been approved for a period of 12 months beginning April 1, 2023
and ending on April 1, 2024 (the “Project Period”).

Should Grantee desire to extend the duration of the Project Period, Grantee shall submit a written request to
DDF no later than sixty (60) days prior to the Project Period end date. If DDF approves the extension, the Parties
shall execute an amendment to this Agreement. An extension of the Project Period will not result in an increase
in funding.

3. Expenditures. All expenditures of Grant funds by Grantee must be spent within the Project
Period and must be consistent with the project budget as set forth in the Proposal (the “Project Budget”) and as
approved by DDF, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment B.

Any deviation from the Project Budget, such as under-spending or overspending Grant funds requires prior
written approval of DDF and may require an amendment to this Agreement, at the discretion of DDF. Deviations
from the Project Budget are not authorized retroactively.

4. Records and Reports. Grantee agrees to keep a record of all receipts and expenditures relating
to this Grant and to provide DDF with any requested interim reports in addition to a final written report
summarizing the Project (“General Grant Report”) promptly, but no later than thirty (30) days following the end
of the Project Period. A copy of the report is available online at www.deltadental.foundation/general-grant-
requests. Grantee report(s) should describe the progress in achieving the purposes of the Grant and include a
detailed financial report and project status reports along with any other information reasonably requested by
DDF in a format acceptable to DDF. If Grantee’s organization obtains any audited financial statements covering
any part of the Project Period of this Grant, please provide a copy to DDF as well. Grantee is required to keep
the financial records with respect to this Grant, along with copies of any reports submitted to DDF, for at least
four (4) years following the end of the Project Period.

4100 Ckemos Road = Okemos, M| 48864 « 517-347-5333 - deltadental.foundaticrb8000204

A 501(c)3) non-profit corporation affiliated with Delta Dental of Michigan, Ohio, Indiana, and Morth Carolina



Date the funds are requested: Delta Dental Foundation Grant Purpose

Mar 1l 2023

Provide a brief description of the program for which funds are requested.

Describe your funding request including the purpose and expected overall change your organization

expects to see as a result.

For more than 27 years, the Ottawa County Department of Public Health (OCDPH) Miles of Smiles (MOS)
program has met a critical oral health care need by providing dental services to Medicaid insured and
financially qualifying uninsured Ottawa County residents. The MOS dental program demonstrates
sustainability and commitment from the County of Ottawa. Miles of Smiles provides on-site, diagnostic,
preventative, restorative, and surgical dental services and is a dental home for many Ottawa County
residents; the majority of them being children. MOS visits Head Start Centers, Early Childhood Centers,
summer migrant programs, the Holland Free Health Clinic, Community Mental Health, and approximately

25 schools in Ottawa County.

The Miles of Smiles mobile unit is a 40-foot, custom designed dental office on wheels. The unit is
equipped with two dental treatment rooms, a reception area, sterilization center, digital x-ray system,

wheelchair lift, and cloud-based dental software.

OCDPH/MOS is requesting $15,000 from the Delta Dental Foundation to provide comprehensive dental
services to an estimated 42 uninsured Ottawa County residents at approximately 73 appointments. See
Additional attachments- 1999-2022 Miles of Smiles Production Report; Medicaid vs. Non-Medicaid, Oral
Health Fact Sheet, and MOS photos.

PS000205
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My Community
Dental Centers

Overview of My Community Dental Centers (MCDC)

e Established in 2006, statewide non-profit 501c3 dedicated to expanding access to dental
care for the underserved — persons enrolled in Medicaid and low-income uninsured

e Currently operate 34 dental centers in partnership with 23 local health departments

e Currently, less than 10% of private practice dentists accept Medicaid adults due to
historically low reimbursement rates

e Partnership model with local health departments enabled enhanced reimbursement for
adults enrolled in the traditional, fee-for-service Medicaid program.

MCDC Grand Haven

e Located at 805. S. Beacon, opened in October 2018
e MCDC paid for facility renovation and equipment - including 8 dental chairs, leased with
3" party
e Hours of Operation, Monday — Thursday 7:30-5:30
e 2022 Annual Impact
0 2,350 Unique Patients
0 5,441 Patient Visits
0 202 Same Day Emergency Appointments
0 64% of Adult Patient Visits Enrolled in Medicaid; 24% had traditional insurance
e Sliding fee scheduled based on household income
e Reduced fee schedule for Veterans

MCDC Partnership with Ottawa County Health Department

e Shared vision of ensuring access to quality dental care — focused on the underserved

e MCDC provided expertise, successful track record and financial support to establish the
dental center in Grand Haven

e Health department provided community education and outreach — promoting the
importance of a dental home and regular dental care

e There is no financial commitment from Ottawa County to support dental center
operations

e The partnership has positively impacted community health and well-being

e Entering into a 5 year contract extension will reaffirm this partnership and ensure
continued access to dental care for all Ottawa county residents.

My Community Dental Centers
2940 Parkview Dr., Petoskey, M1 49770
MyDental.org | p: 231.547.7638 | f: 231.582.2967

TIN: 30-0393232 | NPI: 1700072543 PS000206



MCDC Contract SERVICES AGREEMENT

1 BETWEEN
nsion
Extens OTTAWA COUNTY
Agreement-— FOR OTTAWA COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

. . AND
Original Services MY COMMUNITY DENTAL CENTERS

Agreement Overview

This Services Agreement (this "Agreement” or Services Agreement™)) is formed between
the County of Ottawa, Michigan {"Ottawa County” or the "County™), acting through its agent
Outawa County Health Department, a single county health department located in Holland, Michigan
(the "Health Department”), and My Community Dental Centers, Inc., a Michigan non-profit
corporation ("MCDC") (each individually referred to as a "Party” and colleetively referred to as the
"Parties").

WHEREAS, the Health Department has been created pursuant to Michigan Public Health
Code (PA 368 of 1978, as amended) ("MPHC") §5 3332413, 333.2415 or 333.2421, as applicable;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to MPHC § 333.2433(1), the Health Department has the purpose of
endeavoring to prevent disease, prolong life, and promote the public health through organized
programs, including the prevention and control of health problems of particularly vulnerable groups
and the development of health care facilities and health services delivery systems; and

WHEREAS, pursuant fo the MPHC §§ 333.2433 and 333.2473 the Health Department niust
provide or demonstrate the provision of priority health services and may work with community
partners as necessary or appropriate to provide such services: and

WHEREAS, dental health for the underserved has been identified as a priority health service
by the State of Michigan; and

WHEREAS, MCDC is a nonprofit corporation, exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(a) of the Code, as an organization described in Section S01(e)(3) of the Code, which
was formed to efficiently provide certain dental center services to underserved individuals for local
health departments throughout Michigan; and

WHEREAS, the Health Department wishes to enter into an agreement with MCDC and
MCDC wishes to enter into an agreement with the Health Department, pursuant to which MCDC
will provide dental center services focused on meeting the needs and demands of the underserved
who reside within the community through a Public Dental Center Program at one or more clinic
locations in Ottawa County, Michigan,

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. PUBLIC DENTAL CLINIC PROGRAM AND SERVICES

MCDC and the Health Department will work in partnership to establish and administer a
program for the purpose of meeting the dental health needs of the underserved within the Ottawa
OBWASRY3027 .1

County community {the "Community") and pursuant to the Health Department's powers and duties
to prevent disease and promote the public health (the "Public Dental Center Program™). The
Parties will coordinate their efforts so as to administer the Public Dental Center Program as follows:

A Dental Center Services, MCDC will provide the dental center services described
in Schedule A to this Agreement (the "Dental Center Services"), 1o underserved adults and
children in the Community at the clinic location(s) listed in Schedule B 1o this Agreement {the
"Public Dental Center Location(s)"), which will be updated as needed to incorporate any new
locations. MCDC will not limit or turn-away patients based on their having health coverage
through Michigan Medicaid Fee-for-Service or an inability to pay.

B. Administration Services. The Health Department will administer Dentai Center
Services, as health care services offered by the Health Department through MCDC, by overseeing,
coordinating, and contributing to the Public Dental Center Program as outlined in Schedule C to
this Agreement (the "Administration Services"),

C.  Outreach & Education Services. The Health Department will nsige Gentgin
public health outreach and education services, as described in Schedule D o this Agreement
("Public Outreach & Education Services"),



Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Wednesday, September 6, 2023 1:21 PM

To: Marcia Mansaray; Gwen Unzicker; Lisa Uganski

Subject: FW: Health & Human Services Committee Dental Update
Attachments: 2023.06.19 Oral Health Services Overview_Pending Grants.pdf

FYI, so you are in the loop. Lisa, I'll let you know if she has additional questions.

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

To: Allison Miedema <amiedema@miottawa.org>

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

PS000208



Adeline Hambley

From: Allison Miedema

Sent: Wednesday, September 6, 2023 8:06 PM

To: Adeline Hambley

Subject: RE: Health & Human Services Committee Dental Update

Thank you, Adeline.
Allison

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

To: Sylvia Rhodea <srhodea@miottawa.org>; Gretchen Cosby <gcosbhy@miottawa.org>; Lucy Ebel
<lebel@miottawa.org>; Jacob Bonnema <jbonnema@miottawa.org>; Joe Moss <jmoss@ miottawa.org>; Rebekah
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
PS000209



Adeline Hambley

From: Jacob Bonnema

Sent: Friday, September 8, 2023 5:28 PM

To: Roger Belknap; Joe Moss; Sylvia Rhodea; Gretchen Cosby; Rebekah Curran; Allison Miedema; Lucy
Ebel; Kyle Terpstra

Cc: Karen Karasinski; Adeline Hambley; John Gibbs

Subject: Maintaining serviceable budget requirements for Title X

Importance: High

Dear fellow commissioners,

I’'m writing to you today to encourage you to reconsider your position on cutting funding to the local health department
for family planning services. As you know, the Ottawa County health department has been the recipient of federal grant
money to run a Title X program (family planning). Because Title X requires local match funds, if we cut the budget, which
cuts those matching funds, the Ottawa County health department will no longer be eligible for the program. If that
happens, the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS) will be compelled to reach out to another
provider to institute a Title X program in Ottawa County.

Based on emails | have received from our county health department director, it appears MDHHS, in anticipation of our
budgetary cuts, has already reached out to Planned Parenthood to solicit them to open shop in Ottawa County for the
purposes of providing Title X family planning services. If that is allowed to happen, Planned Parenthood, the nation’s
number one abortion provider, will have a foothold in our community and will begin providing abortions along with their
family planning program. | encourage you to appropriate the necessary funding in the budget to provide the necessary
matching funds to the county health department and maintain their eligibility to receive the Title X grant, thereby
keeping Planned Parenthood out of Ottawa County and protecting innocent lives.

Sincerely,
Jacob

Jacob D. Bonnema
County Commissioner | Zeeland
12220 Fillmore Street | West Olive, Michigan 49460

Ottawa County

PS000210



Adeline Hambley

From: John Gibbs

Sent: Friday, September 8, 2023 7:10 PM

To: Adeline Hambley

Cc: Karen Karasinski; Nina Baranowski

Subject: Quantifying Mandated Service Level Requirements
Hi Addie,

Good evening.

Please provide the minimum required service level for each mandated line item of the
Public Health budget, as well as documentation to support the number given.

Thank you!

- John

PS000211



Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Saturday, September 9, 2023 3:06 PM

To: John Gibbs

Cc: Karen Karasinski; Nina Baranowski

Subject: Re: Quantifying Mandated Service Level Requirements
Draft

Hi John,

When do you want this information? I'll do my best to work on this as soon as possible, but my recollection is that the
budgets originally submitted for the core essential/mandated programs were at the minimum levels in an attempt to
keep budget flat for core (non-Covid) programs from last year. The identified community need programs (such as
maternal infant health, and children’s special healthcare, and dental program) budgets were also kept at levels that
allow us to maintain same level of service as previous years.

It should also be noted that all positions that were added specifically for COVID are tied to the COVID grants, so once the
COVID funding is removed from the budget those additional positions go away as well. Currently only 4.3 FTEs of the
added COVID positions are filled, meaning all the remaining are vacant and all remaining public health staff are for core
programs that existed pre-COVID.

The funding and service requirements are complex which is why we work closely with fiscal services for months creating
the submitted budgets. | leave for a conference on Sunday evening and returning Tuesday evening, and | will need to
touch base with fiscal services and managers on Monday, so it will be later Monday when | can share more detailed
information.

Adeline Hambley, MBA, PMP, REHS
Administrative Health Officer

Ottawa County Dept. of Public Health
(616) 393-5625

From: John Gibbs <jgibbs@miottawa.org>
Sent: Friday, September 8, 2023 7:09:33 PM
To: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>

Cc: Karen Karasinski <kkarasinski@miottawa.org>; Nina Baranowski <nbaranowski@miottawa.org>
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

PS000212



Adeline Hambley

From: Adeline Hambley

Sent: Saturday, September 9, 2023 3:13 PM

To: Marcia Mansaray; Gwen Unzicker; Nina Baranowski; Alison Clark; Sandra Lake; Lisa Uganski; Deborah
Price; Spencer Ballard; Derel Glashower; Jessica Behringer

Subject: Fwd: Quantifying Mandated Service Level Requirements

FYI. | will work on a draft this weekend and share so you can add anything | may have missed. Essentially | am going to
pull from law and MPRs for accreditation. Debbie, | may need additional info on service requirements for Title X
funding.

Ignore “draft” at the top. | worked on it on my phone in different app before sending as | didn’t want to email
accidentally. £\

Adeline Hambley, MBA, PMP, REHS
Administrative Health Officer

Ottawa County Dept. of Public Health
(616) 393-5625

From: Adeline Hambley <ahambley@miottawa.org>

Sent: Saturday, September 9, 2023 3:06:22 PM

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

Sent: Sunday, September 10, 2023 11:41 PM

To: Marcia Mansaray; Spencer Ballard; Lisa Uganski; Alison Clark

Subject: DRAFT for Minimum Service Levels

Attachments: 2023.09.10 PH Minimum Service Levels.docx; 2023 Regulations_Laws for LHDs.pdf; Family-

Planning_Cycle-8_MPR-and-Indicator-Guide.pdf; Immunization_Cycle-8_MPR-and-Indicator-
Guide.pdf; HIV-STI_Cycle-8_MPR-and-Indicator-Guide.pdf; Communicable-Disease_Cycle-8_MPRs-
and-Indicator-Guide.pdf; Powers-and-Duties_Cycle-8_MPR-and-Indicator-Guide.pdf; Ottawa FY21
Evaluation Summary.pdf

Hi everyone,

Attached word doc is draft response. Attached are various attachments that | would include—I focused on those
programs that are essential or mandated programs identified for reduced funding. Spencer—you may have more recent
assessments for Type 2. However, | don’t think the standards have changed, so the FY21 assessment attached is likely
ok. Lisa—I included you as well so that you can help with any needed information for health education/nutrition. |
included Alison as she might have some ideas on how best to package the information.

Other items to consider:

PHEP grant info not included (maybe Nina can pull grant requirements, or there is something else that should be
included here for that?)

I think it could be good to perhaps include potential negative impacts to the community beyond loss of state
funding and LHD designation (so loss of local control)—the document everyone has been working on would
need to be cleaned up and maybe just a highlight those programs impacted by potential cuts? (would need
clarification from Fiscal Services on what those are since the numbers previously provided and the numbers in
the budget posted on Friday do not line up)

Not sure if we want to include some overall increases in services—like previously used for CD investigations and
vacant land (pasted below)—perhaps others? Check-in with managers to see if there are similar graphs they can
provide (again—would be beneficial to highlight those programs with proposed cuts due to limited time

| attached the Powers and Duties section to relate to health education and nutrition, but | didn’t include a
paragraph in my draft response. | am not sure if it fits with flow to add a paragraph regarding health
education/nutrition or if it would be better to have some graphs showing the number of families
reached/people helped? | think it could be helpful to add a few sentences regarding the combining of health
education and nutrition into one account for the FY24 budget, thus the increase in the amount requested for the
health education line in 2024. However, the amount was reduced, and the nutrition budget line was left at zero-
--so reducing amount from what was originally requested essentially is cutting nutrition program in FY24 budget
and this is a required mandated program. | think it could be beneficial to add this notation as well as some stats
about the number of people helped through health ed/nutrition programs (I would go back to at least 2019, but
farther back if possible).

Might be helpful to restate the SOCO from email sent on Saturday—cuts in the original budget for the essential
and mandated programs will result in cuts to positions that existed pre-COVID and will result in cuts to services
to the community.

| think that is everything. | REALLY appreciate your help in reviewing and finalizing this info. | know it is a short
turnaround, but | want to be able to get as comprehensive answer as | can back to Administrator Gibbs by 5 tomorrow
so it can be shared with BOC for consideration. | will be checking my email and will have my laptop with me tomorrow,
but for more immediate response, please text me.
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You all are the best!
CD and vacant land graphs:

Besides inflationary pressures driving up costs of operation, population increases also drive increases in
services. As the fastest growing county in Michigan, our population has grown by over 40,000 people
since 2009.

Figure 2. Communicable diseases have increased year-over-year, more than doubling since 2009

Total Number of Reportable Discase Cases Beferred to the Ottawa County

Department of Public Health by Year of Referral, 2009-2022
(Exclucing COVID-15, Dept. of Corrections cases, MIS-C, Flu, & Non-Specific Gl lliness)
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
Invastigetion Status: Active, Cancelad, Completed, Completed - Follow Up, Mew, Review, Superceded

Figure 3. Vacant Land Evaluations have increased significantly since The Great Recession, and is a great
indicator for population growth and overall increase in service requests
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
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Public Health Minimum Service Levels September 10, 2023

The minimum service levels for local health department programs are established in various laws and
statutes. The attached Regulations and Laws document provides a summary of the laws and statutes that
apply. Many minimum program requirements (MPRs) are set and evaluated by the State of Michigan to
ensure that the local health department is meeting the minimum service requirements for their
community. The MPRs for various programs are attached. As the staffing needed to meet these MPRs
will vary depending on population size and community needs, there is not a set “X number of nurses for
X program” type of equation. The local health department is required to staff at a level to ensure
delivery of programs and services to the community that meets these standards. Some programs, such
as the Private and Type 3 well program, are evaluated annually by the Environment, Great Lakes, and
Energy (EGLE) department. The Noncommunity Type 2 well program is similarly evaluated. Examples of
those assessments are attached as well.

Minimum service levels can also be established locally. For example, the Board of Commissioners, due to
demand from builders, homeowners, and Realtors, established a 10-business day or less turnaround
time for well/septic permits and real estate transfer evaluations. As such, the minimum service level for
these programs, besides meeting the state established MPRs, has to be staffed at levels that allow for
this standards as set by the Board.

Current staffing levels allow us to meet the MPRs and other program requirements as required in
statute. The OCDPH has not had the luxury of having staffing beyond minimum levels since before 2008.
Reducing staffing will mean that we will not be able to meet the minimum program requirements.
Failure to meet the minimum service level requirements, or MPRs, will risk loss of state funding and will
not meet designation as a local health department.

The graph below provides a historical view of Public Health staffing at Ottawa County and how it
compares to the average of medium-sized local health departments in the United States.

Figure 1 shows staffing rates for core Public Health programs from 2002 to 2022. The dashed gray line
indicates the U.S. average since 2016. Ottawa has been under that level since 2006.

Figure 1. Ottawa County, as a medium-sized county, has been consistently staffed below the
U.S. average local health department staffing level per 10,000 population*

Public Health Non-COVID FTEs per 10,000 Population per Year
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*2019 National Profile of Local Health Departments (LHDs) Study.

PS000218



.

The following is a summary of laws applicable to Local Public Health (this is not an
exhaustive list):

Public Health Code (PA 368 of 1978), MCL 333.1101, et. seq., as amended
MCL § 333.1105 (2) — Definition of “Local public health department”

MCL § 333.1105 (3) — Definition of “Local health officer”

MCL §333.1111 (2) — Protection of the health, safety, and welfare

Part 22 (MCL §§ 333.2201 et seq.) — State Departments

Part 23 (MCL §§ 333.2301 et seq.) — Basic Health Services

Part 24 (MCL §§ 333.2401 et seq.) — Local Health Departments

Part S1 (MCL §§ 333.5101 et seq.) — Prevention and Control of Diseases and Disabilities (General

Provisions)

Part 52 (MCL §§ 333.5201 ef seq.) — Hazardous Communicable Diseases
Part 53 (MCL §§ 333.5301 et seq.) — Expense of Care

MCL § 333.5923 —HIV Testing and Counseling Costs

MCL § 333.9131- Family Planning Services

Part 92 (MCL §§333.9201 ef seq.) — Immunization

Part 93 (MCL §§333.9301 et seq.) — Hearing and Vision Testing and Screening; Oral Health

Screening

MCL § 333.11101 — Prohibited Donation or Sale of Blood Products
MCL § 333.12425 — Agricultural Labor Camps

Part 125 (MCL §§ 333.12501 et seq.) — Campgrounds, etc.

Part 127 (MCL §§ 333.12701 et seq.) — Water Supply and Sewer Systems
Part 138 (MCL §§ 333.13801 et seq.) — Medical Waste

(Required to investigate if complaint made and transmit report to MDHHS — 13823 and 13825)

MCL § 333.17015 - Informed Consent
Appropriations (Current as of December 2022: Public Act 166 of 2022-23)
Sec. 218 — Basic Services

Sec. 1222 — Essential Local Public Health Services (ELPHS)

Michigan Office of Attorney General (OAG) Opinions

OAG, 1987-1988, No 6415 — Legislative authority to determine appropriations for local health

services

PS000219
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OAG, 1987-1988, No 6501 — Reimbursement of local department for required and allowable services
OAG, 1989-1990, No. 6650 — LHD procedures for establishing sanitation fees for food service
establishments :

OAG, 1995-1995, No. 6891 — Application of Administrative Procedures Act of 1969 (APA) to LHD
OAG, 2007, No. 7205 — LHD's authority concerning immunization requirements

Food Law (Public Act 92 of 2000, as amended)
MCL § 289.1109 — Definition of "Local Health Department"
MCL § 289.3105, et seq. — Enforcement, Delegation to Local Health Department

Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (Public Act 451 0f 1994, as amended)
Part 31 (MCL §§ 324.3101, et seq.) — Water Resources Protection

Water Resources Protection, Part 22 (R 323.2201, et seq.) — Groundwater Quality Rules (on-site
wastewater treatment)

Part 115 (MCL §§ 324.11501, et seq.) — Solid Waste Management

Part 117 (MCL §§ 324.11701, et seq.) — Septage Waste Services

Land Division Act (Public Act 288 of 1967, as amended)
MCL § 560.105(g) — Preliminary Plat Approvals

MCL § 560.109a — Parcels Less Than One Acre

MCL § 560.118 — Health Department Approval

Condominium Act (Public Act 359 of 1978, as amended)
MCL § 559.171a — Approval of Condominium Project Not Served by Public Sewer and Water

Safe Drinking Water Act (Public Act 399 of 1976, as amended)
MCL § 325.1016 — Agreements to Administer Act; Public Water Supplies

Housing Law of Michigan (Public Act 167 of 1917, as amended) Section 85
MCL § 125.485 — Health order; infected and uninhabitable dwellings to be vacated

Ottawa County Codes and Regulations
Ottawa Count)_( Solid Waste Management Plan
Ottawa County Code Book Article 2 — Environmental Ordinances
200.1 Landfill Operational Standards
200.3 Phosphorous Use Regulation
200.4 Pollution Control
200.4.1 Groundwater Use Ordinance (SW Landfill Vicinity)
200.4.2 Ground Use Ordinance (SW Landfill)
Ottawa County Environmental Health Regulations, as amended July 26, 2016
Regulation Eliminating Smoking in Public and Private Worksites and Public Places, as amended

This document may serve as a survey of appropriate laws but shall not be considered
exhaustive or as a limit to responsibilities required by law.

3
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Required Programs and Services

MCL 333.2235 gives authority to MDHHS to assign primary responsibility for the delivery of
services to local health departments (LHDs) that meet the requirements set forth in Part 24 of
the Public Health Code (see MCL 333.2235 et seq.).

MCL 333.2235 (2) provides, in part, that “ ... a local health department that meets the
requirements of Part 24 to be the primary organization responsible for the organization,
coordination, and delivery of those services and programs in the area served by the local
health department.”

The OCDPH provides programs and services under the Comprehensive Agreement for local
health departments contract (which includes contractual terms on behalf of the Michigan
Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE), the Michigan Department of
Agriculture and Rural Development (MDARD), and MDHHS) and the local health
department agreement with EGLE Drinking Water and Environmental Health Division
contract. The OCDPH complies with all program requirements provided in state and federal

mandates.  \; A TRIX OF SERVICES OF LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH

Services Rule or Statutory Citation Required = Basic + Mandated + ELPHS
I 1A. 1B. 1C.
MCL 333.9203
R325.176
Immunizations Annual appropriations act for MDHHS X X X X

(example: P.A. 166 of 2022-23 Sec.
218 and 1222)

Communicable Disease
Control; Reporting

MCL 333.2433;

Part 51, MCL 333.5101 et seq.;
Part 52, MCL 333.5201 et seq.;
R 325.171 etseq.; X X X X
Annual appropriations act for MDHHS.
(example: P.A. 166 of 2022 Sec. 218
and 1222)°

STD Control

MCL 333.5117;
R 325.174;

R 325.175;

R 325.177; X X X X
Annual appropriations act for MDHHS
(example: P.A. 166 of 2022 Sec. 218
and 1222)

TB Control

MCL 333.5117;
R 325.174;

R 325.175; X X X
Annual appropriations act for MDHHS
(example: P.A. 166 of 2022 Sec. 218)

MCL 30.410;

Emergency
Management —
Community Health
Annex

Annual appropriations act for MDHHS
(example: P.A. 166 of 2022 Sec. 218)

4
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Prenatal Care

Annual appropriations act for MDHHS
(example: P.A. 166 of 2022)

Family Planning
Services for Indigent
Women

MCL 333.9131; R325.151 et seq.

Health Education

MCL 333.2433 (2) (d)

Nutrition Services

MCL 333.2433 (2) (g)

MCL 333.9312;
MCL 333.9316;
Oral Health Screening | MCL 333.16625 (2)
Annual appropriations act (example: '
P.A. 166 of 2022)
MCL 333.5114;"
HIV/AIDS Services; MCL 333.5114a;
Reporting, Counseling, | MCL 333.5131
and Partner notification | MCL 333.5 923;
R 325.174
Care of Individuals MCL 333.5117;
with Serious Part 53, MCL 333.5301 et seq.;
Communicable Disease | R 325.177

or infection

Hearing and Vision

MCL 333.9301;
R 325.3271 et seq.;

Screening R 325.13091 et seq.; 2
Annual appropriations act
Public Swimming Pool | MCL 333.12524; R325.2111 et seq.
Inspections '
Camnppronnd fuspeotion MCL 333.12510; R325.1551 et seq.
. . . Housing Law of Michigan, P.A. 167 of
Uninhabitable Housing 1917 Section 85
MCL 333.12751;
MCL 333.12757;
Public/Private Sewer R 323.2210; X
R 323.2211
Food Protetion P.A.92 of.2000_(1\_/ICL 289.3105); X
Annual appropriations act
Pregnancy Tests;
Certification Forms MCLIS3F01518)
MCL 333.12701 et seq.;
Public/Private Water MCL 325.1001 et seq.; X
Supply R 325.1601 et seq.;
R 325.10101 et seq.
Natural Resources and Environmental
Sanitation & Protection Act, Public Act 451 of 1994
Environmental —Part 115
Protection Ottawa County Solid Waste
Management Plan
*All Rules and Statutory citations are “as amended.”
5
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é, ;v Tool 2023 — MPR Indicator Guide

Section lll: General Communicable Disease Control

MPR |

The local health department must have a system in place that allows for the referral of disease
incidence and reporting information from physicians, laboratories, and other reporting entities to the

local health department.
References: *Michigan Administrative Code R 325.174 (1) (5); R325.173 (7).

Indicator I.I

The local health department shall maintain annually reviewed policies and procedures.

This indicator may be met by:

¢ Maintaining the following policies and procedures for:
0 Receiving case reports from citizens, physicians, health care facilities, laboratories, and other
reporting entities;
0 Entering the received reports into the Michigan Disease Surveillance System (MDSS);
0 Timely submission of case reports via MDSS to the Michigan Department of Health & Human
Services (MDHHYS);
0 Completion of case reports;
0 How and when data is collected, collated, and analyzed and who within the local health
department is responsible for such activities; AND
e Evidence that policies and procedures are reviewed annually.

Documentation Required:

e Providing the above policies and procedures.

e Summary sheet or other documentation illustrating that policies and procedures were reviewed and
approved by one of the following individuals: Communicable Disease (CD)/Nursing Supervisor, Medical
Director, or Health Officer.

Evaluation Question:

None

Indicator 1.2

The local health department collects, collates, and analyzes CD surveillance data that is reported to their
jurisdiction by physicians, laboratories, and other authorized reporting entities.

For technical assistance, please contact Shannon Johnson (johnsonsé | @michigan.gov) at 517-284-4962 or Tim Bolen
(bolenT I @michigan.gov) at 989-832-6690
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3 § Section lll: General Communicable Disease Control
Assyring and enhancing the quality

of local public health in Michigan

This indicator may be met by:

e The local health department conducts weekly analysis of reported disease cases that shall be
documented in a log (e.g., weekly MDSS line list, or report) and signed-off by the CD/Nursing
Supervisor, Epidemiologist, or Medical Director.

e Weekly Surveillance log (e.g., weekly MDSS line list, or report of cases).

Documentation Required:

Evidence that weekly surveillance log is monitored and signed-off on a weekly basis by the CD/Nursing
Supervisor, Epidemiologist, or Medical Director. It is highly recommended that weekly analyses are maintained
electronically.

Evaluation Question:

None

Indicator 1.3

The local health department electronically submits CD cases and case report forms that are complete, accurate,
and timely to MDHHS by utilization of the MDSS.

Note: A random sample of case reports will be pulled out of MDSS by the Reviewer prior to the Review for
evaluation of this indicator.

This indicator may be met by:

e Evidence of MDSS and case report form utilization; AND

e Entry within | business day of received CD reports into the MDSS; AND

e Within 7 days of receipt, at least 90% of case demographic data (name, address, age/date of birth, sex,
race, and ethnicity) and pertinent case data (onset date, diagnosis date, hospitalization status) is
completed in MDSS; AND

e Upon case completion, at least 90% of the detailed case report form’s available fields are accounted
for/filled in/completed. Information that cannot be obtained should be documented. To meet this
indicator, 90% of the cases pulled by the Reviewer (e.g., 18/20) will have to meet the above criteria;
AND

e Cases are updated, reactivated, and/or reclassified in MDSS as new information is obtained (e.g.,
laboratory serogroups and serotype results, patient outcome, and outbreak identification).

e (Special Recognition) The local health department may also have an internal review or audit process
for improvement of data quality.

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

e Documentation indicating the staff responsible for MDSS case entry.
e Evidence of case completion efforts, reporting timeline requirements, and staff instructions to update
case report forms in MDSS as new information is obtained.

Documentation Requested:

(Special Recognition) Provide evidence of internal review process or audit that includes an aspect of data
quality improvement.

Evaluation Question:

None

Indicator |.4

The local health department shall create an annual report that includes aggregate CD data for dissemination
throughout the local health department’s jurisdiction.

This indicator may be met by:

e The local health department maintains and displays CD case counts in an annual report that can be
distributed to interested entities such as community physicians, infection control, and private citizens.
The annual report should include aggregate data to illustrate the jurisdiction’s CD trends.

e (Special Recognition) The local health department may also disseminate a quarterly update with
similar data to the above groups of people.

Documentation Required:

¢ Annual report of communicable diseases within your jurisdiction. The report should include an analysis
and interpretation of public health data with conclusions drawn from the data.
0 Examples: comparing a 5-year disease average to current year disease counts; or including a
narrative about data findings or discussing a specific condition of interest (e.g., local increase in
HCV).
e List of stakeholders who receive Annual Report/quarterly updates.

Documentation Requested:
(Special Recognition) Quarterly updates or other news bulletins that get disseminated through the local
health department’s jurisdiction.

For technical assistance, please contact Shannon Johnson (johnsonsé | @michigan.gov) at 517-284-4962 or Tim Bolen
(bolenT I @michigan.gov) at 989-832-6690
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Section lll: General Communicable Disease Control

MPR 2

The local health department shall perform investigations of communicable diseases as required by

Michigan law.
References: PA 368 of 1978, MCL 333.2433 (2)(a)(c)(i)(iii); Michigan Administrative Code R 325.174 (1) (5); R 325.173 (7).

Indicator 2.1
The local health department shall maintain annually reviewed policies and procedures.

This indicator may be met by:

¢ Maintaining the following policies and procedures for:
O Investigating individual case reports;
O Initiation of outbreak investigations;
0 Specific reportable diseases; AND
e Evidence that policies and procedures are reviewed annually.

Documentation Required:

¢ Providing the above policies and procedures.

e Summary sheet or other documentation illustrating that policies and procedures were reviewed and
approved by one of the following individuals: CD/Nursing Supervisor, Medical Director, or Health
Officer.

Evaluation Question:

None

Indicator 2.2

The local health department shall initiate CD investigations as required by Michigan laws, rules, and/or executive
orders.

This indicator may be met by:

e The local health department investigates individual case reports; AND

e The local health department conducts investigations of CD outbreaks and clusters; AND

e The local health department maintains protocols of specific CDs that are required to be reported by
Michigan laws or rules.

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

e Documents and/or records that illustrate how the local health department investigates individual case
reports received. This includes identifying who initiates the investigation, what action shall be taken, and
the appropriate timelines to be followed.

e Documents and/or records that illustrate how the local health department conducts investigations of
CD outbreaks and clusters. This should include identification of roles, corresponding responsibilities
during an outbreak, and communication with MDHHS CD personnel.

e Documents and/or records that illustrate the use of disease specific protocols.

Evaluation Question:

None

Indicator 2.3

The local health department shall notify MDHHS immediately of a suspected CD outbreak in their jurisdiction.

This indicator may be met by:

e The local health department notifies MDHHS within 24 hours when their jurisdiction suspects a CD
outbreak. Notification can be via phone, fax, MDSS (must include an outbreak identifier), or
Notification of Serious Communicable Disease form; AND

e The local health department has a protocol that declares who at the local health department notifies
MDHHS and what specific information should be relayed (e.g., possible pathogen, source, number ill,
facility); AND

e The local health department maintains a file of outbreaks investigated in their jurisdiction. This review
will exclude isolated complaints on the Environmental Health (EH) foodborne illness complaint log.
However, reports (6-point narratives) from outbreaks that are co-investigated by both EH and CD will
need to be provided for this review, as epidemiological components of the outbreak will be reviewed.

e (Special Recognition) To improve reporting and public health control measures, the LHD reports all

outbreaks into MDSS via the aggregate form. Large outbreaks are managed using the MDSS Outbreak
Management System (OMS).

Documentation Required:

e The local health department chosen means for MDHHS notification.
e Protocol for notifying MDHHS.
e Outbreak investigation folder.

For technical assistance, please contact Shannon Johnson (johnsonsé | @michigan.gov) at 517-284-4962 or Tim Bolen
(bolenT I @michigan.gov) at 989-832-6690

PS000227



M Ty,

g 'é% Michigan Local Public Health Accreditation Program
E 3 Tool 2023 — MPR Indicator Guide

.'6/ (] o L]

3 § Section lll: General Communicable Disease Control
Assyring and enhancing the quality

of local public health in Michigan

Documentation Requested:

(Special Recognition)
e Outbreak file contains evidence that outbreaks were entered into MDSS via the aggregate form (e.g,,
exported line list, MDSS investigation IDs) OR outbreak file contains evidence that OMS was utilized to
manage one or more outbreaks.

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

MPR 3

The local health department shall enforce Michigan law governing the control of communicable disease

as required by administrative rule and statute.
References: PA 368 of 1978, MCL § 333.2433(1)(2); MCL § 333.2451(1); *Michigan Administrative Code R 325.174 (1) (5).

Indicator 3.1

The local health department shall maintain annually reviewed policies and procedures.

This indicator may be met by:

e Maintaining the following policies and procedures:
0 Case follow-up and completion;
0 Guidance to prevent disease transmission; AND
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
Indicator 3.2

The local health department performs activities necessary for case follow-up, which includes guidance to prevent
disease transmission.

This indicator may be met by:

e The local health department can demonstrate timely case follow-up, follow-up efforts, and
completion/updates of cases in MDSS; AND

e The local health department maintains control guidelines or other guidance materials to assist in the
control of disease spread (e.g., Norovirus Control Guidelines in Nursing Homes, etc.) that can be
distributed to community partners; OR

e Additional educational materials, fact sheets, or other guidance documents that will assist the local
health department with prevention of disease transmission.

For technical assistance, please contact Shannon Johnson (johnsonsé | @michigan.gov) at 517-284-4962 or Tim Bolen
(bolenT I @michigan.gov) at 989-832-6690
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e (Special Recognition) Provide communicable disease presentations to educational venues such as
conferences and community health education fairs.
Documentation Required:

Records and/or documentation that demonstrates timely case follow-up, follow-up efforts, and
completion/updates of cases in MDSS.

Documentation Requested:

e Control guidelines or other guidance materials to assist in the control of disease spread (e.g., Norovirus
Control Guidelines in Nursing Homes, etc.) that can be distributed to community partners.

e Additional educational materials, fact sheets, or other guidance documents that will assist the local
health department with prevention of disease transmission.

e (Special Recognition) CD presentations to educational venues such as conferences and community
health education fairs.

Evaluation Question:

None

Indicator 3.3

Presence of adequately prepared staff capable of enforcing Michigan law governing the control of CDs.

This indicator may be met by:

o Staff has access to current and up-to-date reference materials (e.g., Control of Communicable Diseases
Manual; Red Book; Brick Book; Michigan Communicable Disease Handbook; CDC Core Curriculum on
Tuberculosis; MMWR case definitions; FIRST, Rabies, Head lice, and Scabies manuals, etc.); AND

e Attendance of professional development activities (which may offer CME, CEU, or contact hours), which
may include in-services, conferences, seminars, and trainings.

Documentation Required:

e Local health department has documentation of CD staff participation in professional development
activities, conferences, seminars, and/or trainings.

e The documentation for the above indicator may include either a copy of the CEU certificate or a listing
of activities attended for a given year, along with the date of the activity.

Evaluation Question:

None

For technical assistance, please contact Shannon Johnson (johnsonsé | @michigan.gov) at 517-284-4962 or Tim Bolen
(bolenT I @michigan.gov) at 989-832-6690
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Indicator 3.4

The local health department shall complete and submit the necessary foodborne or waterborne outbreak
investigation forms.

This indicator may be met by:

e For foodborne outbreaks, the local health department completes and submits the CDC 52.13
(foodborne) outbreak form to MDHHS and the Michigan Department of Agriculture and Rural
Development (MDARD) within 60 days of the date the first case became ill.

e For waterborne outbreaks, the local health department completes and submits the CDC 52.12
(waterborne) outbreak form to MDHHS within 60 days of the date the first case became ill.

e In the event that an investigation is still ongoing 60 days post first illness onset date, a preliminary 52.12
or 52.13 report (which includes data such as county of outbreak, onset date, exposure date, number of
cases, and laboratory results) must be submitted to MDHHS within 60 days of the date the first case
became ill; the completed final outbreak report form must then be sent to the appropriate agency(s)
within 90 days.

Documentation Required:

Copies of completed CDC 52.13 and CDC 52.12 forms

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

Provide Family Planning services following Title X Requirements for provision of services: Services must
be voluntary, provided without any coercion, provided in a client-centered manner that protects the
dignity of the individual, provided without discrimination, with priority to individuals from low-income

families, without residency or referral criteria, with safeguards for the privacy and confidentiality of
individuals being served (Tenets of Title X Services)

References: 42 CFR (10-2021 edition) §59.5 (a)(2)-(6); 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(5); 42 CFR §59.10; Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA); The Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. § 552a; Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act,
1976 PA 453, as amended, MCL 37.210] to 37.2804, Executive Directive 2019-09

Indicator I.1

Voluntary. Services must be provided solely on a voluntary basis, without any coercion to accept services or
accept any particular methods of family planning. Acceptance of services must not be made a prerequisite to
eligibility or receipt of services or participation in any other program.

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (8.1; 8.1.A, B, C, D; 19.F.1; 20.A; 29.D.2.e)

To fully meet this indicator:
e The agency providing family planning services assures that services will be provided to clients:
e  On a voluntary basis (8.1)
e Without coercion to accept services or any particular method of family planning (8.1.A; 19.F.1)
e  Without making acceptance of services a prerequisite to eligibility for any other service or assistance in
other programs (8.1.B)

e The agency general consent for services includes that services are provided on a voluntary basis, without
coercion to accept services or any particular method of family planning and without prerequisite to accept any
other service. (8.1.D; 19.F.1)

e The client’s voluntary general consent must be obtained prior to receiving any clinical services. All consents are
included in the client’s record. (19.F; 20.A; 29.D.2.¢e)

o Staff have been informed that they may be subject to prosecution under federal law if they coerce or try to
coerce any person to accept abortion or sterilization. (8.1.C)

Documentation Required:

e Policy and procedures that address voluntary participation without coercion, eligibility, or prerequisite.

e Agency general consent for services form

e Documentation that staff has been informed of the possibility of prosecution if they coerce any client to accept
abortion or sterilization.

Evaluation Questions:

e Are there written policies in place that reflect that all services are voluntary, provided without coercion, and
provided without making acceptance of services a prerequisite to eligibility for any other service or assistance
in other programs?

e Does the agency general consent for services include that services are voluntary, provided without coercion,
and provided without a prerequisite to accept any other service?

Indicator 1.2

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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Dignity & Respect. Provide services in a manner that is client-centered, culturally and linguistically
appropriate, inclusive and trauma-informed which protects the dignity of the individual.

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (8.5.2;9.2;13.1;13.4;13.4.A;19.A.1-6;29.D.3e, f)

To fully meet this indicator:
e The agency provides services in a client-centered manner that protects the dignity of each individual. (9.2;
19.A.1-6)
e Has written policy and/or procedures to assure that services are client-centered, culturally and linguistically
appropriate, inclusive and trauma-informed. (9.2; 8.5.2;13;19.A.1.)
e Service delivery to all clients includes the following: (19.A)
e Assuring clients are treated courteously and with dignity and respect
e  Addressing the needs of diverse clients
e The opportunity to participate in planning their own medical treatment
e  Encouraging clients to voice any questions or concerns they may have
e Provide an explanation of range of available services, and agency fees and financial arrangements to clients
(19.A.6)
e Upon request, clients are given access to or provided a copy of their medical record. (29.D.3.e, f)
The agency obtains Michigan Department of Health and Human Service (MDHHS) approval prior to conducting
any clinical or sociological research using Title X clients as subjects. (13.4; 13.4 A)

Documentation Required:

e  Policy and Procedure Manuals

e  Client records

Client bill of rights or other documents outlining patient rights and responsibilities
Client Satisfaction Surveys

Evaluation Questions:
e Do policies and procedures address treating clients with dignity and respect for diverse cultural and social
practices, and assure client confidentiality?

Indicator 1.3

Non-Discrimination. Projects must provide services in a manner that does not discriminate against
any client based on religion, race, color, national origin, disability, age sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, sex characteristics, number of pregnancies, marital status, partisan considerations, disability or
genetic information. Projects must provide services without imposing any residency requirements or
requiring the patient be referred by a physician.

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (9; 9.3; 9.9; 13.1; 13.1.D.1-4;13.5. A.I-
2; 19.A.6; 19.F.2)

To fully meet this indicator:

e The agency has written policies and procedures on non-discrimination in providing services without
regard to religion, race, color, national origin, disability, age sex, sexual orientation, gender identity,
sex characteristics, number of pregnancies, marital status, partisan considerations, disability or
genetic information. (9; 9.3)

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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e There is a written policy that services are provided without residency requirements or physician
referral. (9.9)

e The agency complies with [45 CFR Part 84], so that, when viewed in its entirety, the agency is readily accessible
to people with disabilities (13.1)

e The local agency has a written plan including all required components to ensure meaningful access to services
for persons with limited English proficiency (13.1.D. 1-4)

e Consent forms are language appropriate for Limited English Proficiency (LEP) clients or are translated by an
interpreter. (13.1.D.4; 19.B.1; 19.F.2)

e The agency complies with the Office of Population Affairs FPAR requirements, including a system to assure
accurate collection of race and ethnicity data (FPAR Tables 2 and 3) (13.5.A.1,2)

Documentation Required:

e Non-discrimination policy, including policy on residency and physician referral
o Copyl/location of agency’s posted or distributed non-discrimination policy

e LEP plan

e Consent forms written in languages other than English, as appropriate

e Client demographic data form

Evaluation Questions:
o  Are facilities accessible to individuals with disabilities including:
e  Entrance ramps are clearly marked and easily accessible?
e Toilets accessible to the handicapped?
e Handicapped parking?
e Does the LEP plan include:
A statement of agency’s commitment to provide meaningful access to LEP individuals?
A statement that services will not be denied to clients because of LEP?
A statement that clients will not be asked or required to provide their own interpreter?
Language Assistance, oral interpretation, and/or written translation?
Providing notice to LEP persons?
Routine updating of the LEP plan?
Staff training!?
o s there a policy prohibiting residency requirement and physician referral?

Indicator 1.4

Priority to Low-income Populations. Provide that priority in the provision of services will be given to
persons from low-income families

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (5; 8.4; 9.1)

To fully meet this indicator:
e The agency has written policies and/or procedures to assure that no one is denied services or is subject to any
variation in quality of services because of inability to pay (8.4)

o Low-income and high priority populations to be served are identified in the agency’s annual plan (5; Section
I1.B Annual Health Care Plan Guidance)

e Have policy and/or procedures to ensure that low-income clients are given priority to receive services (9.1)

Documentation Required:
o Sliding fee scale
¢ Non-discrimination policy for ability to pay

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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e Policy and/or Procedures that assure low-income clients are prioritized

Indicator 1.5

Confidentiality. Projects must have policies, procedures and safeguards to protect client confidentiality.
Information obtained about individuals receiving services must not be disclosed without the individual’s
documented consent, except as required by law or as necessary to provide services to the individual. Information

may otherwise be disclosed only in summary, statistical or other form that does not identify the individual. (from
old MPRs 3&11.6)

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (10.1.A, B, C; 10.2; 10.3; 19.A. 3; 19.F.1; 21.
H.3; 29.D.1.c; 29.D.3.a-f)

To fully meet this indicator:
o Client confidentiality is assured by the following: (10.1. A., B., C.; 19.A.3; 19.F.1; 29.D.3a)
e Confidentiality is assured in agency policy and procedures
e A confidentiality assurance statement appears in the general consent for services in the client record.
e All agency personnel assure confidentiality, such as a confidentiality statement
o The clinic has safeguards to provide for the confidentiality and privacy of the client as required by the Privacy
Act. (10.1,10.2; 29.D.3.a-f)
o HIPAA regulations regarding personal health information are followed. (29.D.l.c)
Systems are in place to keep client records confidential. (29.D.1.b.4; 29.D.3)
e The agency does not disclose client information without the client’s consent, except as required by law or as
necessary to provide services. (10.2; 29.D.3.c)
e  Agency general consent informs clients of potential disclosure of health information to a policyholder if
the policyholder is someone other than the client. (10.2.A; 21.H.3.a-c.)
e The agency provides confidential services to minors and observes all state laws regarding mandatory
reporting and informs minors of situations of potential disclosure. (21.H. 3; See under Indicator 9.1)
¢ Information collected for reporting purposes is disclosed only in summary or statistical form (10.3; 29.D.3.d)

Documentation Required:
e  Policy and Procedure Manuals
° Client records

. General Consent for Services

Evaluation Questions:

e Does the physical layout of the clinic ensure that services are provided in a way that protects confidentiality
and privacy?

MPR 2

Provide for orientation and in-service training for all project personnel.

References: 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(4); MDHHS Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines; CFR Part 84; 29
CFR Part 1910 Subpart E.

Indicator 2.1

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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Staff Orientation and Training. Provide for orientation and in-service training for all project personnel

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (8.5.1.A-D; 8.5.3; 8.5.4; 8.6.1-9; 13.2; 18.B; 29.B.2.4;

29.B.3.a; 29.C; 29.C.3 29.E.2.b)

To fully meet this indicator:

The current MDHHS Title X Family Planning Standards and Guidelines Manual must be available to staff at each
site. (18.B)

The agency must have written personnel policies that comply with federal and state requirement and Title VI of
the Civil Rights Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and Title | of Americans with Disabilities
Act (Public Law 101-336). These policies should include: (8.5.1)

e  Staff recruitment and selection

e  Performance evaluation

e  Staff promotion

e  Staff termination

e Compensation and benefits

e  Grievance procedures

e  Patient confidentiality

e Duties, responsibilities, and qualifications of each position

e Licenses for positions requiring licensure

Personnel records are kept confidential. (8.5.1.A)

Performance evaluations of program staff are conducted according to the agency personnel policy. (8.5.1.B)
Organizational chart and personnel policies are available to all personnel. (8.5.1.C)
Job descriptions are available for all positions and updated as needed. (8.5.1 D)

The agency must have a qualified Family Planning project coordinator. (8.5.3)

All clinicians, including mid-level practitioners, must maintain current licensure and certification, including drug
control licenses. (8.5.4; 29.E.2.b)

The agency must have written plans, protocols procedures for non-medical emergency situations, such as fire,
tornado, bomb, terrorism, etc. (13.2, 29. C)

The agency provides for orientation and in-service training for all program personnel, including staff of sub-
recipient agencies and service sites. (8.6.1)
The agency provides staff training on encouraging family involvement in the decision of minors to seek family
planning services and on counseling minors on how to resist being coerced into engaging in sexual activities at
least every two years. (8.6.2)

The agency provides staff training regarding prevention, transmission and infection control in the health care
setting of sexually transmitted infections including HIV as required by OSHA regulations. (8.6.3)

The agency provides staff training in emergency procedures or natural disaster and staff understands their role.
(8.6.4, 13.2, 29.C)

The agency provides staff training in the unique social practices, customs, and beliefs of the under-served
populations of their service area at least every two years. (8.6.5)

The agency provides staff training on content related to mandated reporting and human trafficking, including
information on agency policy and procedures on mandatory reporting at least every two years. (8.6.6)

The agency provides training regarding the nature and safety of pharmaceuticals to clinical staff involved in
dispensing medications at least every two years. (8.6.7; 29.B.2.d; 29.B.4.a)

Licensed medical staff providing direct patient care is trained in CPR and have current certification. (29.C.3;
29.E.2.b)

Documentation Required:

Policies and procedures for non-medical emergencies, including fire, natural disaster, robbery, power failure,
and harassment.

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696

PS000236



ck\ealth 40

qx‘@ Yy, Michigan Local Public Health Accreditation Program
_§§ % Tool 2023 — MPR Indicator Guide

% 5 L] o L3
e Section IX: Family Planning

Agency personnel policies.
Position descriptions.
Copies of licenses for those positions requiring licensure.
Documentation of staff orientation and in-service training, including:
e  Staff training on the unique social practices, customs, and beliefs of the under-served populations in their
service area
e Evidence of staff trained in the prevention, transmission and infection control in the healthcare setting of
sexually transmitted infections including HIV
Pharmaceutical training for clinical staff involved in dispensing medications
CPR training and certification for all licensed medial staff providing direct care
Staff training in emergency procedures and plans
Staff training on blood born pathogen transmission/OSHA training
Staff training on encouraging family involvement in the decision of minors to seek family planning services
and on counseling minors on how to resist being coerced into engaging in sexual activities
e  Staff training on mandatory reporting and human trafficking, including information on agency policies and
procedures.
e Documentation of staff continuing education
e Documentation of performance evaluations as required by agency personnel policy

MPR 3

Provide, to maximum feasible extent, an opportunity for participation in the development,
implementation, and evaluation of the project by persons broadly representative of all significant

elements of the population to be served, and by others in the community knowledgeable about the
community’s needs for family planning services. Projects must provide for an advisory committee.

Reference: 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(4); MDHHS Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines; CFR Part 84; 29 CFR
Part 1910 Subpart E.

Indicator 3.1
Opportunity for Community Participation, Advisory Committee

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (I 1.1; 1'1.1.A; 11.1A.1,2,3; 11.2)

To fully meet this indicator:
e The agency must provide an opportunity for participation in the development, implementation, and evaluation
of the project. (11.1)
e The agency must have a governing board, program specific Family Planning Advisory Council (FPAC) or
other appropriate advisory group: (11.1.A)
The council or board is broadly representative of the population served and includes people
knowledgeable about family planning. (1 1.1.A.1)
= Responsibilities of the council/board must include the following: (11.1.A.2)
e Review the agency’s program plan, assess accomplishments and suggest future program goals and
objectives.
= Review the agency’s progress toward meeting the needs of the priority population and for making
clinic services and policies responsive to the needs of the community.
e There is documentation that the council/board meets at least once a year. (11.1.A.2)

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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e  Minutes are kept of all meetings (11.1A.3)

Documentation Required:

e Governing Board or FPAC Roster
e Governing Board or FPAC meeting schedule
* Governing Board or FPAC meeting minutes

Indicator 3.2
Information and Education (I&E) Advisory Committee

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (12; 12.1; 12.2; 12.3; 12.4.A-H; 12.5)

To fully meet this indicator:

The agency must have an | & E committee that reviews and approves all informational and educational materials
(print or electronic) developed or made available by the project prior to their distribution. (The Family
Planning Advisory Committee/Advisory Board may take on this role so long as it meets the following
requirements.) (12; 12.1)
e | & E committee membership is broadly representative of the community served, in terms of demographic
characteristics of the community for which materials are intended. (12.2)
e The size of | & E committee is at least five members and up to the number determined needed to broadly
reflect the community served. (12.3)
e The | & E committee must have a written description of the review and approval process in a policy
statement, by-laws or other committee documents. (12.4.A)
e The |l & E committee must consider: (12.4.D)
e  The educational and cultural backgrounds of the individuals to who the materials are addressed
. The standards of the population to be served with respect to such materials
. Review the content to assure the information is medically accurate, culturally/linguistically
appropriate, inclusive and trauma-informed.
. Determine whether the material is suitable for the population or community served.
e  The considerations of materials by | & E committee members must be documented using an approved
MDHHS evaluation form. (12.4.C)
e | & E committee approval of educational materials requires at least one half of voting members. (12.4.E)
| & E Committee must meet at least once a year or more often as needed. (12.4.F)
The agency must maintain a written record of the determinations and approval process including: (12.4.G)
e Minutes of all meetings, including a record of determinations regarding the materials reviewed
e Completed evaluation forms or a compiled summary of the evaluations
e A master listing of approved materials and dates approved
Staff overseeing work of the | & E Committee must bring previously approved materials for review and/or
update at least every three years. (12.4.H)

Federal grant support must be acknowledged in publications produced with family planning grant funds. (12.5)
e Acknowledgement includes the following language, unless the agency has requested and received a waiver

for alternate language from MDHHS: “This [publication/program/website, etc.] was supported by the
Office of Population Affairs (OPA) of the U.S. Department, of Health and Human Services (HHS) as part
of a financial award totaling $XX with XX percentage funded by OPA/OASH/HHS and $XX amount and
XX percentage funded by non-government source(s). The contents are those of the author(s) and do not
necessarily represent the official views of, nor an endorsement, by OPA/OASH/HHS, or the U.S.
Government. For more information, please visit: https://opa.hhs.gov/.”

Documentation Required:

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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| & E Committee Roster indicating community representation of each | & E Committee member

| & E Committee Meeting Minutes

e | & E determinations related to materials, including individual evaluation forms or a record of individual
evaluations

e A Master List of approved materials with dates approved

Evaluation Questions:

e Does the | & E committee review the content of all informational and educational materials to assure the
information is correct and appropriate for the intended audience?

e Does the | & E committee membership broadly represent the community served? Does not include program
staff and prioritizes client and community representation?

e Does the | & E committee roster indicate community representation for each committee member?

e Is there a written record of the determinations of | & E committee members for all materials reviewed: Meeting
minutes; Master list of approved materials with dates approved; Individual evaluation forms, or a compiled
summary of member evaluations?

o |[s there acknowledgement of Title X grant funding on all publications produced by the project? Does
acknowledgement contain the required language and grant award number current at the time of publication?

o Are previously approved materials reviewed or updated at least every three years?

MPR 4

Provide for opportunities for community education, participation, and engagement to achieve
community understanding of the objectives of the program; inform the community of the availability of

services; and promote participation in the project by diverse persons to whom family planning services
may be beneficial to ensure access to equitable, affordable, client-centered quality family planning
services.

Reference: 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(3)(i-iii).

Indicator 4.1

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (4; 5; 8.7. A; 11.2; 11.3)

To fully meet this indicator:

e The agency must establish and implement planned activities to provide community education programs to
facilitate awareness and access to family planning services and encourage participation by diverse persons in the
communities served. (11.2: 11.3)

o The agency must submit an Annual Health Care Plan that includes written plans for: (4; 5; 8.7.A; 11.2;
Section 1.B. Annual Health Care Plan Guidance)

e  Community education activities
e  Community project promotion activities

e The agency must include priority populations based on an assessment of community needs in the target groups

identified for program promotion activities. (11.2,3; 8.7.A)

Documentation Required:
e Annual Health Care Plan

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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e Documentation of community education activities (such as, flyers, community meeting agendas, brochures,
reports, logs)

e Documentation of activities program promotion activities (such as Outreach logs, news releases, articles, PSA’s,
and advertisements)

o Newsletters and other communications/educational tools as available

MPR 5

Provide for billing and collecting client fees to include the following: Clients with family income at or
below 100% of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL) are not charged, except where payment will be made by

an authorized third party. Charges will be made for services to clients with family income between 101-
250% of FPL in accordance with a schedule of discounts based on ability to pay. Charges to clients with
family income that exceeds 250% of FPL will be made in accordance with a schedule of fees designed to

recover the reasonable cost of providing services.

References: 42 CFR §59.5 (a)(7)-(9).

Indicator 5.1

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (8.4; 8.4. A-C; 8.4.1; 8.4.2; 8.4.3; 8.4.4; 8.4.5; 8.4.5.B;
8.4.8 A-B; 8.4.9)

To fully meet this indicator:

The local agency must have written policies and procedures for billing and collecting client fees; these policies must

include the following:

e Clients must not be denied services or be subjected to any variation in quality of services because of inability to
pay. (8.4)

o Individual eligibility for a discount must be documented on the client’s record/file. (8.4.A)

e The agency relies on client self-report of income for determining eligibility for a discount, except where the
agency may use income verification data provided by the client because of participation in other programs
operated by the agency. (8.4.B)

e The agency’s schedule of discounts must be developed with sufficient proportional increments to assure billing
is based on ability to pay. Sub-recipients must use the mandated quartile proportional increments distributed
by MDHHS unless they have requested and received an MDHHS approved waiver to use other proportional
increments. (8.4.C)

o Clients whose documented income is at or below 100% of the federal poverty level are not charged; although
the agency bills all third parties authorized or legally obligated to pay for services. (8.4.1)

e For clients with family incomes between 101% and 250% of the current federal poverty level, the agency has a
schedule of discounts that is proportional and based on ability to pay. (8.4.2)

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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of local public health in Michigen

e For clients from families whose income exceeds 250% of federal poverty level, the agency has a schedule of
fees designed to recover the reasonable cost of providing services (8.4.4)

e The agency has a documented process for determining the costs of providing services and indicates how the
schedule of fees is determined to recover reasonable costs of providing services. (8.4.4)

e Fees are waived for individuals with family incomes above the federal poverty level who, as determined by the
site manager, are unable, for good cause, to pay for family planning services. Instances where fees are waived
are documented in the client record. (8.4.3)

e The agency reviews program costs and reassess the fee schedule at least every two years, utilizing the MDHHS
Family Planning Program cost analysis tool unless the agency has a waiver to use a different methodology for
reviewing costs. (8.4.4)

e The agency charges minors obtaining confidential services based on the resources of the minor and not on the
family income. (8.4.5)

e The agency does not have a policy or fee schedule that is different for minors than the fee schedule for other
populations receiving family planning services. (8.4.5.B)

e The agency has the capacity to provide a bill for the services to a client who requests a bill. (8.4.8.A)

e The agency’s policies on billing and collections include a policy on the “aging” of outstanding accounts.
(8.4.8.B)

e Voluntary donations from clients are permissible; however, clients are not pressured to make donations and
donations are never a prerequisite to provision of services or supplies. (8.4.9)

Documentation Required:

o Client records showing eligibility for discount for services

¢ Billing records

e Proportional sliding fee schedule established using current DHHS Poverty Guidelines
e Written agency policy and procedures for charging, billing, and collecting client fees
e Agency procedure for aging outstanding accounts

Evaluation Questions:

o Are fees waived for individuals with family incomes above the federal poverty level who, as determined by the
site director, are unable to pay for services!? Is this written in policy? Are incidents where fees are waived for
good cause documented in the client record?

MPR 6

Provide that where there is a third party (including a government agency) authorized or legally obligated
to pay for services, all reasonable efforts are be made to obtain the third-party payment without

application of any discounts. Where the cost of services is to be reimbursed under title XIX, XX, or
XXI of the Social Security Act, an agreement required.

Reference: 42 CFR §59.5 (a)(10); 42 CFR §59.5 (a)(8)(, ii)

Indicator 6.1

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (8.4.6.; 8.4.6.A; 8.4.7; 8.4.8)

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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To fully meet this indicator:

e  Where there is legal obligation or authorization for third party reimbursement; all reasonable efforts must be
made to obtain third party payment, without application of any discounts. (8.4.6)

e With regard to insured clients whose family income is at or below 250% federal poverty level; where
deductible, copayments or additional fees apply, clients are never charged more than they would pay if services
were charged based on the schedule of discounts. (8.4.6.A)

e  Where reimbursement is available from Title XIX or Title XX of the Social Security Act, the agency has
written agreements/registration with Title XIX, or XX agencies, for reimbursement from these agencies.
(8.4.7)

e The agency makes reasonable efforts to collect charges without jeopardizing client confidentiality. (8.4.8)

Documentation Required:

¢ Client records showing third party pilling and reimbursement for services

e Written policy and/or procedures for charging, billing, and collecting client fees from third party payers
¢ Billing for Title XIX, XX, or XXI and receipts of reimbursements

Evaluation Questions:
e Do agency staff follow the billing and client fee collection procedures?

MPR 7

Provide that all services purchased for project participants are authorized by the project director or
designee on the project staff. And provide that any family planning services provided by contract or
similar arrangements with other service providers, are provided in accordance with a plan which

establishes rates and method of payment for care. These payments must be made under agreements
with a schedule of rates and payments procedures maintained by the agency. The agency must be
prepared to substantiate that these rates are reasonable and necessary.

Reference: 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(7,9).

Indicator 7.1

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (8.3.2; 8.3.3; 8.3.4; 21.B.7; 29.A.4; 29. B3.b, ¢, d.)

To fully meet this indicator:

o All services purchased for project participants must be authorized by the project director or their designee on
the project staff (8.3.3)

e The agency must have proper segregation between requisition, procuring, receiving, and payment functions for
pharmaceuticals and supplies. (29.B.3.b, c)

e There must be an inventory system to control purchase, use, and reordering of pharmaceuticals and supplies.
(29.B.3.c, d)

o Safeguards must be in place to assure that drugs purchased through the 340B program for Title X are only used
for clients of the family planning program and in compliance with state and federal laws. (29.B.3; 29 B.4.d.3)

e The agency must have in place formal arrangements regarding provision of services and reimbursement of costs
for contractual services. (8.3.2; 8.3.4)

o If a delegate agency provides required services by referral, formal arrangements with the referral provider must

be in place that include a description of the services provided and includes cost reimbursement information.
(8.3.4; 29.A.4; 21.B.7)

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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o If a delegate agency subcontracts for services, a formal agreement must be in place that assures consistency
with Title X program requirements, must be identified in the annual plan and must have MDHHS approval.
(8.3.2)

Documentation Required:

Policies and procedures

Records of pharmaceutical requisitions

Documentation of Inventory system

Records of equipment purchases over the past three years

Copies of contractual agreements for family planning services purchased.
Copies of referral agreements between for providing required services.
Copies of subcontract agreements

MPR 8

Provide all core family planning services as outlined in Providing Quality Family Planning Services (QFP):
Recommendations of the CDC and U.S. Office of Population Affairs. These include a broad range of
acceptable and effective medically approved family planning methods (including natural family planning
methods) and services (including pregnancy testing and counseling; assistance to achieve pregnancy; basic
infertility services; STI services; preconception health services; and adolescent-friendly health services);

and related preventive health services.

References: 42 CFR §59.5(a)(1); 42 CFR CH. | §59.5 (b)(1); 42 CFR §59.5 (a)(5); MMWR/ April 25, 2014/Vol 63 /No.
4. Providing Quality Family Planning Services; Recommendations of CDC and the US OPA; MMWR!/ July 29,
2016/Vol.65/No.4. US Selected Practice Recommendations for Contraceptive Use, 2016; MMWR/ Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention (CDC) Selective Practice Recommendations (SPR); MMWR/July 29, 2016/Vol 65/No.3 US Medical
Eligibility Criteria for Contraceptive Use, 2016; MMWR/Vol.70/No.4 Sexually Transmitted Infection Treatment Guidelines,
202 1; Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines

Indicator 8.1
The agency must provide Contraceptive Services, including 2 broad range of medically (FDA)
approved contraceptive products and natural family planning methods and services.

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (8.2; 8.2A; 8.2.B; 9.8; 18. A, B; 19. B, C; 19.K.1, 2;
19.L, M; 21; 21.A; 21. A, B, C, D, E, F,G; 29.B.7; 29.D.2.c.4)

To fully meet this indicator:
o The agency provides a broad range of medically approved services, including FDA approved contraceptive

products and natural family planning methods, and temporary and permanent contraception either on-site or
by referral. (9.8; 18. A)

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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o Written protocols and procedures to offer contraceptive services that are current and consistent with national
standards of care, including the QFP, must be in place and available at each clinic site. (18.B; 21; 21.A)

e Provide that individual education and counseling is offered prior to the client making an informed choice
regarding family planning services. (19.B.C.)
e Methods provided and for which written protocols must be in place, include: (21. B, C, D)
e Reversible Contraception
e Hormonal contraceptives
e  at least 2 delivery methods combined hormonal contraceptives on site
e atleast | method progestin-only hormonal contraceptive on site
e at least a second progestin-only method available on site within 2 weeks
e Condoms (at least male condoms)
e At least one type of long acting reversible contraceptive (LARC) method is provided, either on
site or by paid referral.
e At least one type of natural family planning method is provided.
e  Education materials and information regarding all methods including:
e Hormonal contraceptives
e Abstinence
e  Fertility awareness-based methods
e Barrier methods
e LARG: (Intrauterine devices or Implants)
e  Sterilization
e Emergency contraception
e Emergency Contraception
o  Emergency Contraception education and provision or referral are provided as appropriate.
e A written protocol is in place
e Permanent Contraception (Sterilization)
e Education and information regarding sterilization is provided for clients as appropriate.
e The agency has a list of community providers where clients can be referred for sterilization (Paid
referrals for sterilization are not required)
o All federal regulations on sterilization are met if the procedure is performed by the agency
e The agency does not provide abortion as a method of family planning and has a written policy that no Title X
funds are used to provide or promote abortion as a method of family planning. (8.2; 8.2A)
e The agency follows Title X guidance regarding abortion-related services. (8.2.B)
o Clients who are undecided on a contraceptive method are informed about all methods that can be safely used
based on the CDC MEC. (21.G)
o Client education and information about contraceptive methods is medically accurate, balanced, and provided in
a nonjudgmental manner. (21.G)
e Client education about contraceptive methods that can be safely used includes: (21.G.1. a-i)
Method effectiveness
Correct and consistent use of the method
Benefits and Risks
Potential side effects
Protection from STDs
Starting the method
Danger signs
Availability of emergency contraception
e Follow-up visits
o Documentation of contraceptive education and counseling must be in the client’s medical record. (21.G.3)
» An informed consent for the procedure is obtained prior to inserting an IlUD or implant. (21.G.7)
e Medical records of transfer clients receiving prescriptive methods contain: (29.B.7)

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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e A general consent for services
e A completed client history that has been reviewed
e A documented blood pressure (BP), if the client desires to continue a combined hormonal method
e Documentation of the prescription in the client record method

e Medical history elements required for the_contraceptive client: (21.E.I)

Reproductive goals
Allergies
Medications
Immunizations (Michigan Care Improvement Registry “MCIR” is strongly recommended)
Menstrual history
Gynecologic and Obstetrical history
Recent intercourse
Recent delivery, miscarriage or termination
Contraceptive use
o Contraceptive experiences and preferences
o Partner history (use of contraception, pregnant, has children, miscarriage or termination)
o Condom use, allergies to condoms
o Interest in Sterilization if age appropriate (> 21 per federal law requirement)
Current Infectious or chronic health condition (e.g., hypertension)
Characteristics and exposures that might affect the client's medical eligibility criteria (MEC) for
contraceptive methods. (e.g., age, postpartum, breastfeeding, smoking)
Social history/risk behaviors
Sexual history and risk assessment
Mental health

Intimate partner violence

e Taking of a medical history must not be a barrier to making condoms available in the clinical setting (21.E)
e The following physical and laboratory assessment are provided for contraceptive clients: (21.F.1)

For clients seeking combined hormonal method and needing screening for hypertension, the following
must be provided:

o Blood Pressure (screen for hypertension)
For clients seeking IUD insertion, fitting diaphragm or cervical cap, bimanual exam and cervical inspection
must be provided.

o CT and GC testing must be available for clients requesting IUD insertion, if indicated.
Pap screening and clinical breast exam must be provided based on current recommendations for timing
and testing components. (See Related Preventive Health Services section.)
Chlamydia testing must be offered annually for all females < 25 years, sexually active females >25 years
with risk factors (infected partner, partner with other concurrent partners, symptoms, history of STl or
multiple partners in the last year) (See page 113-114 in the STl section referencing the pre-paid forms.)
For male clients, laboratory tests are not required unless indicated by history.

e  Reuvisits are individualized based on the client’s need for education, counseling and clinical care beyond that
provided at the visit. (19.K.1,2; 19.L, M; 29.D.c.4)

Documentation Required:

Protocol and procedures manual specific to all contraceptive methods services
Educational materials for all methods

Access to clients’ records

Consent forms used for procedures

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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Indicator 8.2
Offer pregnancy testing and counseling services, including offering pregnant clients the opportunity to
be provided information and counseling on options.

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (8.2 A; 9.10; 9.11; 19. K. 1,2; 19.L, M; 24; 24 A-E;
29.D.2.c.4)

To fully meet this indicator:
The agency must:
e Provide pregnancy testing, information and counseling to all clients in need of this service. (9.10; 24)

e Have written protocols and procedures to offer pregnancy testing and counseling services that are
current and consistent with national standards of care available at each clinic site (24)
e Pregnancy diagnosis services include the following: (24.A)
e  General consent for services
e Reproductive Goals discussion
e  Pertinent medical history
e  Environmental risk assessment
e  Testing with highly sensitive pregnancy test
e Test results given to the client
e Counseling and referral resources as appropriate
e Chlamydia testing must be offered to females <25 years of age and as indicated by risk factors for
females 25 years old or older
e If a pregnancy test is positive, and if ectopic pregnancy or other pregnancy abnormalities are suspected,
immediate referral for diagnosis and treatment must occur. (24.B.4)
e The agency offers pregnant clients information and counseling regarding the following options: (9.10.a,b;
24.C)
e Prenatal care and delivery
e Infant care, foster care or adoption services
e  Pregnancy termination
¢ When providing pregnancy options information and counseling, the agency provides neutral, factual
information and non-directive, unbiased counseling on each of the options and provides referrals upon
request, except with respect to any option(s) about which the pregnant client does not wish to receive
such information and counseling. (9.10.c; 24.D)
e Clients considering or choosing to continue the pregnancy are provided a referral for prenatal care and
initial prenatal counseling upon request. (24.G)
e  Clients considering or choosing to terminate the pregnancy are provided current information about the
legal status of abortion in Michigan and are provided a referral upon request.
e  For clients with a negative test, appropriate information about family planning services must be offered.
(24.H,))
e Reuvisits are individualized based on the client’s need for education, counseling, contraceptive or
preventive care, or repeat testing. (19.K,L,M)

Documentation Required:

Protocol and procedures for pregnancy diagnosis and counseling(24.H
Client medical records

Educational materials related to pregnancy

Current referral lists

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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Evaluation Questions:
o Are referral lists current and do they include a full range of providers for pregnancy care?
e [s Chlamydia testing incorporated into pregnancy testing visits?

Indicator 8.3
Offer services to clients who desire to achieve pregnancy.

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (19.K.1,2; 19.L, M; 23; 23. A, B; 23.D.10; 29.D.2.c.4)

To fully meet this indicator:
e  Written protocols and procedures for achieving pregnancy that are current and consistent with national
standards of care must be available at each clinic site (23)
e Client assessment includes: (23.A)
e Reproductive goals
¢ When pregnancy is desired
e Length of time they have been attempting pregnancy.
o If less than | year, provide counseling on maximizing fertility success
e History of pregnancies or infertility
e  Partner engagement and support system issues
e  Medical history includes: (23.B)
e Immunizations
e Medications
Present infectious or chronic health conditions
Genetic conditions
Environmental exposures or risks for both partners, (e.g., smoking, alcohol, Zika risk)
Social history/risk behaviors
Sexual health risk assessment
Mental health
Reproductive history
o History of prior pregnancy/birth outcomes (preterm, cesarean delivery, miscarriage, or stillbirth)
o Past medical/surgical history that might impair reproductive health
o Medical conditions associated with reproductive failure that could reduce sperm quality
e  Family history
e Intimate partner violence
e  Physical Assessment includes:
e Height, weight, BMI (screen for obesity)
e Blood Pressure (screen for hypertension)
e Physical exam as needed to evaluate issues raised by review of systems or complaints raised by the client.
e STl or preconception care screening or referral for infertility or other health services as indicated.
e  Client education and counseling must be documented in the medical record. (23.D.10)

e  Reuvisits are individualized based on the client’s need for education, counseling and clinical care beyond that
provided at the visit. (19.K.1,2; 19.L, M; 29.D.c.4)

Documentation Required:

¢ Protocol and procedures for achieving pregnancy

o Client medical records

e Educational materials related to achieving pregnancy

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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of local public health in Michigan
e Current referral list

Indicator 8.4

Offer basic infertility services to clients desiring these services. Infertility is defined as the failure of a couple
to achieve pregnancy after 12 months or longer of regular unprotected intercourse.

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (19.K.1,2; 19.L, M; 25; 25.C.1,2. a-o; 25.C.3.a-f;
25.D.1,2. a-j; 25.F.1; 29.D.c.4)

To fully meet this indicator:
e The agency offers basic infertility services to clients desiring these services. (25)
¢ Written protocols and procedures to offer basic infertility services are current and consistent with national
standards of care. (25)
o Evaluation as early as 6 months after regular unprotected intercourse provided for:
o Female clients >35
o History of oligo-amenorrhea
o Known or suspected uterine or tubal disease or endometriosis
o Partner known to be sub-fertile
e Medical history elements for both clients includes: (25.C.1,2. a-p)
o Reproductive history (methods of contraception, coital frequency and timing, duration of infertility, prior infertility, gonadal
toxin exposure, induding heat)

o Past surgeries

o Previous hospitalizations

o Serious illnesses or injuries

o Past infections

o Medical conditions associated with reproductive failure (e.g., thyroid disorders, hirsutism,
diabetes mellites, or other endocrine disorders)

o Childhood disorders

o Cervical cancer screening results and any follow-up treatment

o Medications (prescription and nonprescription)

o Allergies

o Social history/risk behaviors

o Family history of reproductive failures

o Level of fertility awareness

o Previous evaluation and treatment results; gravidity, parity, pregnancy outcome(s), and associated
complications; age at menarche, cycle length and characteristics, and onset/severity of dysmenorrhea

o Sexual history (pelvic inflammatory disease, history of/exposure to STls both partners, problems with

sexual dysfunction)
o Review of systems (symptoms of thyroid disease, pelvic or abdominal pain, dyspareunia, galactorrhea, and

hirsutism)

e The following physical examination is offered for both clients if clinically indicated: (25.C.3.a,b)
e  Female physical examination:
o Height, weight, and body mass index (BMI) calculation

Thyroid examination (i.e., enlargement, nodule, or tenderness)
Clinical breast examination (CBE)
Signs of androgen excess
A pelvic examination (i.e., pelvic or abdominal tenderness, organ enlargement/mass; vaginal or
cervical abnormality, secretions, discharge; uterine size, shape, position, and mobility; adnexal
mass or tenderness; and cul-de-sac mass, tenderness, or nodularity)
o STI/HIV testing, as indicated

O O O O

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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e  Chlamydia testing must be offered for females < 25 and females > 25 with risk factors.
e Male physical examination:
Examination of the penis (including location of the urethral meatus)
Palpation of the tests and measurement of their size
Presence and consistency of both the vas deferens and epididymis
Presence of a varicocele
Secondary sex characteristics
o STI/HIV testing, as indicated

e  Reuvisits are individualized based on the client’s need for education, counseling and clinical care beyond that

provided at the visit. (19.K.1,2; 19.L, M; 29.D.c.4)

o Clients are referred for further diagnosis and treatment if indicated or requested. (25.E)

O O O O O

Documentation Required:
e Protocol and procedure manual
o Infertility educational materials

e Referral provider list

Indicator 8.5
Provide Sexually Transmitted Infection (STI) Services to clients desiring these services

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (19.K.1,2; 19.L, M; 21.F.1.d, e; 26; 26.A; 26.B.1-7;
26.C; 26.D.1,2; 26.E; 26.1.1; 29.D.c.4)

To fully meet this indicator:

®  Written protocols and procedures to offer ST services that are current and consistent with national
standards of care must be available at each clinic site (26)
e Medical history elements required for STI services clients include: (26.A, B.1-6)
o Reproductive Goals
Allergies
Medications
Medical conditions
Sexual health assessment
Intimate partner violence
o Immunization status
e Physical and Laboratory assessment required for STI services clients include: (26.C; 26.D.1,2; 26.E;
26.1; 21.F.1.d, €)
o Physical exam as indicated based on history or symptoms
o Chlamydia (CT) and Gonorrhea (GC) testing must be offered annually to clients with risk factors
= Chlamydia testing must be offered to females <25 years of age and as indicated by risk
factors for females 25 years old or older
*  When provided on site, agencies must follow current CDC Guidelines and follow state and local
reporting requirements
e Agency complies with state and local STI reporting requirements. (26. 1.1)
o Reuvisits are individualized based on the client’s need for education, counseling and clinical care beyond that
provided at the visit. (19.K.1,2; 19.L, M; 29.D.c.4)

O O 0O O O

Documentation Required:
e Protocol and procedure manuals
e Access to client medical records

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696

PS000249




enealth 4.

S % Michigan Local Public Health Accreditation Program
_95 5 Tool 2023 — MPR Indicator Guide
% 5 L] L Ll
— Section IX: Family Planning

of local public health in Michigan
Evaluation Questions:

e Are medical history, physical examination and laboratory screening elements based on the specific services
provided to the client?

o Is Chlamydia testing offered annually to females <25 and as indicated by risk factors for women over 25?

Indicator 8.6
Offer Preconception Health Services to clients desiring these services

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines: (19.K.1,2; 19.L, M; 22; 22.A, B, C, D; 29.D.c.4)

To fully meet this indicator:
®  Written protocols and procedures to offer preconception health services that are current and consistent with
national standards of care must be available at each clinic site, (22)
e Medical history elements required for preconception health clients: (22.A. 1-11)
e Reproductive goals
e  Sexual health/risk assessment
e Reproductive history
o History of prior pregnancy/birth outcomes (e.g., preterm, cesarean delivery, miscarriage, or stillbirth)
o Past medical/surgical history that might impair reproductive health (e.g., conditions that could reduce
sperm quality, varicocele)
e Environmental exposures, hazards and toxins (smoking, alcohol, other drugs, Zika risk)
e Medications
e  Genetic conditions
Family history
Social history/risk behaviors
Intimate partner violence
Immunizations (MCIR is strongly recommended)

e o ¢ o

® Depression
e The following physical and laboratory assessment must be provided for all preconception health clients (22.C;
22.D)
o Height, weight, BMI
o  Blood pressure
o  Laboratory testing must be recommended based on risk assessment
= Chlamydia testing must be offered to females <25 years of age and as indicated by risk factors for
females 25 years old or older
e Reuvisits are individualized based on the client’s need for education, counseling and clinical care beyond that
provided at the visit. (19.K.1,2; 19.L, M; 29.D.c.4)

Documentation Required:

e Protocol and procedure manual

e Access to client medical records

e Educational materials regarding preconception

Indicator 8.7
Offer Related Preventive Health Services to women and men desiring these services

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (28; 28.A, B, C)

To fully meet this indicator:

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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®  Written protocols and procedures to offer preventive health services that are current and consistent
with national standards of care must be available at each clinic site. (28)
e  Clinics must offer/provide and stress the importance of clinical breast exam (CBE) and cervical cancer
screening. (28.A.1,2)
o Agencies must comply with current MDHHS Family Planning Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening
Protocol. (28)
o Agencies must participate in the Family Planning/Breast and Cervical Cancer Control Navigation
Program (FP/BCCCP) Joint Project for both breast and cervical cancer diagnostic services. (28)
e  Coordination of care must go through the BCCCNP Coordinator unless other referral/payment
arrangements are in place. (28)
e  Clinics must stress the importance of: (28.B.1,2)
o  Screening mammography for women aged 40-64 years as indicated.
o Screening for women aged 25-64 as appropriate.
e Clinics should conduct a genital examination for young male clients as indicated. (28.C.1-3)

Documentation Required:
e Protocol and procedure manuals
e Access to client medical records
o Referral/follow-up logs

Evaluation Questions:
e Are protocols and procedures to offer family planning related preventive health services in place?
e Is the current MDHHS Family Planning Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening protocol in use?

MPR 9

Provide family planning and related preventive health services to minors in an adolescent-friendly

manner consistent with Title X legislative mandates.

Reference: 42 CFR §59.5 (a)(1); Legislative mandates in title X appropriations related to services to minors.
Indicator 9.1
Provide Services for Minor Clients

See: Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines: (8.3.7.C; 9.8; 9.12; 9.12.A, B; 10.1.D; 10.4; 13.5;
13.5.G;17; 19.D.1-5; 21. G; 21.H; 21.H.2; 21.H.3; 21.H.4; 21.H.6)

To fully meet this indicator:

e The agency provides family planning and related preventive health services to minors. (9; 17)

e The agency must not require written consent of parents or guardians for the provision of services to minors
nor notify parents or guardians before or after a minor has requested and/or received family planning services.
(10.1 D; 19. D.1.a)

e The agency provides confidential services to minors and has policies and procedures in place to assure
compliance with state laws regarding mandated reporting of child abuse, child molestation, sexual abuse, incest
and human trafficking. (8.3.7.C; 9.11.B; 13.5; 10.4; 13.5.C; 19.D.1; 21.H.3)

e Minor clients who are undecided on a contraceptive method are informed about all methods that can safely be
used based on CDC Medical Eligibility Criteria. (21.G)

e Comprehensive information is provided to minor clients about how to prevent pregnancy. (21.H; 19.D.5)

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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e Written protocols and procedures are in place that address counseling for minors, including:

¢ Encouraging family participation in the decision of minors to seek family planning services (9.11.A; 19.D.
2;21.H.4)

¢ Counseling on how to resist attempts to be coerced into sexual activities (9.11.A; 19.D.3)

¢ Informing minors that services are confidential, and that in special cases (e.g., child abuse) reporting is
required (19.D.1.b; 21.H.3.a)

e Informing Minors of potential for disclosure of confidential information to policyholders where the
policyholder is someone other than the client. (10.2.A; 19.D. c)

e  Education and counseling are documented in the client record (21.G; 21.H.6)

e Confidentiality is never invoked to circumvent reporting requirements for child abuse and neglect. (9.12.B;
10.4)

Documentation Required:
e Protocols and procedures that address services and counseling for minors.
e Access to records of minor clients to review documentation

® Educational materials that address contraceptives and services to minors.

Evaluation Questions:

e Are policies and procedures in place to comply with mandatory reporting requirements?

o Are policies/procedures in place to inform minors of potential for disclosure of PHI to policyholders where the
policyholder is someone other than the client?

MPR 10

Provide family planning medical services under the direction of a clinical services provider with special

training or experience in family planning.

Reference: 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(6)

Indicator 10.1
Medical direction by a clinical services provider with family planning expertise.

See: Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines: (8.5.4; 8.5.4.A, B; 8.5.5; 8.6.9; 9.6; 18.A, B; 29.A;

29B2,3;29.E2.c¢e)

To fully meet this indicator:

e The medical director must be a licensed, qualified clinical services provider, with special training or experience
in family planning. (8.5.4)

. Where a designated medical director is not specialty trained, OB-GYN or with direct experience
providing family planning services to clients, at least 4 hours training specific to family planning or
reproductive health every two years is documented. (8.5.4.A; 8.6.9)

e All family planning services must be provided using written clinical protocols that are in accordance with
nationally recognized standards of care, signed by the medical director responsible for program medical
services. (9.6; 18.A; 29.A)

o The medical director approves and signs protocols and standing orders annually (within the past 12 months).
(9.6; 18.A, B; 29.E.2.e)

e Clinicians performing medical functions do so under the protocols and/or standing orders approved by the
medical director. (8.5.5)

e The medical director directs medical services and participates in quality assurance activities. (29.E.2.c)

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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e  Medical Audits to determine conformity with agency protocols and must be conducted quarterly by the
medical director
o At least 2-3 charts per clinician must be reviewed by the medical director quarterly. (29.E.2.c)

Documentation Required:

o Evidence that all mid-level providers have agreed to follow clinic procedures, protocols, and standing orders are
signed and approved by the medical director

Medical director’s professional and drug control licenses for each clinic location

Documentation of quality assurance medical audits

Approved protocols and standing orders

Curricula vitae of medical director

Evaluation Questions:

o Are medical audits regularly performed by the medical director to assure conformity with agency protocols on
a quarterly basis?

o Is there documentation of medical director training where it is required?

MPR 1]

Provide for emergency medical management to address medical emergency situations.

Reference: 29 CFR 1910, subpart E; 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(1)

Indicator 11.1
Medical Emergency/Situations and Equipment and Supplies.

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (19, L; 29.A.5; 29.B.7; 29. C.1, 2, 4)

To fully meet this indicator:
e Emergency arrangements must be available for after hours and weekend care and should be posted. (19.), L)
e There must be protocols and procedures for the following on-site medical emergency situations: (29.C.1)
Vaso-vagal reactions/Syncope (fainting)
Anaphylaxis
Cardiac arrest
Shock
Hemorrhage
Respiratory difficulties
Protocols must be in place for emergencies requiring EMS transport, after hour’s management of
contraceptive emergencies, and clinic emergencies (29.C.2)
Procedures for maintenance of emergency resuscitative drugs, supplies, and equipment must be in place
(29.C.4)
o At aminimum each clinical site must have the following: (29.B.7)
o Emergency drugs and supplies for treatment of vaso-vagal reaction
o Emergency drugs and supplies for treatment of anaphylactic shock
When a client is referred for emergency clinical care the agency must: (29.A.5)
o Document that the client was advised of the referral and importance of follow-up

[ ]

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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o Document that the client was advised of their responsibility to comply with the referral

Documentation Required:
e Protocol and procedure manual
e Evidence of emergency drug and supply maintenance

MPR 12

Projects must operate in accordance with federal and state law regarding the provision of

pharmaceuticals including, security and record keeping for drugs and devices.

Reference: 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(1); PA 368 Sec. 333.17745, 333.17745a, 333.17747.

Indicator 12.1
Pharmaceuticals/ Prescriptions

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (19.).1,2; 21.B.6; 21.B.11; 29.B; 29.B.2.a, b, c; 29.B.4.4,
e, f; 29.B.5; 29.B.6; 29.B.7; 29.C.1,4)

To fully meet this indicator:

e Agencies must operate in accordance with Federal and State laws relating to security and record keeping for
drugs and devices. (29.B)

¢ Inventory, supply, and provision of pharmaceuticals must be conducted in accordance with Michigan state
pharmacy laws and profession practice regulations. (29.B)

e Prescribing, dispensing or delegating dispensing of prescription medications at clinical service sites must be done
by a clinical services provider holding a Drug Control License for each clinic location where the storage and
dispensing of pharmaceuticals occur. (8.5.4.A; 29.B.2)

e Dispensing prescribers only dispense drugs to their clients, with the exception of dispensing prescriptions for
expedited partner therapy (EPT) as authorized under Michigan law. (29.B.3)

e All medications dispensed in Title X clinics must be pre-packaged. (29.B.2.a)

o All prescriptions dispensed (including samples) must be labeled with the following: (29.B.2.b)

Name/address of dispensing agency

Date of prescription

Name of the client

Name, strength, quantity of drug dispensed

Directions for use, including frequency of use

Prescriber name

Expiration date
e Record number

o All clients receive verbal and written instructions for each drug dispensed, including instructions on how to use,
danger signs, how to obtain emergency care, return schedule, and follow-up. (19.).1,2; 29.B.2.c)

o Sub-recipients must have adequate controls over access to medications and supplies, including. (29.B.4.d)

o Contraceptive and therapeutic pharmaceuticals must be kept in a secure place, either under direct
observation or locked.

o Access to the pharmaceuticals must be limited to health care professionals responsible for distributing
these items.

e Sub-recipient has policies and procedures in place to assure 340B Program compliance: (29.B.5.a-d)

e 6 o o o o o

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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= Safeguards are in place to assure supplies purchased through 340B are provided only to clients of the family
program.
=  Medicaid billing procedures are in place to guard against duplicate discounts.
= Agency maintains purchase and inventory control records that document compliance with 340B
requirements.
= Agency current 340B certification for each clinical site.
e A current, listing all drugs available for Title X clients, must be maintained and reviewed at least annually that
includes: (29.B.5; 21.B.6)
e Methods available on site
e Methods available on site within two weeks
e Methods available by paid referral
e Methods available by unpaid referral
o There must be an adequate supply and variety of drugs and devices to meet client contraceptive needs.
(29.B.6)
o There must be emergency drugs and supplies for the treatment of vaso-vagal reactions and anaphylactic shock
at each site where medical services are provided. (29.B.7; 29.C.1,4)
e A system must be in place to monitor expiration dates and ensuring disposal of all expired drugs, including
drugs for medical emergencies. (29.B.4.e; 29.C.4)
o There must be a system in place for silent notification in case of drug recall. (29.B.4.f)
e Writing of prescriptions follows the MDHHS prescription policy including: (21.B.11; 29.B)
e  Prescriptions may be written for items on the agency formulary, on the client’s insurance plan formulary,
or for a client’s method of choice when unavailable at the service site. (21.B.8,11; 29.B)
e  Accepting a written prescription must not pose a barrier for the client

Documentation Required:
Protocol and procedure manual.
Access to client medical records
Pharmacy logs

Inventory logs

Formulary for Pharmaceuticals

MPR I3

Projects must operate in accordance with federal and state law and guidelines regarding the provision of

laboratory services related to family planning and preventive health

Reference: 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(1); 29 CFR 1910.1030; 42 CFR 493.

Indicator 13.1
Laboratory Testing and Follow-up

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (9.6; 9.7; 17; 19.1; 21.F.1.c, d; 24.A; 26; 28; 28.A.2;
29.E2.1, g h)

To fully meet this indicator:

e Written laboratory protocols and procedures must be in place that include: (9.6; 9.7 17; 19. 1; 21.F.l.c, d;
24.A; 26; 28; 28.A.2.)
e Pregnancy testing must be provided on site

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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e Pap testing must be provided on site

o STl and HIV testing, or referral for testing

e Laboratory tests must be provided if indicated for a specific method of contraception
e Laboratory audits to assure quality and CLIA compliance must be in place. (29.E.2.g)

¢ Infection control policies and procedures reflecting current CDC recommendations and OSHA regulations
must be in place. (29.E.2.f)
e  Equipment maintenance and calibration must be documented. (29.E.2.h)

Documentation Required:
Protocol and procedure manual
Access to client medical records
Appropriate CLIA certificate
Laboratory logs

¢ Equipment maintenance logs

MPR 14

Projects must establish a medical record for all clients who receive clinical services, including pregnancy

testing, counseling and emergency contraception. Medical records must comply with Health Insurance
Portability & Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) privacy and security standards and document quality
care standards.

Reference: 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(1); Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA)

Indicator 14.1
Medical Records and Quality Assurance System

See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (29.D.1.a, b; 29.D.2; 29.E; 29.e.2.4, i)

To fully meet this indicator:
o A medical record is established for all clients who receive a clinical service. (29.D.1.a)
e Medical records are: (29.D.1.b)
e Complete, legible and accurate
e Signed and dated by the clinical health professional making the entry, including name, date, and title, as a
permanent part of the record
e Readily accessible
e Medical records contain the following: (29.D.2)
e  Personal data sufficient to identify the client:
Name
Unique client number
Address
Phone/How to contact
Age
Sex
Race & Ethnicity (FPAR requirement)
Income assessment

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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o Allergies
Medical history, as indicated by service(s) provided
Physical exam, as indicated by services(s) provided
Documentation of clinical findings, diagnostic/therapeutic orders, including:
e Treatments initiated and special instructions
e Continuing care, referral and follow-up
¢ Scheduled revisits
Documentation of all medical encounters, including telephone encounters
Documentation of all counseling, education, and social services
Signed general consent for services
Contraceptive method chosen by the client
e A quality assurance system must be in place to provide ongoing evaluation of family planning services that
includes: (29. E.)
e  Chart Audits/Record Monitoring to determine completeness and accuracy of the medical record must be
conducted quarterly by the quality assurance committee or identified personnel
o At least 3% of quarterly caseload, randomly selected are reviewed quarterly (29.E.2.d)

¢ A process to implement corrective actions when deficiencies are noted must be in place.
(29.E.2.i)

Documentation Required:

e Service protocol and procedure manuals

e Access to client medical records

e Documentation of Audits and/or Record Monitoring

Evaluation Questions:

¢ Do medical records contain documentation of all medical encounters: medical history and physical exam
appropriate to the service(s) provided; documentation of all clinical findings including laboratory test results and
follow-up; treatments initiated and special instructions; referrals and follow-up; and scheduled revisits?

e Are Chart Audits/ Record Monitoring Audits to determine completeness and accuracy of medical records being
conducted quarterly by a QA committee member or identified personnel?

MPR I5

Provide for coordination and use of referrals and linkages with primary healthcare providers and other
providers of healthcare services, local health and human service departments, hospitals, voluntary
agencies, and health services projects supported by other federal programs.

Provide for social services related to family planning, including counseling, referral to other social and
medical services agencies, and ancillary services which may be necessary to facilitate clinic attendance.
Provide that referral services as convenient as feasible to promote access to services.

References: 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(8); 42 CFR §59.5 (b)(2)

Indicator 15.1
Provide for Coordination of referral arrangements for other health care, related social
services and counseling

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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of local public health in Michigen
See Michigan Title X Family Planning Standards & Guidelines (9.5; 9.7; 9.7.A; 17; 19.K; 21.G; 29.A; 29.A.1-6;
29.D.2.c, f)

To fully meet this indicator:

e Projects must provide for referrals to other medical facilities as medically indicated. (9.5; 17)

e Provide that referrals and follow-up are provided, as indicated, including: (19.K; 29.A. 1-5)

o  Referrals made as result of abnormal physical exam or laboratory findings
e  Paid referrals for required services not provided on site
o Referrals for services determined to be necessary but beyond the scope of family planning

e Referral and follow up procedures must be sensitive to the client’s concerns for confidentiality and privacy.
(29.A.1)

e  Client consent for release of information to providers must be obtained, except as may be necessary to
provide care or as required by law. (29.A.2)

e  The agency must have written protocols/procedures for follow-up on referrals that are made as a result of
abnormal physical examination or laboratory test findings. These protocols must include a system to
document referrals and follow up procedures, including: (29.A.3a.b.c; 29.D.2.c; 29.E.2.a)
¢ A method to identify clients needing follow up
e A tracking system to document referrals and follow up procedures
e A method to track follow-up results on necessary referrals
e Documentation in the client record of contact and follow up

o Documentation of reasons when follow up was not completed
e Referral procedures must be sensitive to client confidentiality and privacy concerns.

e For services determined to be necessary but beyond the scope of Family Planning, clients must be referred to

other providers for care, the agency must: (9.5; 9.7.A; 29.A.1,5)

e Document that the client was advised of the referral and the importance of follow up

¢ Document that the client was advised of their responsibility to comply with the referral
e Referrals are made to providers conveniently located for clients where feasible.

e Social services related to family planning, including counseling services must be provided either on-site or by
referral (9.4; 9.7; 9.11; 17; 19.C, K; 29.A.6)

o Counseling must be accurate, balanced, and non-judgmental on the contraceptive methods, STIs and HIV.
9.11; 21.G)

o The agency must offer education on HIV and AIDS, risk reduction information and either on-site testing or
referral for this service. (17; 26.G)

e Counseling and referral services must be in place to address identified intimate partner violence and human
trafficking (9.4. A, B)

o Counseling must be provided by staff that is sensitive to and able to deal with the cultural and other
characteristics of the client population. (8.5.2)

e Referral lists for social services agencies and medical referral resources must be current and reviewed annually.
(24.B.7; 29.A.6)

e The client counseling must be documented in the client’s record. (21.G; 29.D.2.f)

e Agency must maintain a referral list, updated annually, that include health care providers, local health and

human service departments, hospitals, voluntary agencies, and health service projects supported by other
federal programs. (29.A.6)

Documentation Required:

e Protocol/procedure for counseling and referring to other health care, local health and human service
departments, hospitals, voluntary agencies or health services projects

o Current referral list, updated annually

e Documentation of referrals and follow-up

o Client medical records with counseling documentation

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 335-8696
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of local public health in Michigan

Evaluation Questions:

e Are counseling services provided based on the individual client needs/request for services?

For technical assistance, please contact Quess Derman at dermanb@michigan.gov or (517) 3